


About The Cover: 

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers is building a 15-megawatt 
generator which will give the Sewerage and Water Board's Division 
of Pumping and Power the capability to improve the operation of 
its drainage, sewerage and water pumping systems in emergen­
cies. For instance, it would be put into service when or if com­
mercial power should tail or otherwise becurno un^ivailable, or if 
the Board's own power generation system goes down. The new 
generator is funded 100% by the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers as 
part of a storm-proofing project for Orleans Parish and will greeUly 
enhance the reliability oi the pumping operations. The cost of this 
project, located on the grounds of the Carrollton Water Purification 
Plant, is estimated to be $3.5 million and is scheduled for comple­
tion by October 2011.This emergency generator, the size of a 
locomotive, will sit high atop the massive pilings shown here. 
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MISSION STATEMENT 

To be one of the best and most respected suppliers of sewer, water, and 
drainage service in the south-central United States by providing quality, 

reliable, and cost effective service to our Customers while maintaining fair 
and ethical treatment of our well-trained and highly motivated employees. 

OUR VALUE 

Open, honest, communication 
Trust and respect for each other 

Offering and encouraging education and opportunity to employees 
Fostering enthusiasm among employees through example of the 

managers/supervisors 
Providing direction and planning and encouraging interdepartment 

teamwork 
Assuring reliability in providing services to customers 

KEY RESULT AREAS 

Customer Satisfaction 
Cost Effectiveness 

Employee Satisfaction 
Capabilities Improvement through Training 
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^ ^ ^ ^ ^ P ' ' ' ''RE-BUILDING THE CITY'S V\/ATER SYSTEMS FOR THE 21^'^ CENTURY" 

Sewerage & Water B o a r d OF NEW ORLEANS 
« 5 ST. JOSEPH STREET 

MITCHELL J. LANDRIEU. Presidvfit . . - / . ^ ^ , , ' ^ ^ ^ ORLEANS, LA 7016S «504-529-2837 OR 52W-ATER 
TOMMIBA. VASSEL. President PfO-Tein \v\i\y 20, 201 I www.swbnota.org 

TO: Tlil.' I-IONORABI.K PRPSIOBNT AND MEMHF-:RS OF 'VMW 
SBWF-RAGI- AND WAIT-R BOARD 01- NFAV ORLl-ANS 

We arc pleased to present ihc Comprehensive Atinual Finaneial Report of the Sewerage and Water Board 
of New Orleans for ihc year ended December 31, 2010. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data 
and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including ail disclosures, rest solely with the 
Sewerage and Water Board. It is our belief thav the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects 
and is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position, results of operations, and 
cash ilows of the Board's Enterprise and Pension 'I'rust Funds, All disclosures necessary lu enable the 
reader to gain an undersiandiiig of the Sewerage and Water Board's financial activities have been 
included. 

COMPRBHL-NSIVE ANNUAL I-INANCIAL RElK)R'f SHCTIONS 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four (A) major .sections: inicoductory, 
I'inanciai, Statistical and Supplemental. 'Fhe introductory Section includes the transmittal letter and 
listings of the officers, members and committees of the Board o'i Directors. This section also includes the 
Board's organizational chart and a reproduction of the 2009 Certificate of Achievement for Lxcellence in 
Financial Reporting awarded by the Government Finance Officers Association. 'Che Finaneial Section 
includes the independent auditors' report, along with the basic financial statements, required 
supplementary information, accompanying notes and other supplementary informalion. The individual 
fund statements for the Ivntei-prise and Pension Trust Funds are included. Required supplementary 
includes management's discussion and analysis and a schedule of pension funding progress and 
contributions. The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally 
in a multi-year presentation. Additional information relative lo the Sewerage and Water Board's 
opcnilions is included in a Supplemental Section. 

The independent audit i>f the financial statements of the Sewerage and Water Board was part of a broader, 
federally mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet ihe special needs of federal grantor agencies. The 
standards governing -"̂ ingie Audit engagements require the independent auditor to reporl not only on the 
fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal controls and 
compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements 
involving the administration of federal awards, lhe.se reports are available in the Sewerage and Water 
Board's separately issued Single Audit Report. 

The Sewerage and W'̂ atcr Board meets the criteria for classification as an "other stand-alone goven^mcnt" 
as described in Governmental Accounting Standards Board Slatenient No. 14. The reporting entity 
includes the t-jiterprise Fund and (lie Pension Trust Fund. The 1'intcrpn.se Vun6 is composed of ihree (3) 
independent systems: Watei", Sewerage and Drainage. The Board adopted Governmental .Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 'SA - Basic Financial Statements - ivlanagement's Discussion and 
Analysis - for State and Local Oovermnenl in 2002. 

l-l 
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GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany 
the basic financial staiemenis in the form of iVIanagcmenl's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This 
letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. 'fhe 
Sewerage and Water Board's Ml'^&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent 
auditors. 

PROFILE OF THE SEWI.-RA(}E AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans is a political subdivision created in 189̂ ) by Louisiana State 
Statutes. The Board is charged with construction, operation, and maintenance of Water, Sewerage and 
Drainage Systems for the City of New Orleans. By agreement, approximately 2,550 acres of adjourning 
Jefferson Parish is served by the Board's drainage facilities for which Jefferson Parish pays its pro rata 
share of expenses. In addition, ihe Board provides sewerage services to Jefferson Parish businesses ihe 
majority of which are restaurants located in the West End neighbodiood near the Lakefront. Additionally, 
the Board provides water and sewerage services lo the Plaquemines Parish Industrial Park. The Sewerage 
and Water I'ioard was established as a "special board" operating independenily of city government. The 
Mayor of New Orleans serves as the President of the Board of Directors which is composed of three (.3) 
representatives of ihe City Council, two (2) representatives of the Board of Liquidation. City Debt and 
seven (7) appointees as designated by the State statutes. 

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTi.OOK 

The Board's .service area includes ihe Civil Parish of Orleans in the slate of Louisiana and covers ?̂ 64 
square miles. Based on the 2(M0 census, ihe population of Orleans Parish was 3-13.82^. Major indu,siries 
include tourism, oil and gas. transponation. health and other services, such as legal, education and 
eniertaininent. 

According to the .lanuary 2011 issue of the iMctropolilan Report. Economic Indicators i'or the New 
Orleans Area (UNO Report during the first three quarters of 2010 the Metro area roughly added 900 jobs 
when compared to ihe same lime frame during 2009. 

When comparing averages during the three quarters, only a few sectors had a significant growth in 2010 
compared lo 2009. Health Care and Social Assistance added 2.01 I {3.8% growtti). Leisure and 
llospitality added another 1.551 jobs (2.3% grovvlh)- Even though Government added 1,473 jol')s with a 
growth of 1.8%, most of these jobs were added for the 2010 Census and are not pennanent. Arts, 
Entertainment and Recreation added a total o\' 1.330 jobs (13.8% growth). 

New Orleans had a very strong first half in 2010. with hoiel occupancy and room rates up suhstaniially 
from similar months in 2009. One explanation for the positive direction in tourism indicators is the Saints 
success. Po.st-.̂ ea.son games brought enthusiastic visitors and their spending. As well, many people 
traveled to New Orleans, rather than Miami, to celebrate the Super Bowl. The constant media coverage 
provided virtually free advertising, including unbiased reporting showing exuberant people reveling in the 
streets of New Orleans. 

Strong conveniion bookings and attendance al.so contributed to the success of the visitor industry. As 
well, business visitation was robust. Many visitors coining for business purposes have extended their stay 
for pleasure (61.2%) and are staying longer (an average of 2.1 additional nights) than in the past to take 
advantage of leisure activities. 

Year-io-date 20I0> both national imports and exports were up 25.4% and 21.3% respectively. The global 
recession has taken its toll on both categories. Despite that, commodities traded through the port on New 
Orleans are not a representative sample of those traded nationally. The New Orleans year-to-date impori 
tonnage was up 22.9% while export tomiage was up 6.7% following the national trend. 
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WA'FER SYS'fEM MAJOR INI'flATIVES 

Carrollton Water Purification Plant: 

Construction of a new disinfection storage and kci.\ facility is underway. This project, which replaces 
chlorine delivered in rail cars with sodium hypochlorite, includes bulk storage and pumping tacililies for 
hypochlorite, the addition of a second disintectant addition point, and some water plant SCADA system 
improvements. 'I'his project is financed through ihe Department of llealth and l-lospilal State Revolving 
Loan Program and ARRA. The siimulus funding will result in $1,000,000 of principal forgiveness for 
the S&WB. When complete, the Carrollton Plant will no longer house 55 ton rail cars of chlorine, 
significantly reducing the risk of exposure to the plant staff and Ihe surrounding community and 
environment. 

Overhaul of fiocculation-sedimeniation basin G3 is near completion. A nev̂  complete Hocculaiion drive 
system was installed. 'Fhe improvements lo the mono-rake system will increase the elTtciency of sludge 
removal from the sedimentation Ixisin. Pressure grouting was executed in the soils supporting tlie Ijasin 
walls to Slop exilliration and fill known voids. Repairs to the alignment of the monorake skirl and the 
rails are ongoing. 

Improvemenis to the high lift How measuring sysiem are ongoing. Degassing valves have been installed 
on five oi' the six units, which are now providing fiow measurement. Outstanding repairs include ihe 
damaged/plugged venturi plumbing and repair or replacement of the pump infrasiruciure. 

The Board has completed rehabitiiation to the 1,4 fiocculation equipment and mono-rake sy.siem. Oil 
needs to be changed in the gearbox and rcmofe dry passage sump level monitoring needs to be addressed 
before equipment can be tested and relumed to .service. 

Algiers Water Puriricotion Plant 

The Board completed installation of a new sodium hypochlorite in the raw water line ahead of the 
treatment process. 'Fhe additional \Oi:i\ point will ensure compliance with disinfection requiremenis by 
providing for longer chlorine contact time during extreme cold temperatures in combination wiih high 
customer use. 

'fhe installation of a sodium hypochloriie generation system is complete and the equipment has lieen in 
service since April 2009. This system is currently supporting the daily normal jiiant needs for disinfectant 
in the poiable water treatment process. The use of ton cylinders of chlorine has been dLsconiinued at this 
facility significantly reducing the risk of exposure to ihe plant staff and ihe surrounding community and 
environment lo a loxic chlorine release. 

'fhe ferric sulfate storage and iced equipment was moved from the old river station to a temporary 
location within the Algiers Plant. A new bulk storage containment structure has been i>uill within the 
plant. 1-fforts are ongoing to move parts of the storage and feed equipment into this new facility. 

Water Pumping & Power 

The total capacity of the plant is 41 MW. 'furbine 4 (20 MW) was rebuilt and is available for emergency 
use at an estimated reduced capacity of 8-12 MW. Design to rehabilitaie furbine 4 is underway to 
replace the steam path, rotor, condenser and all related auxiliaries, install 8 transmitters, update the 
governor control s\siem and replace ihe turbine with 25117, motor on the condensate pump, 'fhe project is 
scheduled for biddini: in mid-2t}l 1. 



A new Boiler No. 2 was installed November 2009. The repair of turbine 4 in 2013 with ihc new boiler 
shall return the power plant to ihe original potential capacity of 61 MW. 

Construction of a new high-pressure natural gas line into the power plant by the local power company is 
underway, 'fhe new line is dedicated only for S&WB use and will eliminate the need for tiie existing gas 
compressors located ai. the power plant for 'furbine No. 4 operation. The project shall be constructed by 
r^'quarter 2011. 

'fhe New River Intake Station is operational and has sufficient capacity to supply the raw water 
requirements for the Carrollton Water Purification Plant. The Oak Street River Intake Station is currently 
out of service for repairs lo the pumps, switchgear. valves and intake pipes. 

Specifically for the New River Intake Station, all three raw water pumps have been returned to service. 
One pump has been refurbished with new pump bearings, line shaft tearing, couplings etc. whereas the 
other two pumps have ycl lo be refurbished. One of the three pump motors has been refurbished. FEVIA 
is funding the repair or replacement of the suction, discharge and check valves. 

'fhe three high lift pump stations arc operational. The Claiborne i ligh Lift Pump Station, Panola 25/60-
cycle Pump Station and the DeLaval steam turbine pump driver located at the power plant are of 
sufficient capacity to meet the finished water requirements. 'Fhe second DeLaval steam driven 
distribution pumps is schedided for reconditioning. The FE.VIA funded repair of both pumps was bid in 
2^" quarter 2011. 

'fhe Corps of Engineers initialed construction of a new 15 MW, 60ilZ dual fuel turbine driven generator 
with a high pressure gas compressor in November 2009. The $3L2 mtdion project shall .supplement (he 
current power available from Entergy to serve the water treatment plant and the raw water intake stations. 

The Corps of Engineers has several projects in design for the power plant including construction of an I-
wall around the power plant and other critical water treatment plant assets to protect against /looding. 
storm proofing the buildings contained in the pov̂ 'cr plant, the Oak Street River and New River hitake 
Stations, and the building housing the frequency changer. Projects are scheduled for bidding in 2011 
pending availability of funds. 

WiUerJOistri.[H|tjo!i.Systenj: 

fhe leak delcclion program continues to utilize Permalog Leak Detectors to locate leaks in the 
distribution network for repairs. In 2009, the Pcrnialogs were installed hi New Orleans East. Some siil) 
remain in the original piloted area in the Central Business I..)istrict and succeeding area of the Lower 
Ninth Ward. Over 2400 detectors are cunenily located in water distribution system. 

The leak detection program .ilso ntilized the Sniartba)! to ijivestigaie 15 miles of water mains. The device 
is effective; however very labor intensive in its requirement of a shutdown to insert the tool. 

Over 12,000 service requests were responded to in 2010. These included investigations of 445 water 
leaks, inspection of 1434 water value.'?, repairs to 9938 water services lines, 2344 water mains, 964 valves 
and 47 water manholes. Additionally, staff removed 5102 water n\eters and installed 489 new water 
meters. 

Preventative maintenance of fire hydrants is continuing in coordination with the local fire department. Of 
the 16,500 fire hydrants mapped, the Board performed preventative maintenance for 2516. 
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The Board is continuing to coordinate with the City of New Orleans Department of Public Works (DPW) 
in repaii/replacemcnt of water lines associaled with the Submerged Roads Program. 

SEWER SYS'i'EM MAJOR INVi'lATlVES 

Ejist Bank Wastewater ITeatment Plant: 

All buildings have been repaired including a new control room equipped with a state of the art SCADA 
system for oversight and control of plant processes. The administration building containing the laboratory 
was destroyed by tloodwaters and demolished. The laboratory analyses are being performed off site, 
while the administrative offices arc being housed in office trailers. Currently a new administration 
building with laboratory is out for construction bid. Coastruction is .scheduled to begin in June 2011. 

With ihe exception of the backup multiple hearth incinerator and the cryogenic oxygen production 
facility, all pre disaster equipment has been repaired and is operational including all eight final clarifiers. 
'fhe oxygen reactors have been restored to full functionality providing essential secondary treatment. In 
2010 oxygen reactor U2 mixers, gearboxes, impellers and motors were completely rehabilitated by 
Philadelphia Mi.\ers and gained full restoration of the 5-ycar warranty. 

At present a Vacuum Swing Adsorption (VSA) oxygen production plant capable of producing 70 tons of 
oxygen at greater than 93% purity has been purchased and is in the installation phase of the project with 
an estimated completion and start up of April 2011. O.xygen is currently trucked in at significant cost and 
the new oxygen production facility will significantly reduce expenses. Currently the oxygen reactors 
require a consumption of approximately 30-tons per day. 

FEMA has reviewed and approved a sludge dr\'er system as an alternative method of sludge disposal and 
backup to the Fluid Bed Incinerator (FBI). This sludge processing equipment is in the preliminary 
engineering design phase of the project. Fhis initiative involves the procurement and installation of a ten 
(10) dry ton per day sludge dryer to blend into the existing sludge stream prior to incineration. The 
resulting sludge quality will be greater Ihan 33% Total Solids (TS) allowing for an autogenous burn, 
which will require fuel only for start ups, greatly reducing diesci and natural gas expenses, 'fhe design 
engineering firm was procured in December 2010. 

'fwo new gravity thickener and bell filter press combination units have been installed in addition to the 
two existing belt presses. The new units have increased the sludge cake dryness from -22% TS to slightly 
greater than 24% TS. The increased dryness has led to significant reductions in dicsel and natural gas 
expenses to incinerate the sludge. 

The mean infiuent TSS and BOD concentration are approximately 148 milligrams per liter (mg/L) and 
103 mg/l... respectively. Et̂ fiucnt quality has been good over the year, with only one permit violation in 
2010. 

A new 4-MW diesel generator was purchased in August 2009 to provide Ixickup power for the 
wastewater treatment plant. Design of Ihe generator building is underway. Construction of the building 
and installation of the generator is scheduled to be completed in mid 2012. 
Biodiesel is being investigated as a green energy alternative to diesel fuel and natural gas as fuel sources 
for the fiuidized bed incinerator. 

The fiuid bed incinerator waste product (ash) was permitted as an industrial fill material in early 2010, 
removing it from its previous characterization as a regulated solid wa.ste material requiring costly landfill 
disposal, 'fhe ash is now utilized as fill at the west bank treatment plant providing significant savings. 
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'fhe Return Activated Sludge (RAS) pumps received a major overhaul in 2010. This included 5 new 
pump volutes, 5 motor rebuilds, and 5 pump rehabililaiions. Each of the two pump houses is equipped 
with 5 8-nigd pumps. Additionally, the South RAS pump house header was replaced. 

'fhe Board was successful in appealing FEM.A to fund the mitigation effort to the berm around the 
wastewater treatment plant. Design of an earthen/structural berm is underwEiy. C'onstruction is tentatively 
scheduled to begin in late 2011. 

West Bank Wastewater freaiment Plant: 

A new in-plant drainage puntping station has tioen installed, greatly iniproving the plant drainage 
capacity. All plani runoff is collccied in this .system and is returned to the treatment process and 
ultimately pumped to the Mississippi River. 

A new gaseous chlorine handling system was installed including a new chlorinalor, automatic shutofi's. 
leak detectors, and alarms. 

Major overhauls were completed lo the eflluent pumping system, including replacement of the rotating 
units fi>r the two smaller 8-V1CiD pmnps. 

A new solids treatment building and belt filter press is currently al 65% level of design for the plant. 

A new sodium hypochlorite system including tanks and pumps is at 65% level of design. 

The mean for infiuent 'fSS and BOf) concentration were 129 mg/'l and 104 nig l̂. respectively. Effiuent 
quality has been exceptional over the year, with zero permit violations in 2010. 'Fhe ej'fiuent yearly 
averages for 'FSS and BOD concentrations were 7 mg/l and 9 mg/l respectively. 

Sewage Pumpinu and Lift Stations: 

AH the sewer pump stations are operational; however some facilities are coniinuing to utilize temporary 
pumps. The majority of the stations require rehabilitation, i.e.. electrical repair, bearing replacement, and 
fiood proofing. Approximately 70?'n of the electrical work has been completed. Mechanical repair work 
is in progress. 'I'he final phase of fiood proofing has l')cen initiated. 

fEM.A has funded repairs to the sewer pump stations to pre-Katrina conditions. Construction contracts 
for the repair and/or replacement [o 62 stations have been awarded and cotisiruction is ongoing. In 2010. 
thirty of the sewer pump ."̂ talions have been returned to pre-Katrina conditions. 

Construction of the replacement of Michoud and Lamb Sewer Pump Stations were completed, 'fhe 
facilities were connnissioned in November 2009 and August 2010. respectively. 

Ff-MA is funding ihe installation of transfer switches at the sewage pumping stations, fhe switch will 
provide the ability for the pumps to be powered hy a generator in the event of electrical power lo.ŝ . 

Flazard Miiigation Funds have tieen provided to elevate ten sewer pump stations and ensure continLious 
operations during fiooding events. Final design reports shall he submitted in 2011 for review iMK\ 
comment. 

Sewer Collection Svstem: 

Sewer rehabiliiation projects were completed in ihe l.,ower Ninth Ward areas. 
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Construction projects for replacement of sewer mains from manhole to manhole for various sites 
throughout Orleans Parish were awarded. Design projects are coniinuing for multiple point repair and 
replacement of sanitaiy sewers in the Carrollton, Lower Ninth Ward and South Shore areas. Construction 
for these projects shall be completed by 2015. 

'!"be î oavd is continuing to coordinate with DOTD and DPW in repair oi"sewer lines associated with the 
Submerged Roads Program 

Preveniaiive maintenance of the collection system included inspection of L{)20.8()4 feel of sewer line 
utilizing closed circuit television and smoke testing, cleaning of 11,313.998 ft, of the sewev sysien^, 
inspection of 10,071 sewer manholes and repairs to 2,635 sewer breaks. "Fhiriy-three air release valves 
were inspected and maintained and 169 force main isolation valves were inspected and exercised. 
Alignment inspection of 102 miles of the force main was also accomplished. 

Cathodic protection survey is performed annually on the 22 systems in place in ihe collection sysiem. 
Design is underway lo repair the systems damaged as a result of Katrina. 'fhe projects are schedule for 
bidding in late 201 1. 

DRAINAGE SYS'fEM MAJOR INl'flA'flVI-S 

r^imp Stations: 

All 24 drainage and 12 underpass pumping stations have been maintained and are operational. Most 
motors have been rewound and are in .service within the drainage stations. 

'fhe [Joard has been able to peribnu in-housc fabrication of stop togs, repair the vortical pun\ps and two 
sluice gates that have been out of service since Katrina at Drainage Pumping Station (DPS) 19, repair "'D" 
pump impeller by welding 5 out of 8 blades al DPS 3 and repair failed it I screen cleaner at DPS 6. 

'1 he Corps has committed .'i>204 milli(ni for storm-proofing projects at poientially 22 of the drainage pump 
stations. Design is underway for procurement and installation of two 300 el's pumps with a back-up 
generator ai DPS 5, a new building to house a back-up generator at Di\S 20. and electrical, mechanical 
and siruclural upgrades to the other stations. 

'Fhe $58.8 million expansion of Dwyer Road Pumping Station from 125 cfs to 1000 cfs is still in 
construction. The project is 100% federally fimded and scheduled to be completed in the springof 201 1. 

'fho rcplocomcnt of the Inlainc Pumping Station was a\var<led in July 2009. The .$3.2 million Corps 
project was completed and is scheduled to be in service in January 2011. 

'fhe Board has been participating with the Corps in the procurement for the design build of ihree new 
permanent pump stations at 17"' Street, Orleans and London Canal at Lake Ponicharirain. As ob.servers. 
the l.k>ard has reviewed the submittal of qualifications, proposals and clarification interviews. 'The S804 
million project would provide both frontal protection and allow for easier and more efficient pumping of 
water to the Lake. 

Drainage Svstem: 

Dwyer Road Intake Canal is currently under construction. Fhe S58.S million project is 100% federally 
funded and consists of 6,800 linear feet of new concrete boxed culvert into the f)wyer Road Pumping 
Stalion. 
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Florida Avenue Canal Pha.-̂ e I proposals for consiruciion were received by the C'orps November 2009. 
fhe S49.2 million project is 100% tederally funded and consists oi an open concrete canal within the 
Florida Avenue right of way between .Vlazani Street and Drainage Pump Station -i 19. Phase I was 
awarded in 2010 and is .scheduled for completion in the sunnner of 2012. Florida Avenue Canal Phases II 
and HI from St. Ferdinand St. to Vlazant Street are currently under design and both projects will be 
awarded by the Corps in I'ebruary 2tH2.0ther Southeast Louisiana Urban Flood Control Program (SF-LA) 
projects under design include Florida Ave (!anal Phase IV (Peoples Ave to St Ferdinand St, and 
associated drainage uork on iXx-rs St, F"ads St. Painters Si, Abundance St. Treasure St lUKi Benefit St), 
Napoleon Avenue Canal Phase il (Claiborne Ave to Carondelei St), Napoleon Ave Canal Phase 111 
(Carondelet St to Con.stancc St). Claiborne .Avenue Canal Phase I (Monticello St to Leonidas St). 
Claiborne Ave Canal Phase 11 (Leonidas St to Lowei'linc St). Jefferson .Avenue Canal Phase I (Claiborne 
.'\ve to Dryades St), Jefferson Ave Canal Phase 11 (Dryades St to C!onstances. including canal on Pryiania 
St from Jefferson (o Nasiividc .Ave) and Louisiana Avenue Canal (Claibonie Avenue to Constance 
Street). Claiborne Ave Phase 1 and Napoleon .Ave Phase II are sch.edule to be awarded l'>y the C't̂ rps in 
ihe summer of 201 1. 

1 ouisiana DOD'f awarded in December 2009 the installation of drainage culvers, asphalt overlay aiid 
related \^ork on (ieneral DegaLiilc Drive at its intersection with Wall Boulevard. Fife Center Drive. Seine 
Court, Wesibend Parkway, Behrman Place and MacArlhur Boulevard, 'fhe design, funded by the Board 
wilt provide for improved drainage and fiood control in the six locations. The S21 million construction 
(partially funded [)y the Board) is scheduled lo be complete tw mid-2012. 

A Five-year Capital Program budget of S2.934,895,000 was approved by Sewerage and Water Board in 
December 2010. "fhe approved amount for Drainage projects was .S2.184.3-15,000. of thai amonni; 
$1,647,605-000 is parlicipalion by others. 

MNAN'CIAL INFORMAl ION 

The Enlerpri.sc FitnJ's water a/iJ se^verage .systems are financed by user fees. The unique characteristics 
of the services provided In the drainage Sysiem of New Orleans requires the use of IJUerprise l-'und 
acconniing in order to obtain a meaningful measure oi" the cost o\' pro\ iding the services and capital 
mainlenance. On March 21. 2007. the Board appro\-ed a series of Wvc annual waier rate increases 
beginning with the fir.=;t increase on November 1. 2007 fnllov.ed by four additional increases lo be 
implemented on July 1 of each vear, 2008 through 201 1. fhe New Orleans City Council approved the 
annual water rate increases on (.)ctober 4, 20o7. Revenues from the ihree- (3) mill, six- (6) mill and nine-
(̂ J) mill ad valorem taxes, which are resiricied exclusively for drainage services, finance the Drainage 
SyslciV!. 'fhesc ad valorem taxes are the ciperaling revenues of die drainage system. 

B.U<:!gV.lP.!'J;' ConIro 1; 

fhe Sewerage and Water Board maintains an internal budgetary control through the preparaiion and 
monitoring of an annua! operating and capital budget tor the Water. Sewerage, and Drainage funds. 
Monthly budget reports are provided to depaitment level managers lo assist ihem in their li.̂ cal 
responsibilities. 
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General Operation.s 

'Fhe change in nel assets for the year ended December 31 , 2010 was of approximaiely $94.5 mil l ion 

compared to an increase o f $66.4 mil l ion for the year ended December 31 . 2009. Fhe Board's total 

operating revenues increased by 7.4% to approximately Si30.1 mi l l ion, and total operating expenses 

increased by 0.5% to approximaiely SI70.8 mil l ion. The decrease in transmission and distribution 

expenses in 2010 o f approximately $5.6 mti l ion, or 25.9%, Is primarily due lo a ckxsvDsc hi a pavijig 

contract. The increase in administration and general expense of S2.6 mi l l ion, or 18.9%, is primarily i\i\c 

to an increase in insurance as wel l as an increa.se in the o f purchase o f parts and materials. 'Fhe 

increase in the provision for doubtfi i l acciuinis o f $4.0 mi l l ion, or 445.7'%. is due primarily to the increase 

in estimaie of the allowance for doubti'ul accounts. 

Pension I'rust Fund Operaiions: 

The contributions to the Pension Trust Funds are Ixised on actuarial valuations. 

Deb! .Administration: 

The F.U)ard of Liquidation, Ciiy Debt has responsibility for the administration of the Board's debt. 

Drainage debt .services payments are supported In- ad valorem tax collections, uhi le user fees are used to 

provide debt services Ibr the Water asul Sewerage System bonds. The Board's Sewerage. Water, and 

/'drainage bonds outstanding as o f December 3 i , 2010 totaled approximately S229.3 mil l ion. 

Cash Managemenl: 

Cash temporarily idle in the Enterprise l-'und during the year was invested in commercial txmk certificates 

o f deposit. repu.''cha.se agreements, and t ' .S. Treasury Bil ls, Effective. January 1998, invesiments were 

recorded at fair value. Investment income on these idle funds was $400,426. 

11'. sk... .•N'1..a..n.age ni e t̂  

D ie Sewerage and Water Board uses bolh insured and retained risk programs to manage exposures to 

loss, fhe Board administers self-insured programs for property and automobile liability exposures. Also, 

retained risk programs for general l iability and workers' compensation losses and claims are administered 

h\ the Board. 

^ ̂  t !}<?!'J n Ion n at i on: 

Slate Siatuies and covenants governing outstanding bond issues require an annual audit o f the Board's 

financial records by independent certified piiblic accountants, 'fhe accounting firms of Posilethwaite ( t 

Netterville was selected by the Board to perform this audit through a compeiiiive bid process. The 

independent auditors' reporl {>n the basic financial statements is included in the I'inanciai Seciion of the 

reporl. The Government Finance Officers .Association o f the United Stales and Canada ( G l O A ) awarded 

a Certificate of Achievement i'or Excellence in Financial Reporting to Sewerage ami Water Board of New 

Orleans for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31 . 200^J. The 

Certificate o\' .Achievement is a prestigious national award-recognizing conformance with the highest 

standards for preparation o f state and local government financial reports. 

In order to be awarded a Ceriincate of,Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable 

and efficienily organized comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform to program 

standards. Such C .̂AFR must satisfy both generally accepted accouniiivg principles and applicable legal 

requirements. 
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A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one (1) year only. The Sewerage and Water Board 
of New Orleans has received a Certificate of Achievement Ibr twenty-seven (27) years. We believe our 
current repon continues lo conform to the Certification of Achievement Program requiremenis and we are 
submitting it to CiFO.A, 

ACKNCAVLKDCiVir.N'rS 

ihe C'omprehensive Annual Financial Reporl was prepared by the dedicated siatT of the Director's 
Office, particularly ihe I'inance Administration and Printing Department. Additionaiiy. we realize Ihat 
the cooperation of each Department of the Sewerage <fc Water Board of New Orleans is essential, and we 
appreciate the willingness to work together toward this endeavor. 

We also wish to thank the members of the Board for their interest and suppoil in our efforts to achieve 
greater fiscal efficiency and accountability. 

Yours vervtrulv. 

77?^^4^^^^/^ 

Marcia .A. St. Martin 
Executive Director 

^Uh^t^^fUU 
Robert Miller 
Deputy Director 

/ ^ ^TheTll. Williams 
Fiiiaucial .Administrator 
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Certificate of 
Achievement 
for Excellence 

in Financial 
Reporting 

Presented to 

Sewerage and Water Board 
of New Orleans, Louisiana 

For its Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report 

for the Fiscal Year iinded 

December 31, 2009 

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financinl 
Reporting is presented by Uic Government Finance Officers 

Association of tiie United States and Canada to 
govenuncnt units and public employee retirement 
systems whose comprehensive annual financial 

reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest 
standards in govennnent accounting 

and financial reporting. 

Executive Director 
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THE SEVVEU.\(;E AND WATER HOARD OE NEW ORLEANS 

DIVISION MEADS OF DEPU I Y DIRECTOR 

December :> 1,2010 

ROBERT MILLER 
DI-iMJTYDIRLCJOR 

ADMJNISTRATIVF Sl-RVlCI'S DIVISION 
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I-;NVIR0NMI;:NTAL AI-TAIRS DIVISION 
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INlORMATiON S Y S I T : M S ADMINISTRATION 
MI-LINDA Nf-LSON 

iN;ni!<NALAUDrr 
LOTs GOULD-i-ORb 

Ri;:RSONNLL ADMINISTRATION 
Ki-VIN WALSH ""' 

PLANNING AND BUDGI.-T DIVISION 
DBXTLRJOSLPll " 

PURCHASING ADMINISTRATION 
WiLLIi: M.MINGO JR. 

Rr.vi-:NUL AND c u s roMi::R si-Rvicr-:s A D M I N I S T R A T I O N 

JACOUr-LlNl-K.SHINL 

RISK MANAGr.MTNT 
ISIAHCAMI-RON 

SUPPORT Sl-RVICLS DIVISION 
JOHN WILSON 
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New processes, systems, equipment and r̂ iodern concepts axe constantly explored-and 
many are Implementeci by ihe S&WB. One such new process system is underway at the 
Carroliton Water Purification Plant on South Claiborne Ave. Galled the Sodium i-iypochbrile 
Bulk Storage/Feed Facility, it consists of the conversion of a current gaseous chlorination 
system to a sodium hypochlorite system that wilt eliminate the need for transporting chlorine 
by rail and sieving it on the plant grounds. Instead, the Board will be able to truck in the safer, 
yet efiective, sodiuir̂  hypochlorite for disintectant purposes and easily store it in a nearby hv 
cility. This chemical increases safety for surrounding neighborhoods and Board employees. 

Turbine ^o. 3, a crucial elcrp.enlof the Sewerage & Water Board's own Powef Plant, is uî dergoincj 
an extensive overhaul alter it failed while in operation. The 1928 vinlagO: 25-cycle, tS-megawatt 
generator supplies 25-cycle power for iov̂  day-loday power needs, as well as for misV. polenliai 
loads to run drainage pumpir\g stations during heavy rain events and t^irricanes. Disasseiiibly and 
repair were required to ensure the turbine will return to seoyice in like-new corv'iition and provide 
many more years oi reliable sen/ice. 
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P&N Postlethwaite 
& Netteryille 

iNDEPKNDKN r AUDITORS' REPORT 

Members of the Board 
Se\s'oragi: antl Water Board of Ncu Orleans: 

Wc have aucliied ihe ba.sjc ilnancia! st;itemiinis of the SowcMiie and Wnier Uo;irti of New Orlcins (tiic 
Bonrd) as of and f(ir ihc yc:jrs ended December .51, 2010 and 2[l(19, a.s listed in the table of ironlcnts. 
These basic tnianci.nl staicnients arc the rcsponsibiiiiy of the iioard's nianagcmen(. Our rc.':[ninsibi!i(y 
is to express opinitms on those financial slatcnierits ba.scd on our jindits. 

Wc cojiducioti our audits in accordance with auditing stanciards ucntrally accepted in the United States 
of America and the Slnndard-i applicable lo nnancial audits LOiilaincd in (Jovcn!fiit')U Auditino 
Siatidiirds, issued by the Coinptiollcr General of the United St:?ies. ITiOse sia!ida--(ls rc-^iuirc thai we 
plan and pcrforni the audit to obtain reasonable assurance, about wlicthcr the fnianciu! staLcmcnts arc 
free of material ndssiaicmcnt. An audit includes consideration of internal control over Hnanciiii 
reporting as a basis for dcsigninii andit procedures that aix; appropriate in the circum.=;tances, but not 
lor tiic purpose of exprcssini' an opinion on Ihe enectivencss ol the J3oar<rs inicmal control over 
Hnancial reporting. Accordingly, we expre.'is no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a rest 
ba.si.S- evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the ilnancial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and fhe siv^nincani estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overfill financial slatemonf prcseniation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis U}r 
our opinions. 

In our opinion, the ha*-;it; fhinncinl statements referred to above present fairly, in ail material respects, 
the financial position of the Board as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. and the resirlls of its operations 
and its cash flows for titc years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United Stales of America. 

In accordance with Govaninetn .-iudiii/ig Slandard.'i, wc hnvc :i!so issued our repoii (.hsictl May 20. 
2011, on onr consideration of the Board's internal conUol (A'CT financial reporting and on our te.^ts ^j\ 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
maiicis. The purpose of that re])ort is to describe the scope c>f our lesiing of internal ciwitrol over 
Ilnancial leporting and compliance and ihe results of that testing, and not u> provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or ou compliance, rhjit report is an integral part of an audit 
pcrfonned in accordance wiih Govcrnmcfif Ajidifin<{ Suvidnrds and sliouid be considered in assessing 
the resuhs of our audits. 

• „ nj ,, c . . ' • • 



Accounting principle^; generally accepted in ihe United States of America require that the 
management's iliscussion and analysis on pages IIO tiirough lM-1 and the schedules of funding 
progress presented on pages 11-54 and lIo5 be presented to supplement the basic duancial statements. 
Such information, although not a pail of the basic tlnancial statcmenis, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to he an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial siaicmcnts in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical contcxi. We have applied cetlain linnted procedures to the required supplementary 
iulbnnution in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of ntanagement about the mcuiods of preparing the information and 
comparing the iafonnaiion for consistency with managcmeni'.s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial staten^cnis, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic nnnnt.:ial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
liniiicd procedures do not provide us with sulficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assuraticc. 

Our audits were conducted for ihc purposn: ol' forming opinions on the financial statements that 
colk'cliveiy comprise the Board's financial statenscnts as a whole. The introduetcijy seetion. Sciteduics 
1 ihrough 6. the Stadstical Information section, and Supplementary Inidnnciiion .section aje presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required p;ul of the financial statomcnts. Schedules i 
through 6 arc the responsibility of niauagemcnt and were derived fnan and relate tlirectly t<j the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the ilnancial .statements. The infornunion has 
been sutijected to the audiihig procedures applied in ilic audit of (he financial statements and certain 
adtliiional procedures. i[icludiug comparing and reconciling such infonnaiion directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements <>v to the financial 
stattimems thcm.sciveS; and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing .standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Tn our opinion, the infonnaiion is fairly staled in 
nil material respects in relation to the financial staiemenis as a whole, fhe Statistical hddrmaticm and 
Supplomcntai'y lufonuaiion sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in die 
audit of the basic fmancial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinirm or provide uny 
assurance on thern. 

New Orleans, Uouisiana 
May 20, 2011 
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si:wKRA(;i-: & VVATKK BOARD OF NKW ORLKA.NS 

MANAGt:iVlKNT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
YKAR KNDKD DKCKMBKR 31, 2010 

fhis section of the Sewerage Si Water Board of New Orleans' ((he Board) annual financial report presents 
a discussion and aiudysis of the Board's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended December 
.1 L 2010. Please read it in conjunction wiih the Board's finaEtcial statements, which Ibllow this section. 

FINANCIAL mCaiLIGUTS 

Recovery from Hiu'ricanc Katrina and the resulting Hooding continued to be the most significant event lo 
occur din-ing 2010. Repairs to water, sewerage, and drainage syslctns. building repairs, and vehicle i\ni.\ 
cqin"pment loplacemcnJs continued ihroughonl 2010, 

Kiitei pri.se F'tind 

The major highlights in the Board's enterprise fund were as follows: 

2010 

• fhe r^oard's additions to its major systems approximated .Sbl6..*> million. 

• fhe Sl'UA project which is a major upgrade lo the drainage systcni by the Corps of l-'nginccrs 
resulted in additions of approximately S32.6 million to work in progress diu'ing the year. 

• federal l-jnergency Management Agency (ITIMA) Disaster Ptiblic Assistarice grants expended 
itiialccl a[iproximnlcly I>l7.'i million, of which approximately S8.6 million were capital 
ct>nirihutions and approximately $8.7 million wore for operating i\\K\ maintenance expenses. 

2009 

Ihe Btjard's additions to its majtM'.systems ajiproximalod SI JJO.4 million. 
The Srd..,A project which is a major upgratle to the drainage system by itic C'orps o\' Lnginccrs 
resulted in additions of approximately S23.*-> millioii to work in progress tlinang the year, 
federal I-mcrgcncy Management Agency (fl-'MA) Disaster Public A,>sisiance grains expended 
totaled appr<>xiniatcly $49.9 million, of which approximately ST̂ O.f million were capital 
contributions and approximately .$19.4 million were for operating and mainteuanee expenses. 
"Ihc B<iard refunded the ,S24,030.000 Sewerage Service Kcfimding Bond .Anticipation Notes. 
Series 2006. using the proceeds of the S23,.'>7.S.000 Sewerage Service Revenue Refunding Bonds 
Series 2009 iuul $2,161.56.5 of excess debt service reserve funds. As part ol'the reftmding. the 
Board paid SI. 172,452 of bond costs, which arc amorti/ablc ihrough the date of maturity of the 
bcmds. The bonds are secured by a pledge of revemies i>f the Sewerage bimd. 



PciLsioii Trust Finul 

2010 

fhe major highlight in the Board's pension trust fund was the Ilnancial pcrfornumcc in the slock niarkct 
as compared to 2009. The apincciaii^.m of the /air market value of investments was $19.2 million 
compared to $29.0 millit>n in 2009. The plan net assets available for benefits increased to .$196.5 million. 

2009 

fhe major highlight in the Board's pension trust fund was the strengthening financial pcrfornuuicc in the 
slock market as compared to 2008 and the resulting appreciation of $29.0 million in the market value of 
the investments held by the plan during 2009, as opposed lo the depreciation of S60.7 million in the 
market value of the investments during 2008. fhe plan net a.s.scLs available for benefits increased to 
SI84.8 million. 

OVFkVIFW OF TIIF FINANCIAL STATLMFN TS 

This finaneial rep(M-t consi.^ts of \'\\'t:: pans: management's discussion and analysis (this seciion). the 
financial slaicnients. the notes lo the financial stalemcnts. required supplementary information, and other 
supplementary informalion. 

(iovernment-wide Financial Statements - Fnterpi i.se Fund 

"fhe BoaixPs principal activities of provitling water, sewerage, and drainages .services arc accounlctl for in 
a single propricuiry fund • the enterprise fimd. I'.nlcrprisc funds are used lo report business activities. 
Since the enterprise fund is the Board's single aciivitv^ iis financial .statements are presented as the 
Bt)ard's government-wide financial statements. 

fhe financial staiemenis provide both long-lerm und short-term infonnatioji alxuil the Boartfs overall 
financial status, fhe financial staientenls also include notes that explain some of the informaticMi in ihc 
financial statements ami provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required 
supplementary information and oiher supplementary informalion that further explain and support ihe 
iidbrmation in the Ilnancial staiemenis. 

fhe lioard's Ilnancial stalemcnts are prepared on an accrual basis in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (Ci.AAP) as applied lo govermneiU units. 
Under this basis of accounting, rcvvmics are rccogni/ed in the peric^l in which ihcv are earned, expenses 
are recogni/ed in the period in which they arc incurred, and depreciation of assets is recognized in the 
Statements of Revenues, Bxpcn.scs, and Changes in Net .Assets. Al! assets and liabllilies a.s.sociaied with 
the operation of the Board are included in the Statements of Net Assets. 

'fhe Statement of Nel Assets reports the Boanl's net asseis. Not assets - ihe difference between the 
Board's assets and liabilities - are one way to measure the Board's financial health or position. 

ib4 



Fund Financial Statements - Pen.sion Trust Fund 

fhe Board's fimd financial staiemenis eonsisi of its pension trust i\m<\. As a fiduciary lund. ihe pension 
trust fimd is held for the bcnelll of employees and retirees of ihe Board. *fhe pension trust fund is not 
reilcelcd in the goveriniKMii-wide financial^ because the resources are not available to the Boartl for its 
activities. 'I he accounting for the pension trusl fund is much like that used by ihe enterprise fimd. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF TIIK BOAKI) 

KNTLRPRISF FUND 

2010 Net .A.ssets 

ihe Board's loud asseis at December .il. 2010 were approximately $1.9 billion, a 5% increase Worn 
Deeeniber 3 1. 2009 (see fable A-1). 
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1'he increase in lota! assets t)f $82.7 million resulted primarily due to an increase in property, plant, anti 
ctjuipmciU of SI 11.1 miilit>n. offsei by a decrease in investments rcstricicd ibr capital projects of $ 12.1 
millit^i. Current liabilities increased by $28.2 million due lo additional borrowings under the Cooperative 
laideavor Agreement with the State ol' Louisiana as described in Note 13 lo die fmancial statements. 
Long-term liabilities decreased by S40.0 million in 2010. as compared to 2009 due to the partial 
Ibrgiveness oi' the Special Comtnunity Disaster Loan granted by the U.S. Department of llomcland 
Security in the amount of principal of S36.8 million and accrued interest of ,S4.6 million. 
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2009 .Net A.s.seis 

The Board's loial assets at l.^ecember 31. 2009 were approximately $1.8 billion, a 3.7% increase from 
December 3 1. 2008 (sec Table A-2). 
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"fhe increase in total assets ol'S65.7 million resulted primarily due to an increase in property, plant, and 
equipmenl of S94.6 million, offset by a decrease in investments resiricied for construction of $47.2 
million. Current liabilities decreased by $25.5 million, imd long-term liabilities increased by $24.8 
million in 2009, as comparetl to 2008 due lo the refunding of the Sewer Revenue Bonds Anticipation 
Notes. Series 2006, in the amount of S24.0 million and the issuance of the Sewer Service Revenue 
Refimding Bonds, Series 2009, in the amounl of S23.3 million. 

2010 Changes in Net Assets 

The change in net assets for the year ended December 3 1. 2010 was an increase of appri>ximately .S94.5 
million, as opposed to an increase in net assets oi' approximately $66.4 nn'llion for the year ended 
December 31. 2009. The Board's total operating revenues increased by 7.4% to approximately ^130.1 
million, and total operating expenses increased 0 3 % to approximately S170.8 million. The changes in 
net asseis are detailetl in fable .A-3; operating expenses are detailed in fable A-4. 
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Capital contributions from federal grants antl construction of lioard property was approximaiely S49.0 
million resuliiiig primarily from capital additions reimbursable under the IT-MA Disaster Public 
.Assistance grant of approximately S17.3 million and approximately .S32.7 million of capital eomribulions 
by the Army C!orjis oi'i'ngineers. Operating aisd mainlenance grants decreased in 2ni(i to S9.4 million 
due to the reindnirsement in 2009 of expenses incurreti from 2005 to 2009 for water and sewer sysiem 
point repairs under the I'fvMA Disaster Public Assistance grant. Reimbursements in 2010 were for 
expen.sos incurred in 2009 and 2010. 
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The decrease in transmission and distribution expenses in 2010 of $5.5 million or 25.9% is primarily di\e 
to a deerea.se in expenses under a paving contract, 'fhe deerea.se in mainlenance of general plant in 2010 
of SI.4 million or 5.6% rcsidted primarily from a decrease in cost of high pressure gas and a decrease 
in salafies and o\'cnime. 'I he increa.'̂ e in .AdministraiitJn ;ind Gcnend in 2010 of $2.6 million or 18.9% 
resulied primarily from an increase in insurance as well as an increase in the purchase of parts and 
materials. i*rovisions for doubtful accounts increased by approximately S4.0 million, or 445.7%, in 2010 
as a result of an inerca.se in new closed accounts in 2010. Provisions for claims increased by $3.1 million 
in 2010 as compared iti 2009, Claims expen.sc viwiea due to llic number and severily oJ'llie claims during 
any period, 'fhe increase is due primarily lo an increase in reserves recognized during 2010 offset by 
claims pa>inenis made during 2010. 

2009 Changes in Ntj A.ssets 

The change in net assets for the year ended December 3 t. 2009 v.as an increase ot" approximaiely S66.4 
million, as opposeti to a decrease in net asseis of approxintalely $36.6 million for the year ended 
December 31. 2008. The Board's tola! operating revenues increased by 11.1'Mi to approximately $121.1 
million, and total Oj)eraling expenses increased 7.8% to approximately $170.0 million. Ihe changes in 
net assets are detailed in 'fable .A-5: operating expenses are detailed in Table A-6. 
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Properly taxes decreased by $3.5 ndllion in 2009 due U) uncollected prior vear receivables wriUen off in 
2009. 
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Capital eomribulions from federal grants and construction of Board properly was approximately $60.3 
million resulting primarily from capital atldilions reimbursable under the 1-TlMA Dfsaster Public 
Assistance grant of approximately $30.5 million and approximately $23.9 million of capital contributions 
by Ihc Army Corps of lingincers. In 2008. the Board had grant revenues of approximately SIR. I million 
ofi'set by a wriie oiT of approximately $48.0 million of receivables due to IT.-MA Disaster Public 
Assistance grant expenditures thai were disallowed or currently in dispute and subjeet to appeal. 
Operating and maintenance grants increased to $19.4 million in 2009 due lo the reimbin-sement of current 
and prior year expenses for water system point repairs under the T-TiM.A Di.sastcr Public Assistattee grant. 
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Ihc decrease in power and pumping expenses in 2009 of approximately $1.2 million or 8.7% is primarily 
due to a decrease in cost of natural gas. fhe increase in treaunent expenses in 2009 oi'$l.7 million or 
9.1% is primarily due to an increase in the costs of eheniieals. 'fhe increase in transmission and 
distribution expenses in 2009 of $2.4 million or 13.0% is primarily due to an increase in contractor cost 
ajid jnaierials. The increase in payroll related expen.ses in 2009 of $3.5 million or 1 1.2% is primarily due 
to salary increases in accordance \Nith Cily of New Orleans Civil Service and an increased number of 
employees, fhe decrease in maimenance of general plant in 2009 of $8.6 million or 25.8% rcsultcti 
primarily from lack of personnel to address repairs and lacks of fimd to purchase parts and malerial. 
Provisions for tloubifiil accounts increased by approximately $13.1 million in 2009 as a result ofcust(Mner 
receivables that were over-reserved afier llurricane Katrina in 2005. Provision.s for claims tlecrea.sed by 
$528 thousand in 200 )̂ as compared to 2008. Claims expense varies due to iho number and severity of 
the claims during any period, 'fhe decrease is due primarily to a decrease in reserves recogni/ed iluring 
2009 offset by claims payments made duiing 2009. 

Pr:NS!ON TRUST riJNI) 

20I0l*htn \ e ( As.sei.s 

'fhe Board's KUal plan net assets of its pension trust fimd at December 31. 2010 was apjiroximaiely 
$196.5 million, a 6.3%. increase from December 31, 2009 (see table A-7). Total asseis increased 7.4% to 
.$205.2 million. 
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liible .\-7 
Sfwcraiic & Wiilcr Itoitrd o!" New Orlcitns 

Pliiii Net /Vssets 

invcslincnls 
i{e<.viv;ihk-s 
Oilier iisscis 

•|ot;il ;isscts 

DROP pnrljcip:im p;iviibk-
lot:)) liuhilitie.< 

l*t<)ii nvl ;i.ssL>ts 

2010 

S K95,8I2 
20.L2(?9.292 

9f),285 
205.2.-10.285 

8.7.52.101 
8-752.10! 

-S 106,488.18-! 

2««<) 

S 764.'U)0 

190.17:^.79! 
.18,70.1 
•17.2-'19 

191,024.14."'! 

6.247..-JO^ 
6.247,5W 

S (84,776,544 

(l>cereasc) 

S 1.31.412 
\'i.^y.^f•.>o] 

1 9.1 
49,036 

14,216,142 

2.504.502 
2,504.502 

.? 11,711.640 

lucre :isL' 
(Decicji.^c) 

17.2% 
7.4'>ff 
0.5% 

I0.v8% 
7.4% 

40.I'M. 
-40. r ^ 

6..>'ir. 

' 

Plan net asseis increased by $1 1.7 million in 2010 priinarily due lo rcali/ed and mnealized gains on 
investments recognized in 2010. 

2009 Plan .\ct Assets 

'I'be F^oard's loud plan net assets of its pension trust fimd at December 31. 2009 was approNimaiely 
.SKS4.,S million, a 13.8% increase from Decembers!, 2008 (.see table .A-8). foinl assets increased 14.8% 
{oS191.0 million. 

V - . M M \ - H 

Sev\eia<fie & Wi i te i " l i u ;n t l ot ' .Ncw ()rU-:)ns 

r i j i i i .Net .'VvsL'ls 

Iitvc^llncnl^. 

KcLviv:ihk's 

Other jissci.-^ 

I'oliit :).sscts 

DROP p;i ! l ic ipi inl p i i> ; ibk 

Tuti i l l i ; }b i l i l ie .s 

Phm net HS.NL'CS 

2009 

S 764,400 

190,173.791 

:)S.703 

47.240 

l 'M.024,14." 

6.247.509 

6.247.59W 

S !84,77h,544 

20(»S 

S H b A M y 

i65.246.4:>4 

1 20,7.1,1 

274.4S.'̂ ^ 

l66.4IK.(jOf. 

4,0.14.240 

1.0.i4,2-10 

S !62..18.1,8.56 

( iH'Crci ise) 

S 112.046) 

24.927..157 

(S2,()."i0) 

(227.2.M) 

24.606.047 

2.21?.."59 

2.2n, :>59 

S 22.392.6SS 

In i r case 

(Dcerca.' ic) 

-1 .(vy:, 

I5 .PVM 

-67.0% 

-82.8*;^. 

I^.X';-,. 

,54.0';^, 

-.54.o';-;, 

1.1.8% 

Plan nei a.sseis increa.sed by $22.4 million in 2009 primarily due to realized and unrealized gains on 
investments reeomu/ed in 2009. 
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http://22.392.6SS


2010 Changes in Plan Net .Assets 

Inblc /V-9 
Sewt rn j i c A Water H o i i n i o f ;Ne\v <)rtc:in.»; 

(, 'h:ti inc i n Plan Net .\ssols 

.Addilioiis: 

C\r^I|•iI>u^il.>n^ 

Nt:t i iR'omcttn Mlv^J^llIK:m.s 

I'otid :tMitions 

UL'thiciioiis: 

Bcjiuli is 

i:niployt.'C loi i i i i i l f i 

J.-iiip!(»yi.r J)H(.>P ^•(uMnbuliou.s 

To ta l deduct ions 

Change i n net avsets 

Pliiii not assets. heLonnini: v)ryciii-

IMuii nci asscl^. eiui c i VLar 

2010 

S 7.iS6.:^35 

I9.934.';29 

27.121,264 

(11,461,132) 

(76,656) 

(3,87LK.i( i) 

(15.409.624) 

1 1.71 1.640 

184.776.544 

.S 196,488.184 

2009 

S 6,925.168 

29.699,396 

36.6.M.564 

( I I . I 1 0 , . M l ) 

(85.524) 

(3,006.01 i ) 

(14.231.876) 

22.302.688 

162.383.856 

S 184.776,544 

Increase 

(I>eerease) 

% 261.167 

(9.764.467) 

(9,50.1,300) 

(320.791) 

8.868 

(.865.S25) 

(1.177,748) 

( 10,681.048) 

22.392.(>88 

S 11.711,640 

I t ie ivase 

(Deer-case) 

3 .8% 

32.9','.a 

-25.0'^^. 

2.0';v> 

- IU .4% 

28.8%. 

8.3".-i. 

-47.7^''„ 

l3.rVi. 

h.yvi. 

Net income on investments decreased by $9.8 million or 32.9% during 2010 due to decrea'ijing 
perfornuuice in thu stock market as compared to 2009. 'fhe decrease in Ihe change in plan nel asseis of 
$\0.1 million resulted primarily from a decrease in unrealized gains on invesiments in 2010. 

2009 Chai»*3:es in Plan Net Assets 

Tah le A-10 

Sewerage & W a t e r lt<.tjrd o l N e w Or lcan.s 

CMian^c i n Plan Net .Assets 

.Additions: 

(.'iMiirihiitioiis 

Net inamie (Ml inve.siincnt.s 

'l<)tal add i t ions 

DetluciioLisi 

Hcncl l t^ 

limpk^yei.* iv iuiuls 

I'.inployee l ) k ( >P t:ijilir i l i i it ionS 

7( i ta l <te<Jue(i«ns 

Clhanue i n net assets 

Plan not a.sscl.s. he^yniiini^'.^'ycar 

P!ii[i Met asseis. end ut'yi-'in 

2009 

S 6.025,16X 

29.699.396 

36,624.564 

I 1 1.140.341) 

(85,524) 

(3.006.01 I ) 

(14.231-876) 

22.392,688 

162.383,8.56 

S I84.776,.544 

200S 

S 7.017.075 

(59J90.144> 

(52.172.169) 

(10.782,636) 

(133.779) 

(2.353.384) 

( I . \ 269 .799 ) 

(65.44 1.9(>8) 

227.825.824 

S U>2.383.856 

Ineiease 

(Decrease) 

^ (02.807) 

88,SS9.540 

88.79f),733 

(357,705) 

48,255 

(652,627) 
(062.077) 

87.834.656 

(65.441,068) 

S 22.392.1188 

Increase 

(Dcercase) 

150.2'M) 

-170.2'!-;. 

3.3'>u 

-36.1 ' ; . , 

27 .7% 

7.3'>o 

-134.2% 

-28 .7% 

13.8% 
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Nel income on investnienis increased by S88.9 milliDO or 1.50.2% during 2009 due to increasing 
performance in ihe slock markei as compared to 2008. fhe increase in the change in plan net assets of 
$87.8 million resulted primarily from an increase in unrealized gains on invesiments in 2009. 

C A P n AI. ASSKT AND DKBT ADMINISTRATION 

2010 Capita! Assets 

As of December 31. 2010, the Board had invested appro\inialely $2.4 billion in capital asseis. Net nf 
accmniilaied depreciation, the Board's net capital assets at Deeeniber 31. 2010 totaled approximately Si.7 
billion. This amounl represents a nel increase (including additions and disposals, net of depreciation) of 
;ippr<^\it?iatcly $ II I. I million or 6.9% over December 31, 2009. 

Al Deeeniber 31. 2010, the Board's budget for ils five \'ear capital improvements program loialcd 
appro.ximalely $2.9 billion inchidiiiii S303.9 million for water, $446.7 million for sewerage and S2.2 
billion for drainage. Due to certain rcgidalory find leg(sl<]live chijnge.s, iidditional capital improvement.s 
will probably be required, future capital iniprovemeni program e.xpciulitures may require the issuance of 
additional debt depending on the amount aiid liming of c.xpendiun'cs. .As of December 31, 2010, the 
Board has conniiitted or appropriated $68.5 million in investments for use in future capital projects and 
has appro.vinialcly .$206,000 of bond proceeds remaining for constrnciion. fhe capilal project 
invesiments are included in restricted assets. 

'fhe capital improvements budget for 2010 is $1.6 billion, including $66.6 million for projects which are 
expected to be funded by federal grants iwd programs. .Signii'icanI projccls incJmled in properly, plant 
and equipment in progress as of December 3 1. 2010 include ihe following: 

llurricane Katrina-related Repairs and Replacements 
.Soud]cast Louisiana Kiood Control Progr.om 

Sewer System Sanitation l-valuaii(.in and Rehabilitation Program 
Drainage Pmnping Stalion -vM 

1-astbank Sewer'I'rcalmeni Plant 
Westbank Sewer Trc;innenl PUm\ 

Sodium Hypochloriie liulk Storage/feed l-'acilily at. ihe Main Water Pinificaiion Plant 

See Note 4 for detailed capital asset activity during 2010. 

2009 riipit:ii .Assets 

As of December 31, 2009, the Board had invested approximately $2.2 billion in capital a.ssets. Nel of 
accimuilated depreciation, the L^oard's net capilal assets al December 3 1. 2009 totaled approximately $ 1.6 
billion. This amount represents a net increase (including additions and disposals, nel of depreciation) of 
approximaiely $94.6 million or 6.3% over December 3 t, 2008. 

At DecenUier 31, 2008. ihe lioard's budget for ils live year capital improvements program totaled 
approximately $2.9 billion including $238.6 million I'or water. $426..S million lor sewernge and $2.2 
billion for drainage. Due to ceriain regulator} and legislative changes, additional capilal improvemenis 
will probably be required. I'liture capital improvement program expcndilures may require the issuance of 
additional debt depending on the amount and timing of cxpentliiures. .-Vs of December 31. 2009. the 
fioai'd has committed ov appropriated $80.6 million in inve^;lments for use in future capital projects and 
has $6.2 million of bond proceeds remaining for construction, fhe capital project invesiments are 
included in restricted asseis. 
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'fhe capital improvemenis budget for 2009 is $646.4 iiiillion, including $304.9 million for projccls. which 
are expected to be funded by federal grants and programs. 

2(M0 Debt .'\dmini.stration 

The RoartI coniinues lo make its regularly scheduled payments on its bonds. During 2010. $14.6 million 
in principal payments were made. 

In December 2010. the Board was granted a partial forgiveness of the Special C'omtnunit\' Disaster Loan 
in the amounl of $36,790,000 of principal and $4,648,410 of accrued interest, in addition, the Board 
was also granted a 5 >ear extension. 

fhe Louisiana Department of I ieahh and 1 lospitals (the Dcpiulnient) has committed to loan the Board tip 
lo $3,400,000 to fund the installation of a new sodium hypchlorite storage and feed facility as welt as the 
installation of a new sludge line into the Mississippi River (project), 'fhe outstanding balance is $632,842 
al December 31 .2010. 

See Note 7 for detailed long term debt activii_\' din-ing2010. 

2009 Debt Administiiition 

fhe Hoiivd continues to make its regularly scheduled paynicnls on its bonds, Din-ing 2009. $37.3 million 
in principal paymenis were made. 

'flic Board entered into a Cooperative t-aideavor .Agreeincni with the Slate of Louisiana in .hily 2006 to 
borrow- up to $77..5 milliim from the Debt Service Assistance fund. During 2009, the Board matlc no 
additional draw downs on the kian program. 

F.CONOMIC KAC'I ORS AND RATIOS 

'fhere are continued signiHcani other revenues and expenses which impact the Board. Stale and federal 
grants related lo the disaster are expected io have a significant impact on 2011. laud I'l'MA debris 
removal, mitigation, and capital replaeemem grams are expected to exceed $355 million. Of ihis amiMmt, 
approximately $268 million has been recognized ihrough 2010. Ll-'M-A revenues will continue to be 
recogni/ed as buildings, systems, and other rein)bursable assets are repaired or replaced. In 201 1. ihe 
Board will recDgni/c additional portions ofthe.se revenues btit much of Ihe construction and replacement 
will not have been cotnpleojd and the revenues althougli mctj.snfabJc ntny not be readily avinliible due to 
the delays in actual receipts of l-l-MA funds. 

On March 21, 2007, the Board approved a series of live annual water rate increases beginning with the 
first increase on November 1. 2007 followed by foni'additit)nal increases lo be implcmcnied on .Inly 1 of 
each year, 2008 through 201 1. 'fhe New (.)rleans Cily Council approved the animal waier rate increases 
on October 4, 2007. 'fhe rale increase scheduled for .Inly 1, 201 1 is 5%. 

The number of open accounts has increased from apj)roximaiely 121,000 at the end of 2005 lo 
approximately 123.000 at the end of 2010. an increase of 1.3%. fhe number of open aceounis decreased 
significantly in 2006 and 2007. However, the number of open aceounis increased in 2009 liy 
approximately 7.100 and increased by approximaiely 5,000 in 2010. 

11-13 

http://ofthe.se


CONTACTING THK HOARD'S I INANCIAL MANACKiVHlNT 

'fhis fmancial reporl is designed lo provide our lx>ndholdcrs. pairt>ns. and other inierested parlies with a 
general overview of the Board's finances and to demonstrate the Board's accountability for the money it 
receives. If you have questions about this reporl or need additional ilnancial informalion, coniacl the 
Sewerage & Water Board of New Orleans at (504) 585-2356. 
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StAVKRAC.i: AM) WATKK BOARD Ol MAV ORLKANS 
s iATKMr:.\ IS o r M"r A S S K T S 

December 31, 2010 ami 2009 

2010 2009 
ASSI-;TS 

Noneiirrfnl assets: 

IVopLM-ty. plant unci cqiiipmenl S 2..^00.6.1L.^44 S 2.248.2.'?5.76n 

Less: Liecunniliiicl JcprcciiUion 67.^.1.5.1.12'J M ; I . X 4 3 . 4 I S 

l^ropcily. pkint and eqiiipmoiu. net I.715.47S.215 1.6()4,.>93..'i42 

Oilier jsscis: 

li.md issiianee et»sts 2.023.^72 2.122.%! 

Deposits 51.31.^ .^1.315 

Total other assets 2.074.'JS7 2.174,276 

IoEal noncuETenl a.s.sets 1.7i7..T53.202 1.606.566.61S 

Current assets: 

LJiircstrieleti: 

Cash l7,X."v2*?2 21.l.'iS.!>lS 

Accounts rceeivahic: 

(.luslomersdielorallowanee tbrdtuibiriil accounts) I4,7sri..i24 16.4X8.957 

Ta.\es 9.55.5.454 11.676.566 

Iniere.si 6.wS.̂  42.201 

(iranis .i4.74.i.67S 3S.! 22.491 

Miscellaneous .1.242.477 4.840.3X0 

In\entory of supplies 10..̂ >f)4.695 12.576.264 

Prepaid e\penses 690.260 691.05X 

Total uineslncled 9I.222.I6;> l05.596,X.i5 

Ke.sirieied invL-sinicnis: 

Capital pi-aJLCts 6S..SI3,08S X0..S94,752 

Consii-uetinii fund.s 20S.7'>2 6.221.(i4l 

Debt servi(.L-reserve ;0.774,SSr. .Mt.040.67() 

Customer deposits ?,97*J,97X 6,550.XS5 

I iealth insLiianee reserve 5.23.3.1.̂ X .xl9S.970 

Other 212.iK)() 212.000 

Tutal le.siricled I 14.9I8.X76 12S.X18.9IX 

lotal euitent assets 206.141.(VV) 234.415,753 

Totai as.sels .S 1 .W23.694.241 $ 1.84(1.9X2.371 

11-15 

http://14.9I8.X76
http://12S.X18.9IX
http://W23.694.24


SIAVKKA(;K A N D WATICk BOARD Ol- NKW ORl.KA.N'S 
SI A ILMKN rS OK NKI AS.SKrS 

(C'onti i i i icd) 

2010 2009 

NK r ASSI : IS A N D L I A l t l L I ' i IKS 

Net .̂ s-set.s: 
Invested in eapiial assets - IK-I o f related debt .S l.4X(t.33".010 .S 1.367.13(j.463 

Restricted l o r 

!.>ebl service 32.774.XSO 30.040.670 

Capital projeets i 109.1 .M .324) (X 1.717.627) 

Total resti-ieted I'or net as>eis (76.376.444) (5 i .676.957) 

"lot:il net assets L40y.962.566 1.315.453.506 

Liaoii i i ies: 

I-oUii-ierin i iabil it ies: 

Claims payable 4,302.36^ 4.33X.I26 

Nel pen.siun obliyal ion 4.976.053 I.KX5.642 

(.>ine:- pnsii-etiiement benefits liabili lv 33.l)69.f)S7 24,474,(.i6l 

Bi.)nds payable [net oieurrent maturil ies) 2I3.9X4.W7 228.87X.520 

Speciiil (.nninuiMiO Di.sastei lonn pi^ahle 25.166.747 61.956.747 

Deb! Serviee Assistanee hund loan payable 77.46ti.393 77.460.303 

Iota; loni:-ienn liabil it ies 358.959.646 39X.99"5.480 

C^urreiil l iahili l ies [payable lii^m eurreni unresiricted assets): 

Aeeounis pa\ab!e 36.228.266 39.284.548 

Due lo Cily o f New Orleans 107.414 106.332 

Due LO other govemmenisfNuic 13) 5'y.Nf 9.408 2S.98X.864 

Retainers and estimaies payable 1.970.811 1.523.443 

1 )ue in pi::ision trusi fund 1 I X,517 58.158 

'\cerued salaries 1.220.5OX 1.096.653 

.'\eerued vaealiun and sick pay 10.268,334 ll.i.048.113 

Claim.spavahle I(>.727.062 16.265.665 

(nher l iahil i l ies 2.955.625 5.877.666 

\:').425.H^i5 103.249.442 

Current liabilities (pavabic truni eurreni rcsirieleU asseis): 

Aeertied interest 041. L'P 993.480 

Hoiids payable I5,360.n0() I4.6f)5.000 

Retainers and estiniaies payaiilc 1.065.069 1.136.569 

Clu.'.atmerdepD-Niis 7.970.97s 6,550.885 

lo ia le i i r renl l iahi l i l ies 154.772.020 126.535.376 

nial babllities 513.731.675 525.528.865 

25,346.184 

1.54.772.020 

513.731.675 

% 1.923.694.241 

23,285.934 

lo ial !;et assets ai-d l iahil i l ies % 1.923.694.241 S 1.840.982.371 

.See aeeompanyiiiti ncies \n nnaneial statements. 
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.si:\\ I:RA(;I: AND \VA J I:R BOARD OI .M:\V OKLI;ANS 
.SIAII:\U:MsOKKKVi-:Mir.s, TXPHNSKS AND C H A N C K S IN \ n ASSKTS 

Toi- the vcais ended December 3 1 . 2010 iind 2009 

Operating revenues: 

Sales (tlWaler and delintjuent lees 

Suweratie sen.it;e ehaiiies 

r i tnnbing inspeeiion and lieense lee? 

Other revenue 

I'oial 0|ieiiiii;u; revemies 

2010 U)09 

55.079.772 
69.534.779 

746.426 

4.702.753 

130.063.730 

50.677.054 

66.102.946 

484.448 
3.814..564 

121.079.012 

Opcrnlini', I ApL-u.ses: 

power and punip i "^ 

ficalmoni 

Iraiismission and distrihniinn 

CusiouiOr acfounls 

Customer serviee 

.Adininistralit.'n aiul ;jeneral 

Payroll related 

.Vlainferiarree uf uenerai' phn i 

Depreciation 

Ainonization 

Pn)visi^)n rordoubitui aectninis 

Prow.sinn lor elaiiii.-: 

Tolal upcraiing CNpenses 

Operatiny luss 

Noo-op^raliiiii revenues (eNjvjnses): 

Three-niitl lax 

Si.\-mil! ix< 

Nine-mill la.\ 

1 wo-niii l lax 

Other ia\cs 

(.Ipeiaiini! and maintenanet; i.'.raru-' 

IntereM uKiMn;.-

Î uet•e t̂ e.xpense 

r'or^iivenessorC^omnamii;. Disaster Loan ( \o ie 6) 

4'oial noij'Opeiaiii'iU r^vjnues (espouses) 

fneoine before L-apiiai e-.)JHf)b(:{it)ns 

Capital eomribulions 

CJuinui; ipi nel assets 

Nci a.s,sets; 

Ikii innins: nl year, as lesuued (Noic I4.j 

i'lnd oi'ycar 

See aeeompanyini.! ne.us io i'aianeial staiemenis. 

13.606.851 

19.029.752 

I5.9I5..161 

3.314.887 
3.386.33X 

16.060.1)32 

33.616.025 

23.438,848 
35.216.611 

164,415 

4.855.325 
3,186.714 

170.701.l.sO 

{40.727,429} 

I0.37X.06'.1 

10,498.580 
15.672.791 

1.045 
3 3.V 795 

9.367.040 

274.323 

(1.6X7.603) 

41.•138,410 

86. 

.15.549,912 

48.959.148 

94.509.060 

1.31,5.453..506 

% 1.409.962.566 

I2.050.7XX 

19.910.55? 

21,466.523 

3.04l.*i36 

3.417.239 

13.504.125 

35.0X5.953 

24.828,902 

34.602.628 

140.917 

880.81 I 
58.860 

169.991.239 

(4X.9I2.227) 

10..̂ >02.545 

10.410.524 

15.485.030 

371.(M)6 

10.373.1X5 

X85.723 

(1.766.553) 

55.OM.46n 

6.140.233 

60.298.230 

66.-H 7.463 

1.240.6(16.043 

S 1.315.453.506 
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SfAVKRAGi : AND \ V A i r : R B O A K D OK NFAV OULKANS 

STA I KMKNTS OK CASH KLOWS 

F,NTI:RI>UI.SK. ruND 
For the vcar.s tniJcd December 31, 2010 and 2009 

:010 2009 

Ciish Oovv.s from operating activities 
Cash received from ctiMomcrs S 121.465.940 S 120,128,884 

Cash payments to suppliers for goods aitd services (53.627.059) (67/)05.381) 

Cash payments to employees for services (60.626,567) (62.192.851) 

Other revenue 7.047.082 -1-542,729 

Net cash provided by (u^cd in) operating activilie.^ U.259.396 (5.426.619) 

Cash Hows from noncapital financing activities 

Proceeds front property ta.scs 39,005,383 35.215.937 

Proceeds from federal operating and maintenance grants 2.772.396 16.600.789 

Cash paid lo an other government (Note 14) (2.998,836) (18,098,192) 

Nel casli provided by noncapital financing activities 38.778,943 33.718.534 

Cash flou's from capital and related Iniancing activities 

Acquisition and construction of capital asseis (137.553.918) (106,953.016) 

Principal payments on bond.s payable (14.605,000) (37.300.000) 

Proceeds IVom bonds payable 632.842 23.040.889 

Payments Ibrbond issuance costs (65.126) (1.172.452) 

Interest paid on bonds payable ( L ^ 104.662) (14.226,040) 

Proceeds IVoin construction fund, nel (Note 14) 33,829.380 18,158.437 

Capital contributed by developers and federal grants 58,93 L505 38,187.800 

Net cash used in capital and related llnancing activities (71,934.979) (80,264.382) 

Cash Hows from investing acliviiies 

Payments ibr purchase of investments (*)40.970.805) (487.546.256) 

Proceeds from maiurilies of invesoiienis 950,605,004 595.423,939 

Investment income 241.870 1.454.458 

Nel cash provided by (used in) investing activities 9.876,078 109.332.141 

Nel increase (decrease) in cash (9.020.562) 57,359.674 

Cash at the beginning of lhe year 92.882.582 35.522.908 

Cash at Ihe end of the vear S 83,862.020 S 92.882.582 

Reconciliation of cash and restricted cash (Note 2) 

Current asseis-ca.sh S 17,833,292 S 2 LI58.918 

Resiricied assets -cash 66.028.728 71.723.664 

Total cash S 83,862.020 S 92,8X2.582 

(Continued) 
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.SK.WFKACi: AND \VA fFR BOARD OF NKW ORLFAN.S 

STATFMF.M S Ol CASH FLOWS 
(Continued) 

FNTFRPRISK FUND 

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 

2010 2009 

Reconcilialion of operating U>ss to net cash provided by (u.seti in) 
operating acliviiies is as follows: 
Operating loss .>; {40,727,429.) S (48,9!2.227) 

Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss lo nel cash 
used in operating acliviiies: 

Depreciation 35,216,611 .34,692.628 
Provision for claims 3JH6J\^l 58,860 

Provision fur doubtful accounts 4,855,325 889,811 

Amorti/ation 164.415 140.917 
Change in operating assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in customer receivables (3,149.693) 3J93.HS5 
Decrea.se in inventory 2.211.569 311,587 
Decrease in prepaid expenses 

and other receivables 1.598.701 1.342.004 

Increase in nel pension obligation 3.(N0,4 [ I 2.44 i .093 
Decrease in accounts payable (162,966,) (8,540.399) 
Decrease in accrued salaries, due to 

pension and accrued vacation and sick pay 413.435 375,841 

Increase in net other postreliremenl benefits liability 8,595,026 9.287.359 

Deciea.se in other liabilities (1.032J23) (898.978) 

Nel cash provided by (used in) operating activities S 14,259,396 S (5,426.619) 

See accompanying notes lo linaneiai staiemenis. 
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SFWFKAGK AND VVA lEk IJOARI) OF NFVV OULFANS 
STATFMFNTS OF PLAN NFT ASSF.TS 

PFNSIONTkUSTFUND 
December 31, 2010 and 2009 

Sec accompanying notes lo fmancial .suitements. 

2010 1009 

Asseis: 
Cash 
Receivables: 

Inveslmenl income 
Lmployee contributions receivable 

Due from oiher fund 
Investments: 

Mone> market 
LAMP 
Coiporate bonds 
r.quities 

'fotal assets 

895,812 764.400 

16,664 
22.232 
96,285 

437,299 
8,131,637 

70,950,030 
124.690 J26 

205.240,285 

27,794 
10,909 
47,249 

19.549,539 
5,863,469 

83.959J67 
80,80 LO 16 

191.024,143 

Liabilities: 
DROP participants payable 8,752,101 6.247,599 

'foial liabilitic; 8,752.101 6.247.599 

Plan net asseis available for pensioii bcneilts S 196.488.184 .S 184,776.544 
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SKWEKACF AND WATKK IJOARO OF NFW OULFANS 
STATEMF.NTSOF CMANCiLS IN PLAN NKi ASSF.TS 

PKNSION TRUS1' FUND 
For tlie yciirs ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 

20 H) 2009 

Additions: 
Contributions: 

I.jiiployec eomribulions 
Lmployer contributions 
City annuity and other transfers in 

'foial eoniribiitions 

S LI 90.714 
5,146,081 

S49.540 
7.186,335 

L16L744 

5.247.031 
5I6..'̂ 93 

6.925 J 68 

liivestniciH income; 
Iniere.sl income 
Dividend income 
Net appreciation 

Loss: invcstmcni expense 

Nel investmeni income 

'fotal addiiion.s 

87.048 
1,186,084 

19.206.614 

20.479.746 

(544.817) 

19,934,029 

27.I2L264 

29,818 
863.785 

28.992.832 
29,886.435 

(187,039) 

29,699.396 

36.624.564 

Deduciions: 
Benefits 
l.-mployee refunds 
fjiiplovoo contribLition.s to DROP 

(11.46 Li 32) 
(76.656) 

(3.871.836) 

(11.140.341) 
(85,524) 

(3.000,011) 

'fotal deductions (l5.409/i24) (14,231.876) 

Change in plan net assets 

Plan net asseis al be^inninii of year 

11.711.640 

I 84.776..544 

22,392,688 

162.383.856 

Phm nel assets al end of year 96.488,184 ,S 184.776..544 

See accompanying notes to Ilnancial suitemenis. 
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SEWF.UAGE ANU WATER HOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STA lEMENTS 

(1) Summary of Significant Accountint; Policies 

History and Organi/ation 

The major operation of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orlcan.s (the Board) is providing 
water, sewerage and drainage services for the City of New Orleans (the City). The Sewerage and 
Water Board of New Orleans was created by Act 6 of the Louisiana Legislature of 1899 as a 
-Special board independent of the City's government to construct, maintain and operate a water 
treatment and distribution systcni and a public sanitary sewerage system for the City. In 1903, the 
Legislature gave the Board control of and responsibility for the City's major drainage system and 
relieved the City of the duty of providing in its annual operating budget or otherwise for the 
maintenance and operations of the water, sewerage and drainage systems. 

In accordance with the Louisiana Revised Statutes (LRS) 33:4096 and 4121, the Board has the 
authority to establish the water and .sewerage rales to charge to ils customers, 'fhe rates are ba.sed 
on the actual water consumed and on the costs of maintenance and operation of the water and 
sewerage systems, including the costs of improvements and replacements, fhe collections of 
water and sewerage revenues are to be used by the Board for the maintenance and operation of the 
systems, the cost of improvements, betterments, and replacement,s and to provide for the payments 
of interest and principal on the bonds payable. On March 2 L 2007, the Board approved a scries of 
five annual water rate increases beginning with the first increase on November 1, 2007 followed 
by four additional increases to be implemented on July I of each year, 2008 through 2011. The 
New Orleans City Council approved the annual water rate increases on October 4, 2007. 

The Board has also been given the authority to levy and collect various tax millages which are 
used for the operation and maintenance of the drainage operations. .All excess revenues collected 
are made available for capital development of the system, 'fhe proceeds of the rate collections and 
ta.\ millages are invested in such investments as authori/.ed by the LRS. 'fhese itweslments are 
reflected in the combined statement of net assets, as "restricted assets," as they arc restricted to the 
purposes as described above. 

The Board is composed of thirteen members, including the Mayor of lite City, the two Council 
Membcrs-at-Large, and one District Counciln^an selected by the City Council, two members of the 
Board of Liquidation and seven citizens appointed by the Mayor. 44ic appointed members of the 
Board serve .staggered nine year terms. 

'fhe Board's accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally aeeeptcd in the United 
Slates of America as applicable to utilities and to governmental units. The following is a sunuiiary 
oflhe more signineant policies. 

(^) Reporting Bntjty 

In conformity with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's definition of a reporting 
entity, the Board includes an enterprise fund and a pension trust fund for financial rei^orting 
purposes, 'fhe Board is considered a reporting entity ba.sed on the following criteria: 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(^) Summarŷ  of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(a) Responsibility for surpluses/deficits, 'fhe Board is solely responsible for its 
surpluses/deficits. in accordance with Louisiana Revised Statutes, no other 
governmental unit is responsible for the Board's deficits or has a claim to its 
surpluses. The Board's operations are self-sustaining; revenues arc generated 
through charges to customers and dedicated property taxes. Other than grants, no 
funding is received from the State of Louisiana or the City of New Orleans. 

(b) Budget Approval. The Board is solely responsible for reviewing, approving and 
revising ils budget. 

(c) Responsibility for Debt. The Louisiana Revised Statutes authorize the Board to 
issue bonds; .such bonds must bear on their face a statement that they do not 
con.stitute a debt of the City. The Board is solely responsible for payments to the 
bondholders. No other governmental unit is required by statute to make any 
payments to bondholders nor have any payments to bondholders ever been made by 
any governmental unit, except the Board. 

(d) Designation of Management. The Board controls the hiring of management and 
employees. 

(e) Special Financial Relationship. The Board has no special financial relationships 
with any other governmental unit. 

(f) Statutory Authority. The Board's statutory authority was created by the State of 
Louisiana as an independent governmental unit. Only an amendment to state statutes 
can change or abolish the Board's authority. 

The Board is a .stand-alone entity as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement 14, 77/c' Fimmckd Repori'msi, Entity. The Board is a legally-separate governmental 
organization that does not have a separately elected governing body and does not meet the 
definition of a component unit. As a result of a Louisiana Supreme Cout1 decision on March 21, 
1994, the Board was declared to be an autonomous or self-governing legal entity, legally 
independent of the city, state and other governments, created and organized pursuant to l.ouisiana 
Revised Statutes 33:4071 as a board, separate and independent of the governing authorities of the 
City and vested with autonomous or self governing authority. No other government can mandate 
actions of the Board nor impose specific financial burdens. The Board is fiscally independent to 
operate under its bond covenant and the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statute provisions. 

The City of New Orleans includes the Board as a eomponeni unit in the City's financial 
statements. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL S lA I EMENTS 
(Continued) 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(B) Basis of Financial Statement Presentation 

fhe Board's basic financial statements consist of the government-wide statements which include 
the proprietary fund (the enterprise fund) and the fund financial statements which includes the 
fiduciary fund (the pension tru.st fund). The operations of the Board are accounted for in the 
following fund types: 

Proprietary Fund Type 

The proprietary fund is used to account for the Board's ongoing operations and activities which arc 
similar to those often found in the private sector. The proprietary fund is accounted for using a 
fiow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all 
liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the statement of net assets. 
Nel assets are segregated into amounts invested in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted for 
debt service, restricted for capital projects and unrestricted. The Board's restricted assets arc 
expendable for their purposes, 'fhe Board utilizes available unrestricted assets before utilizing 
restricted asseis. The operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) 
in net assets, 'fhe Board maintains one proprietary fund type - the enterprise fund. The enterprise 
fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to 
private business enterprises-wherc the intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses, 
including depreciation) of providing goods or services lo the general public on a continuing basis 
be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has 
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is 
appropriate for capital maintenance. The presentation of the financial slatcinents of the enterprise 
fund follows the format recommended by the National Association of Regulatory Utility 
Commissioners (NARUC). 

The statement of net assets arrangement for a utility rcficcts the relative importance of the various 
accounts. "Properly, plant and equipment" is the first major category on the asset side, and long-
term capitalization categories of net assets are listed first on the liability side. CuiTcnt assets and 
current liabilities are assigned a relatively less important position in the center of the statement of 
net assets, rather than being placed first as in the statement of net assets of commercial and 
industrial enterprises. 

Operating revenues include all charges for service; other revenues include reconneclion fees and 
other miscellaneous charges. Operating expenses include the costs associated with providing 
water, sewerage and drainage services, hiterest income, interest expense and tax revenues arc 
presented as non-operating items. 

The enterprise fund is presented in the government-wide financial statements. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEiVIENTS 
(Continued) 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Fiduciary Fund Type 

'flic fiduciary fund is used to account for assets held by the Board in a tru.stee capacity or as an 
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. The 
Board maintains one fiduciary fund type - the pension trust fund. The pension trust fund uses the 
fiow of economic resources measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the 
operation of this fund arc included in the statement of plan net asseis. The pension trust fund is 
used to account for the activity of the Board's employee retirement plan. 

fhe pension trust fund is presented in the fund financial statcmcn(s. 

'fhe Board applies all applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in 
accounting for its enterprise fund and pension trust fund operations unless those pronouncements 
confiict with or contradict GASEi pronouncements. 

(C) Basis of Accounting 

fhe enterprise fund and the pension trust fund prepare their financial statements on the accrual 
basis of accounting. Unbilled utility service charges are not recorded as management considers the 
effect of not recording such unbilled receivables as not material. Propeily taxes are recorded as 
revenue in the year for which they arc levied. Plan member contributions are recognized in the 
period in which contributions are due. Employer contributions to the pension plan are recognized 
when due and the employer has made a commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and 
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms oflhe plan. 

(D) I ny(LSt n.i..en t s 

invesiments are reported al fair value, except for short-term invesiments (maturity of one year or 
ies.s) which arc reported at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded in a 
national or international exchange arc valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange 
rates. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair value. 

(il) Inventory of Supplies 

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by weighted average cost 
method. 

( '̂) Propeilv, Plant and fiquipment 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost, fhe lioard capitalizes moveable 
equipment with a value of S10,000 or greater, stationary, network and other equipment with a 
value of S5,000 or greater and all real estate, 'fhe cost of additions includes contracted work, 
direct labor, materials and allocable cost. Donated capital as.sets arc recorded at their estimated 
fair value at the dale of donation. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(1) Summar\' of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Interest is capitalized on propeily, plant and equipment acquired and/or constructed with tax 
exempt debt. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful 
life of the asset. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated 
depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in revenue 
for the period, 'fhe cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to operations as incurred and 
significant renewals and betterments arc capitalized. Deductions are made for retirements 
resulting from renewals or betterments. 

(G) Vacation and Sick Pay 

Vacation (annual leave) and sick pay (sick leave) are accrued when earned. Annual leave is 
accrued al the rate of .6923 of a workday for each bi-weekly accrual period for all employees on 
the payroll as of December 31, 1978. Employees hired after that date earn leave at a rate of .5 of a 
workday per bi-weekly pay period. 

All employees on the payroll as of December 31, 1978 receive three bonus days each year; all 
employees hired after that date receive three bonus days each year for five through nine calendar 
years of continuous service; six bonus days each year for ten through fourteen years; nine bonus 
days each year for fifteen through nineteen years; and, twelve days for twenty or more years of 
continuous service. Civil Service's policy permits employees a litnited amount of earned but 
unused annual leave which will be paid to employees upon separation from the Board. The 
amounl shall not exceed ninety days for employees hired before January L 1979, and forty-five 
days for employees hired after December 31, 1978. 

Sick leave is accumulated on a bi-weekly basis by all employees hired prior to December 31, 1978 
at an accrual rate of .923 of a workday. For employees hired subsequent to December 31, 1978, 
the accrual rate is .5 of a workday for each bi-weekly period, plus a two day bonus each year for 
employees with six through fifteen calendar years of continuous service, and seven bonus days 
each year for employees with sixteen or more calendar years of continuous .service. 

Upon separation from the Board, an employee can elect to convert unused sick leave for retirement 
credits or cash, 'fhe conversion to cash is determined by a rate ranging from one day of pay for 
five days of leave for the 1 st through 1 OOlh leave day to one day of pay for one day of leave for all 
days in excess of the 400th leave day. The total liability for unconverted sick leave as December 
3L 2010 and 2009 is approximately $14,300,000 and $13,783,000, respectively, 'fhe amounl 
included in the statements of net assets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 is $10,268,334 and 
$10,048,113, respectively, which represents the annual leave and the converted sick leave since 
virtually ail employees convert their sick leave to cash. The amounts for compensated ab.senccs 
include the salary cost as well as certain salary related costs, such as the Board's share of social 
security expen.sc. The following table summarizes changes in the Board's vacation and sick pay 
liability. 

Current Year 
Beginning of Earned and Changes End of 

Year _ Year Liability in Estimate Payments Year Liability 
2010 " " S I0.0'IS,I13 S " 3,676,970 S (3.456,749) S 10,268,334 
2009 S 9,435,109 S 7,239.848 S (6,6'26,S44) S I0,0-JS,113 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

( ') Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(H) Pension 

'fhe Board funds the accrued pension cost for its contributory pension plan which covers 
sub-staniially all employees. Annual co.sls are actuarially computed using the entry age normal cost 
method. 

(') Drainaue System 

In 1903, the f.egislature gave the Board control of and responsibility for the City's drainage 
system. The Drainage Sysiem was established as a department of the enterprise fund to account 
for the revenues from three-mill, si.x-niiil and nine-mill ad valorem taxes designated exclusively 
for drainage services. These revenues have been supplemented by inspection and licen.se fees 
collected by the Board. There exists a potential for additional financing by additional user service 
charges. E.xpenditures from the system are for the debt service of three-mill, six-mill and nine-mill 
tax bonds and drainage related operation, maintenaiicc and eon.struction. 

(J) Self-jnsuranee/Risk Management 

'fhe Board is self-insured for general liability, workers' compensation, unemployment 
compensation and hospitalization benefits and claims, 'fhe accrued liability for the various types 
of claims represents an estimate by management oflhe eventual loss on the claims arising prior to 
year-end, including claims incurred and not yet reported including estimates of both future 
payments of losses and related claims adjustment and expense. Estimated expenses and recoveries 
are based on a case by case review. 

{^) Capital Contributions 

Contributions from developers and others, and receipts of Federal, State and City grants for 
acquisition of property, plant and equipment are recorded as capital contributions in the statement 
of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. 

(L) Bond Issue Cost and Refinancing Gains (Losses) 

Costs related to issuing bonds are capitalized and amortized based upon the methods used to 
approximate the interest method over the life of the bonds. Beginning with fiscal years in 1994 
and thereafter, gains and losses associated with refundings and advance refimdings are being 
deferred and amortized based upon the methods used to approximate the interest method over the 
life of the new bonds or the remaining tenn on any refunded bond, whichever is shorter. 
Premiums associated with bond issues are amortized over the Interest yield method. 

(M) Cash Flows 

For purpo.ses of the statement of cash fiows, only cash on hand and on deposit at financial 
institutions are considered to be cash equivalents. Certificates of deposits, treasury bills and other 
securities are considered investments. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(t) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(N) Use of Restricted Assets 

When restricted and unrestricted resources arc available to cover expenses, unrestricted resources 
are first applied. 

(O) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management lo make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent asseis and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and 
expenditures during die period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The current 
economic environment has increased the degree of uncertainly inherent in those estimates and 
assumptions. 

(**) Net Assets 

The Board classifies net assets into two components: invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
and restricted. These components are defined as follows; 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - 'fhis component of net assets cottsists of capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding debt attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. If there arc significant unspent related 
debt proceeds at year-end, the poilion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not 

. included in this component of net assets. Rather, that portion of debt is included in the same 
component of net asseis as the unspent proceeds. 

Restricted - This component rcpoils those net assets with externally imposed con.straints placed on 
their use by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or constraints impo.sed tiy law through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation. 

(2) Cash and Investments 

The Board's investments and cash consist primarily of investments in direct obligations of the 
United States or agencies thereof and deposits with financial insiilutions. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(2) Cash and Investments (continued) 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to it. Statutes require that the Board's cash 
and certificates of deposit be covered by federal depository insurance or collateral. At December 
31, 2010, the Board's interest bearing deposits with banks consisted of cash totaling $47,846,038 
and ceniriciitcs of deposit of $38,278,393. At December 31, 2009, the Board's deposits with banks 
consisted of cash totaling $28,440,023 and certificates of deposit of $42,191,060. Of the cash bank 
balance at December 31, 2010 and 2009, $2,000,000 and $2,000,000, respectively, is covered by 
federal depositoiy insurance. The remaining amoimt of the Board's cash bank balances and all 
certificates of deposit for 2010 and 2009 were covered by collateral held by cu.stodial agents oflhe 
financial institutions in the name of the Board. 

In accordance with GASB 40, unless there is information to the contrary, obligations of the U.S. 
Government are not considered to have credit risk and do not require disclosure of credit quality. 

The following are the components of the Board's cash and investments as of December 31: 

2010 Unrestricted Restricted Total 
Enterprise Fund: 

Cash and money market funds $ 17,833,292 $ 66,028,728 $ 83,862,020 
Certificates of deposit 42,883,146 42,883,146 

17,833,292 108,911,874 126,745,166 
Invesiments 6,007,002 6,007,002 

'Fotal cash and invesiments at 
fair value S 17,833,292 $ 114,918,876 $ 132,752,168 

2009 Unrestricted Restricted Total 
Enterprise Fund: 

Cash and money market funds S 21,158,918 $ 71,723,664 $ 92,882,582 
Certificates of deposit 42,191,060 42,191,060 

2iri58,918 i 13,914,724 135,073,642"' 
Investments 14.904,194 14,904,194 

'lotal cash and investments at 
fair value S 21,158,918 $ 128,818,918 S 149,977.836 

'fhe composition and carrying value of investments is as follows: 

2010 2009 
Enterprise Fluid: 
LAMP $ 6,007,002 S 6,007,861 
U.S. Government securities and 

instrumentalities - 8,896,333 

S 6,007,002 $ 14,904,194 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEiVIENTS 
(Continued) 

(2) Cash and Investments (continued) 

2010 2009 
Pension 'frust Fund: 

Money market 
LAMP 
Corporate bonds 
Equities 

$ 437,299 
8,131,637 

70,950,030 
124,690,326 

$ 204,209,292 

19,549,539 
5,863.469 

83,959,767 
80.801,016 

190.173,791 

Investments - Statutes authorize the Board to invest in obligations of the U.S. 'freasury, agencies, 
and instrumentalities, commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poors Corporation or P-l by 
Moody's Commercial Paper Record, repurchase agreements, and the Louisiana Asset Management 
Pool (LAMP). In addition, the pension trust fund is authorized lo invest in corporate bonds rated 
A or better by Standard & Poors Corporation or AAA or belter by Moody's Investors Service, and 
equity securities. 

LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the 
State of Louisiana. Only local government entities having contracted lo participate in LAMP have 
an investment interest in its pool of assets. 'Fhe primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe 
environment for the placement of public funds in short-term, high quality investments. The LAMP 
porttblio includes only securities and other obligations in which local governments in Louisiana 
are authorized to invest in accordance with Louisiana R.S. 33:2955. Accordingly, LAMP 
investments arc restricted to securities issued, guaranteed, or backed by the U.S. Treasury, the U.S. 
Government, or one of its agencies, enterprises, or instrumentalities, as well as repurchase 
agreements collateralized by those .securities, 'fhe dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of 
L.AMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 days, and consists of no securities with a maturity in 
excess of 397 dtiys. L.AMP is designed to be highly liquid to provide immediate access to 
participants, 'fhe fair market value of investments is determined on a weekly basis to monitor any 
variances between amortized cost and market value For purposes of determining participants' 
shares, investments are valued at amortized cost. LAMP is subjeet to the regulatory oversight of 
the state treasurer and LAMP's board of directors. LAMP is not registered with the SEC as an 
investmeni company. 

Under the provisions of its benefit plan and state law, the Board's pension benefit trtist engages in 
securities lending to broker dealers and other entities for cash collateral that will be returned for 
the same securities in the future The cash collateral cannot be liquidated by the Board unless the 
borrower defaults. Ca.sh collateral is initially pledged at 102.58% oflhe market value of securities 
lent and additional collaicral is provided by the next business day if the value falls to less than 
100% oflhe market value of the securities lent. No collateral exposure existed as of IX-ccmber 31. 
2010 and 2009. 'fhe value of securities lent at December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $45,870,932 and 
$23.642,221, respectively. 'Fhe market value of the cash collateral at December 31, 2010 and 2009 
was $46,998,662 and $24,253,164, respectively. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(2) Cash and Investments (continued) 

Interest Rale Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rales will adversely 
affect the fair value of an investment. In general, the longer the maturity of an inveslmenl, the 
greater the sensitivity of its fair value lo changes in market interest rates. The Board has a formal 
investment policy that states that the investment portfolio .shcdl remain sufficiently liqidd to meet 
cdl operating and capital reqttirenients that may be reasonably anticipated and that maturities of 
investments are to be structured concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demand. As of 
December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Board's Enterprise Fund investments in U.S. Government 
Securities and Instrumentalities included U.S. Treasury Bills and Strips totaling $0 and 
S8,896,333, respectively, all of which had a remaining maturity of less than one year. 

Credit Risk - State law limits investments in securities issued, or backed by United Slates Treasury 
obligations, and U.S. Government instrumentalities, which arc federally sponsored. The Board's 
investment policy does not further limit its investmeni choices. LAMP is rated AAAm by 
Standard & Poor's. The Pension 'frust Fund's investment policy requires that fixed income 
investments be investmeni grade (BBB or higher as rated by Standard &, Poor's or Baa or higher as 
rated by Moody's. Bonds rated below BBB/Baa are not to exceed 15% of the portfolio and non-
rated bonds are not to exceed 1% of the portfolio. 

0 ) Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The Board has a single-employer contributory retirement plan covering all full-time employees, 
Ihe Pension Trust Fund (PTF). The Board's payroll for current employees covered by the PTF for 
the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $29,670,378 and $29,947,906, respectively; 
such amounts exclude overtime and standby payroll. Total payroll, including overtime and 
standby payroll, was $44,733,254 and $45,742,506 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 
2009, respectively. At December 31, the P'f F membership consisted of: 

2010 2009 
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and 
terminated eirtployees entitled to benefits but not yet 
receiving them 79! 771 

Current employees: 
Vested 
Non-vested 

'fotal 

The benefit provisions were established by action of the Board in 1956 in accordance with 
Louisiana statutes, 'fhe Board retains exclusive control over the plan through the Pension 
Conmiittec of the PTF. Effective January 1, 1996, the plan became qualified under Internal 
Revenue Code Section 401(a) and thus is tax exempt. 

526 
. 302 
828 

1,619 

585 
251 
836 

1,607 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEiVIENTS 
(Continued) 

(3) Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

The plan provides for retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. All benefits vest 
after ten years of service. Employees who retire at or after age si.xty-five with ten years of credited 
service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable biweekly for life, in an amount equal 
to two percent of their average compensation for each year of credited service up to ten years, 
increasing by (I) one-half percent per year for service years over ten years, (2) an additional one-
half percent per year for service years over twenty yeais and (3) an additional one percent per year 
for .service years over thirty years, for a maximum of four percent for each year of credited service. 
Average compensation is the average annual earned compensation (prior to 2002, less S 1,200) for 
the period of thirty-six successive months of service during which the employee's compensation 
was the highest. Employees with thirty years or more of credited service may retire without a 
reduction in benefits. Employees may retire prior to age sixty-two without thirty years of service 
with a reduction in benefits of three percent for each year of age below the age of sixty-two. If an 
employee leaves covered employment or dies before three years of credited service, the 
accumulated employee contributions plus related investment earnings are refunded to the 
employee or designated beneficiary. 

'fhe retirement allowance for retirees over age sixty-two is subject to a cost of living adjustment 
each January 1, provided that the member retired on or after January I, 1984. The adju.stment is 
based on the increase in the Consumer Price Index for all urban wage earners published by the 
U.S. Department of Labor, but is limited to an annual maximum of two percent on the first 
$10,000 of initial retirement benefits. 

Effective September 23, 1993, employers may transfer credit between the Board's plan and the 
City of New Orleans retirement system with fidi crcdil for vested service The Board and its 
employees are obligated under plan provisions to make all required contributions to the plan, 'fhe 
required contributions are actuarially determined. Level percentage of payroll employer 
contribution rates is determined using the entry age normal actuarial funding method. Employees 
are required to contribute four percent of their regular salaries or wages. 

The Board had attained full funding of the actuarially computed pension liability in 2000. 
Effective June 19, 2002, however, as a result of the adoption of several plan changes in accordance 
with the Board's reciprocity agreemetit with the City of New Orleans, the plan became unfunded, 
'fhesc changes impacted the plan's funding requiretnents by $20,333,835, which is being 
amortized over a 10 year period. Key changes adopted included; (a) amendment to benefit 
formula; (b) adoption of a "Rule of 80" retirement; (c) change in the years of scr\'icc required for a 
terminating employee to qualify for a later separation benefit from 10 years to 5 years; and (d) 
elimination of the exclusion of the first $1,200 of earnings from benefits and contributions. 

•fhe annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 
2009 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method, 'fhe actuarial assumptions 
included (a) 7.0% inveslment rale of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected 
salary increa.se of 5.0% per year. Both (a) and (b) included an infiation component of 2.0%. The 
actuarial value of assets was determined using a seven-year weighted market average. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENIS 
(Continued) 

(^) Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

The Board's net pension liability for the years ended December 31 was as follows: 

2010 2009 

Annual required contribution $ 8,358,739 S 7,591,495 
Interest on net pension obligation 131.995 (38,882) 
Adjustments to annual required contribution (260,226) 76,654 

Annual pension cost 8,230,508 7,629,267 

Contributions made (5,140,097) (5,188,175) 

Increase in net pension liability 3,090,411 2,441,092 

Net pension (asset) liability, beginning of year 1,885,642 (555,451) 

Net pension liability, end of year $ 4,976,053 S 1,885,642 

The net pension liability is being amortized over 10 years as of December 31, 2010, using the level 
dollar closed method and using the same interest, salary increase and infiation factors as the plan. 

Trend infonnation for Board and employee contributions is as follows: 

Fiscal year ending: 

December 31,2010 
December 31, 2009 
December 31, 2008 
December 3 1,2007 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

AnnunI 
Pension 

Cost (APC) 

8,230.508 
7,629,267 
7,336,034 
4,833,202 

Percentage of 
APC 

Contributed 

62% 
68% 
70% 
86% 

S 

s 
$ 
$ 

Net Pension 
(Liability) 

Asset 

(4,976,053) 
(1,885,642) 

555,451 
2.786,695 

The actuarially determined contribution requirement for the Board was 28.172% for 2010 and 
25.349% for 2009. The contribution requirement for employees is 4.0%. 'fhe actual Board's and 
employees' contributions (including contributions for transferred employees from other pension 
plans) for years ended December 31 were as follows: 

2010 2009 
Employer and other transfers $ 5,995,621 $ 5,763,424 
Employee 1,190,714 1,161,744 

'Fotal contributions $ 7,186,335 $ 6,925,168 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(•̂ ) Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

'fhe funded status of the Plan as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, is based on the 
most recent actuarial valuation as follows: 

Valuation 
Dale 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

Actuarial 
Ace mod 
Liability 
(AAL) 

Unfunded 
Actuarial Accrued 

Liabililv 
ttJAAL) 

F'unded 
Ratio 

Covered 
Pavroij 

UAALasa 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Pavi-oll 

2010 S 230,2<)K,898 $ 277,273,632 S 46.974.734 «3.C}6% S 29.670,37S 158.32% 
2009 S 228,999,660 S 269,506,028 S 40,506,368 84.97% S 29,947,906 135.26% 

'fhe projection of benefits for financial reporting purpcses does not explicitly incorporate the 
potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations. 

DKOĴ  

Beginning in 1996, the Board offered employees a "Deferred Retirement Option Plan" (DROP), an 
optional retirement program which allows an employee to elect to freeze his or her retirement 
benefits, but continue to work and draw a salary for a minimum period of one year to a maximum 
period of five years. While continuing employment, the retirement benefits are segregated from 
overall plan asseis available to odier participants. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, 131 and 
119 employees, respectively, participated in the plan. The amount of plan as.sets segregated for 
these individuals was $8,752,101 and $6,247,599 as of December 3 L 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

A .separate report on the pension trust fund is not issued. 

(4) Property. Plant and fvquipment 

'fhe usolid lives of property, plant and equipment consisted oflhe following: 

Power anti pumping stations - buildings 57 years 

Power and pumping stations - machinery 40 years 
Distribution systems 75 years 
Sewerage collection 75 years 
Canals and subsurface drains 75 to 100 years 
'freatmeni plants 50 years 
Connections and meters 50 years 
Power iran.smission 50 years 
General plant 12 years 
General buildings 25 years 
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SEWEliAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

W Property, Plant and Eqtu'pmcnt (continued) 

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31: 

2010 

Cost 

Real estate rights, non depreciable 

Ptnverand pumping stations -

buildings 

Power and pumping stations -
machinery 

Disiribuiion systems 

Sewerage collection 

CanaLs and subsurface drainage 

'frcatnient plants 

Connections and meters 

Power tran.smiss ion 

Cieneral plant 

Cienen.ll buildings 

Total properly, plant and 

equipment in service 

Consiruciion in progress 
' fotal property, plant and 

equipment 

Aecumulatt 'd Dcprccint ion 
Power and pumping stations -
buildings 

Power and pumping stations -
machinery 

Distribution systems 

.Sewerage collection 

Canals and subsurface drainage 

'['leaimeni plants 

Connections and mctei-s 

Power transmission 

Ceneral plant 

Cleneral buildings 

' fotal aecumulaicd depreciation 

Net property, plant, and 

cqinpment 

Beginning 

lia lance 

$ 8.672,558 

324,753,695 

242.41.3,811 

123.973,792 

305,592,751 

310.073,401 

135,915,592 

45.303,549 

23,607/>6"S 

201,432,502 

7,586,547 

1,729,325,866 

518.909,894 

2,248.235,760 

96,445,428 

119,290-238 

42,939,809 

34.580,640 

59,701,589 

47,327.114 

27.483,093 

12,415.108 

198,073.320 

5,587,079 

643,843.418 

S 1,604,392,342 

Addit ions 

S 753,420 

6,267.473 

358,037 

2,581,897 

26,058,449 

7,986,975 

3,766,107 

1,309.074 

-
606,023 

-

49,687,455 

146,302.486 

195,989.941 

5,792,871 

6,069,296 

1,667,989 

4.379,593 

3,209,077 

2,793-634 

928,525 

472,152 

9,600,012 

303,462 

35,216-611 

$ 160,773,3.M) 

Deletions 

$ 

-

-
(1.232,308) 

(2.358,491) 

-
-

(186,367) 

-
(129.7.34) 

-

(3,906,900) 

(49,687,457) 

(53.594,357) 

-

-
(1,232,309) 

(2,358.491) 

-
-

(186,366) 

-
(129,734) 

-

(3,906,900) 

S (49,687,457) 

B id ing 

Balance 

S 9,425,978 

331,021,168 

242,771,848 

125,323,381 

329,292,709 

318,060,376 

1.39,681,699 

46,426,256 

23,607,668 

201.908,791 

7,586,-547 

1,775,106,421 

615,524,923 

2,390,631.344 

102,238,299 

125,359,534 

43,375,489 

36/)01,742 

62,910,666 

50,120,748 

28,225,252 

12,887,260 

207,543,598 

5,890,.MI 

675,153,129 

S 1,715,478,215 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(^) I^Qi2^)y.i Plant and Equipment (continued) 

2009 

Cas t 

Real estate riglus, luin depreciable 
P(Averand pumping stations- -
huildings 

Poweriind pumping stations -
machinery 

Distribution system.s 

.Sewerage concci ion 

Canals and subsurface drainage 

Trealnierit plajiLs 

Connections and meters 

Power transmission 

Ciencrnlplant 

CJcnend iniitdings 
TotLiI prnperty, pianl and 
et|utpmeiU in serviee 

Con.';(r«ctJt)n in piOLiress 
'fot:j! property, plant i\nd 
equipment 

Accuinuliitcd Depreciation 
I'tuverand pumping stations -
buildings 

l-'owcriiiid pumping stations -
niiicliinery 

Disuibiition systems 

Sewerage coUeciion 

CaUutls unci suti.suriaee thainage 

'I re at men T plants 

Coiuiections and meiej^s 

Powci transmission 

deneral plant 

('ieneral buildings 

*l'ot;il accumulated deprecialion 

Net properly, plant, and 
etjuipnienl 

Hegiiming 

Balance 

8.639.525 

293,6^12,441 

2.'^4,S33301 

121,666.788 

253.X43,2.S0 

281,960,990 

120,712,279 

12.276,929 

23,607,668 

189,714.618 

7.586,547 

1,578,484.-366 

544.089,093 

2.122.573.459 

90,747.517 

113.2.^0.781 

41.988,200 

32,598,935 

56,509.673 

•14,608,802 

27.249,874 

11,942,955 

188,607,718 

5.283,616 

612,768,071 

Add il ions 

33,033 

31.111.254 

7,580,510 

3,00-L2'i6 

53.901.2.76 

28,112.411 

15,20.3,313 

3,699.472 

11,813,306 

154,458,781 

130,362.767 

284,821.548 

.5,697,911 

6,059,457 

l,6.'.S,85i 

4.133,470 

3,191.916 

2,718.312 

906,071 

472,153 

9,5f>1.024 

303.463 

i4.692.62S 

Deletions 

(697,242) 

(2.151,765) 

(672,852) 

(95,422) 

(3.617,281) 

(155,541,966) 

(159.159,247) 

(697,242) 

(2.151.765) 

(672,852) 

(95,422) 

(3,617,281) 

Iind ing 

Balance 

S S.672,558 

32'1,753.095 

242,413,811 

123,973,792 

305.592751 

310.073.401 

13.5.9 i.'1,592 

45,303.549 

23.607.668 

201.432.502 

7,586„'^47 

1.729.325,866 

518.909,894 

2.248.235,760 

96.t'15,42S 

119.290,238 

•12.939,809 

34,580,640 

.S9,70],589 

47.327,114 

27,483,093 

12,415,108 

198,073,320 

5,587,079 

643.843.418 

,S 1.509.80.5,388 S 250,128.920 $ (155,541.966) S IM'}'1392,342 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continucil) 

(^) Pi'operty, Plant and Hquipment (cpntimied) 

Intei'esl capitalized was as follows for the years ended December 31: 

2010 2009 
fntcrest income S 126.102 S 490,410 
Interest expense (11,392,115) (11,310,812) 
Net interest capitalized S (11,266,013) S (10,820,402) 

(5) Customer Receivables 

Customer receivables as of December 3 1 consist of the following: 

Allowance 
Customer for Donbtfiil 
.Accounts Accounts Net 

2010 Water $ 15,313,694 S 6,314,224 $ 8,̂ )99,470 
Sewer 15,348.256 9,564,402 5.783.854 

30.661,950 S 15,878,626 $ 14,783.324 

2009 Water S 18,995,980 S 10,275,146 % 8,720,834 
Sewer 22,704,895 14.936,772 7.768.123 

41.700,875 % 25,21 K918 $ 16.488.957 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES l O FINANCIAL STATEIVIENTS 
(Conrinued) 

(6) Changes in Lonu-tcrm Obligations 

*'• Bonds Payable 

Bonds payable consisted oflhe following as of Deecinber 3 

5.00% to 6.25% sewerage revenue bonds, series 1997 
(initial average interest cost 5.36%), due in annual 
principal installments ranging from $1,100,000 to 
52,425.000; final payment due June 1. 2017 S 

4.125% to 6.125% water revenue bonds, series 1998 
(initial average interest cost 4.82%), due in annual 
principal installments ranging from $625,000 to 
SI.220,000; final payment due December K 2018 

4.125% lo 6.000% sewer revenue bonds, scries 1998 
(initial average inierest cost 4.82%), due in annual 
principal installments ranging from S')50,000 to 
$L910,000; final payment due .lune 1, 2018 

4.10% to 6.10% drainage system bonds, series 1998 
(initial average interest co.̂ t 4.84%), due in annual 
principal installments ranging from S370,000 to 
$760,000; final payment due December 1, 2018 

5.25% to 6.50% sewer revenue bonds, series 2000 
(initial average inierest cost 5.48%), due in annual 
principal installments ranging from 5820,000 to 
S2,205,O00; final payment due .lune L 2020 

5.00% to 7.00% sewer revenue bonds, series 20000 
(initial average interest cost 5.43%), due in annual 
principal installments ranging from .S640,000 to 
51,660,000; final payment due .lune L 2020 

4.40% to 6.70% sewer revenue bonds, scries 2001 
(initial average interest cost 5.02%), due in annual 
principal installments ranging from $1,100,000 lo 
52,455,000; Hnal payment due .lune 1. 2021 

3.00% to 5.00% sewerage service revenue bonds, scries 
2002 (initial average interest cost 4.36%: due in annual 
principal installments ranging from $1,635,000 to 
54,520,000; final payment due .lune 1, 2022. 

Principal Balances 
2010 2009 

4.460,00( S I6,115,00( 

8.345.0C 

5.155,00G 

2L530,00C 

9,i%.0( 

13,040,00( 14,360,00( 

5,675,000 

7,195,000 18.425,000 

13,060,00( ]4,01(),0(K 

:3,015.00( 

^1,105,00( 43.485,00( 
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SEWEIUGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(6) Changes in Lonu-term Obliij;alions (continued) 

y- Bonds Payable (continued) 

3.00% to 5.00% water revenue bonds, series 2002 
(initial average inierest cost 4.57%, due in annual 
principal installments ranging from 5945,000 lo 
53,658.000; final payment du'e December I, 2022. 

3.45% to 6.00%j drainage system bonds, series 2002 
(initial average interest cost 4.46%), due in annual 
principal installments ranging from $510,000 to 
52,155,000; final payment due December 1, 2022. 

2.20% to 5.00% sewerage service revenue bonds, series 
2003 (initial average interest cost 3.94%); dite in annual 
principal installments ranging from $140,000 to 
5395.000; tinal paymenl due June I, 2023. 

3.25% lo 6.00% sewerage service revenue bonds, scries 
2004 (initial average interest co.̂ t 4.26%); due in annual 
principal installments ranging from $945,000 to 
53,685.000; final payment due June 1, 2024. 

3.40% lo 6.25% sewerage service revenue refunding 
bonds, series 2009 (initial average interest cost 6.68%); 
chie in annual principal installments ranging from 
5680,000 to 51,945,000: final payment due June 1, 
2029. 

2.95% LADMM Loan Revenue bonds, series 2010A; 
due in certain percentage of total drawdown; final 
payment due February I, 2030. 

2.95% LADl-lH Loan Revenue bond.s, series 2010B; 
due in ceriain percentage of total drawdown; final 
payment due february 1, 2030. 

Plus: bond premiums 

'fotal 
Less: current maturities 
Bond payable, long-term 

Principal Balances 
2010 

22,695,000 

34,875 

597.967 

228.357,842 
987,155 

229,344,997 
(15,360,000) 

2009 

$ 26,290.000 .5 27,560,000 

5,135.000 15,850.000 

4.025,000 4,260.000 

25,690,000 27,010-000 

23,375,000 

213,984,997 

242,330,000 
LI 53,520 

243,483,520 
(14,605,000) 
228,878,520" 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES JO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(6) Changes in Long-term Obligations (continued) 

-̂ Bonds Payable (continued) 

'fhe changes in long-temi debt were as follows: 

2010 2009 

Balance, beginning of year $ 242,330.000 5 256.255,000 
Payments (14,605,000) (37,300,000) 
Proceeds ____632,842 23,375,000 

BaJance. end of year $ 228,35X842"" S 242,330,000 

'fhe annual requirements to amortize bonds payable, excluding ihe LAf)HH bonds payable (see 
note below) as of December 31, 2010, arc as followi;: 

Year 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016-2020 

2021-2025 

2026-2029 

5 

S 

Principal 

15,335,000 

16,085,000 

16,880,000 

17,730,000 

18,615,000 

96,365,000 

39,605.000 

7J 10,000 

227,725,000 

Interest 

5 11.017,567 

10,301,129 

9,533,338 

8,689,026 

7,796.182 

24,220,300 

5,557.978 

923-125 

$ 78,038,645 

5 

S_ 

Total 

26,352,567 

2(5,386,129 

26,413,338 

26,419,026 

26,411,182 

120,585,300 

45,162,978 

8,033,125 

305,763,645 

The amount of revenue bonds and tax bonds payable as of December 3 1, 2010, are as follows; 

Year 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016-2020 

2021-2025 

2026-2029 

Revenue Bonds 

S 14,035,000 i 

14,725,000 

15,455,000 

16,240,000 

17,060.000 

87,415.000 

35,395,000 

7,110,000 

Ta.\ Bonds 

; 1,300,000 It 

L360.000 

1,425,000 

1,490,000 

1,55-S.OOO 

S.950,000 

4,210.000 

20,290.000 

Total 

; 15,335,000 

16.085,000 

16,880,000 

17,730,000 

18,615,000 

96.365,000 

39,605,000 

27,400.000 

$ 207.435,000 5 40,580.000 5 248,015,000 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(6) Changes in Long-term Obligations (continued) 

a. Bonds Payable (continued) 

In 2009. the Board refunded the $24,030,000 Sewerage Service Refunding Bond Anticipation 
Notes, Series 2006, using the proceeds of the $23,375,000 Sewerage Service Revenue Bonds 
Series 2009 and $2,161,565 of e.\cess debt service reserve funds. The Series 2009 bonds are 
payable in installments beginning in 2010 through 2029. As part of the refunding, the Board paid 
51,172,452 of bond costs, which arc amortizable through the date of maturity of the bonds. The 
bonds are secured by a pledge of revenues of the Sewerage Fund. This refunding resulted in 
deci-case of debt service paymenis by $655,000 and an economic loss of $2,161,565. 

The indentures under which these bonds were issued provide for the establishment of restricted 
funds for debt service as follows; 

1. Debt service funds are required for the payment of interest and principal on the revenue and 
tax bonds. Monthly deposits on revenue bonds, excluding bond anticipation notes, arc 
required to be made into this fund from operations in an amount equal to 1/6 oflhe inierest 
falling due on the ne.xt inierest payment date, and an amount equal to 1/12 of the principal 
falling due on the ne.xt principal payment date. All debt service funds are administered by the 
Board of Liquidation. The required amoutit to be accumulated in this fund was $7,943,569 
and 57,659,179 at l')cccmbcr 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively; the accumulated balance at 
December 3 U 2010 and 2009 was $10,290,306 and $9,948,166 respectively. Monthly deposits 
lo the debt service funds were temporarily suspended due to debt service payments being paid 
directly by the Stale of Louisiana through a Cooperative Lndeavor Agreement and resumed as 
of June 2008. See note (6) d. for additional information. 

2. A debt service reserve is required for an amount equal to but not less than fifty percent oflhe 
amount required to be credited in .said month to the debt service fund until there shall be 
accumulated in the debt service reserve account the largest amount required in any future 
calendar year lo pay the principal and interest on outstanding bonds, except for the water and 
sewer bonds. The water bonds require an amount equal to the largest amount required in any 
future calendar year to pay the principal of and interest on outstanding bonds. There is no debt 
service reserve required for the 1998 and 2002 drainage 9 mill tax bonds, 'fhe sewer bojids 
require an amount equal to 125% of average aggregate debt service. The required amount to be 
accumulated in this fimd was $19,236,060 and 519,771,985 at December 31, 2010 and 2009 
respectively; the accumulated balance at December 31, 2010 and 2009 was 520.092.504 
520,092,504, respectively. 

'fhe Board was in compliance with the requirements of ils long-term debt agreements for the Water 
Department for the years ended December 3 1, 2010 and 2009. 

The Board is in compliance with the requirements of its long-term debt agreements for the 
Sewerage Department for the year ended December 31, 2010. The net operating revenues oflhe 
Sewerage Department for the year ended December 31, 2009 did not meet the bond indenture 
required debt service coverage of 130 percent. 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(6) Changes in Long-term Obligations (continued) 

b. Special Community Di.sastcr Loan Payable 

During January 2006, the Board entered into a long-term agreement with the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency under the Community Disaster Loan .Act of 2005 as a result of the major 
disaster declaration of August 29, 2005 for i-lurricane Katrina. The Board made draw downs 
totaling $61,956,747 as of December 31, 2009. The loan was for a term of five years, which may 
be extended, and shall bear interest at the latest five-year 'freasury rate at the time of the closing 
date oflhe loan, plus one percent. Simple interest accrues from the date of each disbursement. 
Paymenis of principal and inierest are deferred until the end of the five year period. As of 
December 31, 2009, approximaiely 55.8 million of interest was accrued. Intere.st rales and 
maturity dates for the draw downs were as follows: 

Maturity Dale Interest Kate Principal 
January 23,2011 2.66% ~ 
June 2L 2011 3.12% 
Augu.st27,2011 2.93% 

s 

s 

22,298.689 
6,013,905 

33.644.153 
61.956,747 

In December 2010, the Board was granted a partial forgiveness of this loan in the amount of 
$36,790,000 of principal and 54,648,410 of accrued interest. A total of $41,438,410 is included in 
forgiveness of debt on the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. In addition, 
the Board was granted a 5 year extension on the paymenl date. As of December 31, 2010 and 
2009, accrued interest on the loan was approximately $2.9 million and $5.9 million, respectively. 
Interest rate and maturity date for the loan are now as follows: 

Matin iiy [Jate Interest Rate Principal 
August 27,2016 2.93% S 25.166,747 

Operating revenues are pledged as security for the loan. Debt service requirements relating to the 
loan due in 2016 include 525,166,747 of principal and 53,672,379 of interest. 

c. LADHH Bonds Payable 

The Cir>' entered into an agreement with the Louisiana Department of l-lcallh and Hospitals (the 
Department) whereby the t^epartmcnt has committed to loan the City up to 53,400,000 to fund the 
in.stallation of a new sodium hypchlorite storage and feed facility as well as the installation of a 
new sludge line into the Mississippi River (project), 'fhe loan is to be advanced in incremental 
amounts as project costs are incurred. The indebtedness to the Department will be evidenced 
through the LADHH bonds payable and the City wilt pay the bonds in 20 principal iiislallmcnis, 
payable annually beginning no later than 2 years after the Closing Date (February I, 2010) or 1 
year after the completion of the Project. Each annual installment due is based upon a pre­
determined percentage of the ultimate amount of the borrowing that is not forgivable (.see 
forgiveness provisions in the following paragraph). The ultimate amounl of borrowings is not yet 
known as of fi)eccmber 31. 2010 since the project is under construction. Principal payments of the 
amount repayable are to begin February L 2011 but may be deferred for one year if the project is 
not completed by that date. Inlere.st on the bonds is incurred at the rate of 2.95% and payment 
thereof began August 1, 2010 and is due semi-annually thereafter. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOAIU> OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(6) Changes in Long-term Obligations (continued) 

c- LAIJHI1 Bond Payable (continued) 

A portion of the LADHH bonds payable is to be funded with amounts provided under the 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA), Up lo $1,000,000 oflhe ARRA Loan can be 
forgiven. The City received advances of $667,717 through December 31, 2010. Of this amount, 
$34,875 has been forgiven, and $632,842 is recorded as bonds payable at December 3 1, 2010. 

d. Debt .Service Assistance 

In July 2006, the Board and the State of Louisiana (the State) entered into a Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement whereby the State agreed to lend up to $77,465,247 from State funds on deposit in the 
Debt Service Assistance Fund, authorized by the Gulf Opportunity Zone Act of 2005 and Act 41 of 
the first Extraordinary Session oflhe Louisiana Legislature of 2006, to assist in payment of debt 
service requirements froin 2006 through 2008 due to disruption of tax bases and revenue streams 
caused by Hurricanes Kalrina and Rita. Draw downs on the loan will be made as debt service 
payments become due. No principal or interest shall be payable during the initial five year period 
of the loan. After the expiration of the initial five year period, the loan shall bear interest at a fwcd 
rate of 4.64 percent. Principal payments on the bonds begin in July 2012 and the loan will mature 
in July 2026. inierest is payable semi-annually on January IS and July 15 beginning January 2012. 

'fhe loan may be prepaid without penalty or premium. The Board has the right to request one 
extension of its obligation to begin paymenis under the loan not to exceed five years. As of 
December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Board has drawn down $77,460,393 on this agreement. 

Debt .service requirements relating to the bond are as follows: 

Years Ending 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015-2019 
2020-2024 
2025-2026 

Due to Citv of New 

June 

Orli 

30 

:;ans 

$ 

S 

Principal 
3,688,291 
3,859,428 
4.038,505 

23,183.384 
29,084,760 
13,606,025 
77.460,393 

$ 

_ 5_ 

Interest 
3,594,387 
3,423,251 
3.244,173 

13,230,008 
7,328,632 

954,477 
31.774.928 

'foial 
$ 7,282.678 

7,282.679 
7,282,678 

36,413.392 
36.413.392 
14.560.502 

$ 109,235,321 

'fhe Board bills and collects sanitation charges on behalf of the City of New Orleans (the City), 
'fhe Board is not liable for any uncollected sanitation charges. 

Additionally, amounts included in accounts payable due to the City were 56,680,474 and 
$5,130,226 at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(8) Property Taxes 

Property taxes arc levied by the City of New Orleans. Taxes on real and personal property attach 
as an enforceable lien on the properly as of Januaiy 1. Taxes are levied on January I, arc payable 
on January I, and arc delinquent on February I. 

The assessed value oflhe property is determined by an elected Board of Assessors. The assessed 
value for 2010 and 2009 was $2,678,381,864 and $2,599,466,404, respectively. The combined tax 
rate dedicated for the Board for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $16.43 and 
$16.03, respectively, per $1,000 of assessed valuation. These dedicated funds are available for 
operaiions, maintenance, construction and extension oflhe drainage system (except for subsurface 
systems). 

(9) Commitments 

a. Capital Improvements 

Al December 31, 2010, the Board's budget for ils five year capital improvemenis program totaled 
.52,934.895,000 including $303,893,000 for waier, $446,657,000 for sewerage and .$2,184,345,000 
for drainage. 

Due 10 certain regulator)- and legislative changes, additional capital improvements will probably 
be required. Future capital improvement program expenditures may require the issuance of 
addhional debt depending on the amount and timing of expenditures. As of December 3L 2010, 
the Board has committed or appropriated $68,513,088 in investments for use in future capital 
projects and has $205,792 of bond proceeds remaining for construction. The capilal project 
investments arc included in restricted assets. 

The capital improvements budget for 2011 is $1,553,352,000 including $66,562,000 for projects, 
which are expected to be funded by federal grants and programs. Significant projects included in 
property, plant and equipment in progress as of December 31, 2010 include the following: 

Hurricane Katrina-related Repairs and Replacements 
Southeast Louisiana Flood Control Program 

Sewer System Sanitation Evaluation and Rehabilitation Program 
Drainage Pumping Station if] 

Eastbank Sewer Treatment Plant 
Westbank Sewer Treatment Plant 

Sodium Hypochlorite Bulk Storage/Feed Facility at. the Main Water Purification Plant 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(9) Commitments (continued) 

b. Self-insiu'anee 

fhe Board is .self-insured for general liability, workers' compensation, and hospitalization benefits 
and claims. Settled claims have not exceeded excess coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
Hospitalization benefits are charged to payroll related expense. 

General liability claims are segregated internally by "claims" and "suits" depending on the scope 
and type of claim, and are handled by the Office of the Special Counsel and Administrative 
Services. Individual general liability losses have ranged from $100 lo $7,500,000, illustrating the 
volatility of this exposure. The provision for claims expense for 2010 and 2009 amounted to 
5653,320 and 54,1 15,223, respectively. 

Worker's compensation expense provision for 2010 and 2009 amounted to 51,775,225 and 
$309,679, respectively. 

'fhe hospitalization self-insurance benefits are administered by Blue Cross of Louisiana. The 
Board's expense provision in excess of employee contributions for 2010 and 2009 was 
approximately 512,412,240 and $12,868,061, respectively, and is included in payroll related 
expenses. 

Changes in the claims payable amomii are as follows (health payments are reflected net): 

Curi-ent Year 
Claims and 

Beginning Estimate Claim 
l-iscal Year of Year Change Payments End of Year 

2010 $ 20,603,791 $ 13,709,531 $ (13,282,991) $ 21,030,331 
2009 5 23,126,865 5 8,336,589 5 (10,859,663) 5 20,603,791 

'fhe composition of claims payable is as follows: 

2010 2009 

Short-term: 

Workers'Compensation 5 1.322,422 5 1,328,026 

Health liLsurance L871,500 2,046,601 

General Liability 13.534,040 .12,891,038 

'fotal short-term 16,727,962 

Long-term: 

Workers' Compensation 4,302,369 

fotal long-term 4.302,369 

Total $ 21.030,331 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(9) Cominitments (continued) 

c. Regulatory Matters 

The Board, as well as other utilities, is subject to environmental .standards imposed by federal, 
state and local environmental laws and regulations. The Board has entered into a consent decree 
with the United Slates which allows the Board to go forward with its major progratn to repair and 
rehabilitate the sewerage system, 'fhe overall costs o f lhe program are estimated at $408.2 million 
over a period ending in 2015. The Board is in compliance with the decree. 

'fhe Board is also participating in Federal financial award programs which are subject to financial 
and compliance audits by various agencies. No disallowed costs have been identified. As part of 
Federal and other governmental agency funding, the Board is required to match a portion of 
funding received, 'fhe Board believes it has sul'ficient funds to meet its matching requirements. 

d. Postempioymcnt Healthcare Benefits 

Plan Description - T h e Board's postempioymcnt benefit is a single-employer defined benefit plan, 
'fhe Board's post-employment medical benefits for retirees are provided through a .self-insured 
medical plan and arc made available lo employees upon actual retirement. 

The retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 30 years of service at any 
age; age 62 and 10 years of service; age 65 and 5 years of service; age 70 regardless of service; or. 
i f age plus service equals at least 80. Complete plan provisions are contained in the official plan 
documents. Currently, the Board provides post employment medical benefits to 585 retired 
employees. 

Contribution Rales - Employees do not contribute to their post employment benefits co.sts until 
they become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. The plan provisions and contribution rates 
are contained in the official plan documents. 

Fund Policy - Until 2007, the Board recognized the cost of providing post-employment medical 
benefits (the Board's portion of the retiree medical benefit premiums) as an expense when the 
benefit premiums were due and thus financed ihe cost of the post-employment benefits on a pay-
as-you-go basis, in 2010 and 2009, the Board's portion of health care funding cost for retired 
employees totaled $5,728,065 and $5,487,971, respectively. Effective Januar>' 1, 2007, the Board 
applies this amount toward the Net OPEB Benefit Obligation as shown in the following tables. 
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S E W E l ^ G E AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STAI EMENTS 
(Continued) 

(9) Commitments (continued) 

d. Po.'^templovment Healthcare Benefits (continued) 

Annual Required Contribution - The Board's Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is an amount 
actuarially determined in accordance with GASB 45. The ARC is the sum of the Normal Cost plus 
the contribution lo amortize the Actuarial .Accrued Liability (AAL). A level dollar, open 
amortization period of 30 years (the maximum amortization period allowed by GASB 43/45) has 
been used for the post-employment benefits, 'fhe actuarially computed ARC is as follows: 

2010 2009 
Normal cost $ 
30-year UAL amortization amount 
Annual required contribution (ARC) 5 

4,413,423 
10,346,047^ 
14.759.470 

4J95,288 
10,650,824 
15,046,112 

Net Post-employment Benefit Obligation - 1'he table below shows the Board's Nel Other Posi-
employment Benefit (OPEB) Obligation for fiscal years ending December 31: 

Beginning Net OPEB Obligation 

Annual required contribution 

Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 

ARC Adjustment 

OPEB Cost 
Contribution 
Current year retiree premium 
Change in Nel OPEB Obligation 
Ending Net OPEB Obligation 

2010 2009 

24,474,061 $ 

14,759,470 

978,961 

(1,415,340) 
14,323,092 

(5.728,065) 
8,595,027 

33,069,087 $ 

15,186,702 

15,046,112 

607,468 

(878,250) 
14,775,330 

(5,487,971) 
9,287,359 

24.474,061 

The following table shows the I3oard's annual post employment benefits (PEB) cost, percentage of 
the cost contributed, and the net unfunded post employment benefits (PEB) liability; 

JMscal Year Ended 
December 31, 2010 
December 31, 2009 

Annnal 
OPEB Cost 
$ 14,323,092 
S 14,775.330 

Percentage of 
Annual Cost 
Contributed 

39.99% 
37.14% 

Net OPEB 
Liability 

__(̂ As.setj 
5 33,069,087 
$24,474,061 
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SEWEIUGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(9) Commitments (continued) 

d. Postempioymcnt Healthcare Benefits (continued) 

Funded Status and Funding Progress - In 2010 and 2009, ihc Board made no contributions to ils 
post employment benefits plan. The plan is not funded, has no assets, and hence has a funded ratio 
of zero. As of January 1, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation, the Actuarial Accrued Liability 
(AAL) was 5184,174,734 which is defined as that portion, as determined by a particular actuarial 
cost method (the Board u.ses the Unit Credit Cost Method), of the actuarial present value of post 
cniploymeni plan benefits and expenses which is not provided by normal cost. 

2010 2009 

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 178,904,131 5 184,174,734 
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets (AVP) -__ -

Unfunded Act. Accrued Liability (UAAL) $ 178,904,131 $ 184,174,734 

Funded Ratio (AVP/AAL) 0.00% 0.00% 

Covered Payroll (active plan members) S 34,743,782 S 33,883,192 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 514.92% 543.56% 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. The actuarial 
valuation for post employment benefits includes estimates and assumptions regarding (1) turnover 
rate; (2) relirement rate; (3) health care cost trend rale; (4) mortality rate; (5) discount rate 
(investmeni return assumption); and (6) the period to which the costs apply (past, current, or future 
years of service by employees). Actuarially determined amounts arc subject to continual revision 
as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 

'fhe actuarial calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the Board and its employee plan members) at the time 
of the valuation and on the pattern of sharing cosls between the Board and its plan members to that 
point. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate 
the potential effects of legal or conlractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing 
lietween the Board and plan members in the future. Consistent with the long-term perspective of 
actuarial calculations, the actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that arc 
designed to reduce shon-term volatility in actuarial liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. 

Actuarial Cost Method - 'fhe ARC is determined using the Unit Credit Cost Method, 'fhe employer 
portion of the cost for retiree medical care in each future year is determined by projecting the 
current cost levels using the healthcare cost trend rate aitd discounting this projected amount to the 
valuation date using the other described pertinent actuarial assumptions, including the investmeni 
return assumption (discount rate), mortality and turnover. 

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets - There are not any plan asseis. It is anticipated that in future 
valuations a smoothed markei value consistent with Actuarial Standards Board ASOP 6, as 
provided in paragraph number 125 of GASB Statement 45. 
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(9) Commitments (continued) 

fl- Postempioymcnt Healthcare Benefits (continued) 

Turnover Rate - An age-related turnover scale based on actual experience has been used. The rates, 
when applied to the active employee census, produce a composite average annual turnover of 
approximately 7%. In addition to age related turnover, it has additionally been assumed that 10% 
of future eligible retirees will decline coverage upon retirement. The rates for each age are below: 

Age Percent Turnover 
~ 10.0% 

8.0% 
5.0% 
4.0% 

Post employment Benefit Plan Eligibility Requirements - It is assumed that entitlement to benefits 
will commence five years after earliest eligibility for retirement (D.R.O.P. entiy). The five years is 
to accommodate the anticipated period of the D.R.O.P. Also, if the initial eligibility for D.R.O.P. 
entry is prior to age 55, an additional one year delay has been assumed, and it has been assumed 
that members eligible for the "Rule of 80" retirement formula delay three years beyond that 
earliest retirement date. Medical benefits are provided to employees upon actual relirement. The 
retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 30 years of service at any age; age 
62 and 10 years of service; age 65 and 5 years of service; age 70 regardless of service; or, if age 
plus service equals al least 80. Entitlement to benefits continues through Medicare to death. 

Investmeni Return Assumption (Discount Rate) - GASB Statement 45 stales thai the investmeni 
return assumption should be the estimated long-term investment yield on the investments that are 
expected to be used lo finance the payirtent of benefits (that is, for a plan which is funded). Based 
on the assumption that the ARC will not be funded, a 4% annual investment return has been u.sed 
in this valuation. This is a conservative estimaie oflhe expected long term return of a balanced and 
conservative investment portfolio under professional management. 

Health Care Cost 'frcnd Rate - The expected rate of Increase in medical cost is ba.sed on 
projections performed by the Office of the Actuaiy at the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid 
Services as published in National Health Care Expenditures Projections: 2003 to 2013, 'fable 3: 
National Health Expenditures, Aggregate and per Capita Amounts, Percent Distribution and 
Average Annual Percent Change by Source of Funds: Selected Calendar Years 1990-2013, 
released in January, 2004 by the Health Care Financing Administration (www.cms.hhs.gov). "State 
and Local" rates for 2008 through 2013 from this report were used, with rates beyond 2013 
graduated down to an ultimate annual rate of 5.0% for 2016 and later. 

Mortality Rate - The 1994 Group Annuity Reserving (94GAR) table, projected lo 2002, based on a 
fixed blend of 50% oflhe unloaded male mortality rate and 50% of the unloaded female mortality 
rales, was used, 'fhis is the mortality table which the Internal Revenue Service requires to be used 
in determining the value of accrued benefits in defined benefit pension plans. Since GASB 45 
requires the use of "unblended" rates, the 94GAR mortality table described above was used to 
"tinblend" the rates so as lo reproduce the composite blended rate overall as the rale structure to 
calculate the aciuaria! valuation results for life insurance. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(9) Commitments (continued) 

d. Postempioymcnt Healthcare Benefits (continued) 

Method of Determining the Value of Benefits - The "value of benefits" has been assumed to be the 
portion of the premium after retirement date expected to be paid by the employer for each retiree 
and has been used as the basis for calculating the actuarial present value of OPEB benefits to be 
paid. The current premium schedules for active and retired are "unblended" rales, as required by 
GASB 45. 

e. Southeast Louisiana Project 

In 2010, the Coastal Protection and Restoration Authority of Louisiana entered into agreements 
(SELA PPA and SELA DPA) whh the Department of the Army for the Southeast Louisiana, 
Louisiana Project in Jefferson and Orleans Parishes (the Project). The purpose oflhe Project is lo 
provide flood damage reduction and interior drainage for Orleans and Jefferson Parishes in 
southeast Louisiana. The agreements set forth ihe obligations of the federal government and non­
federal sponsors, including the Board, regarding the construction and the operation, maintenance, 
repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of the Project. For the projects, the federal government is 
liable for 65% of the project costs and the non-federal sponsors are liable for the remaining 35%. 
Under the agreement, the Department oflhe Army, subjeet to the availability of funds appropriated 
by the Congress oflhe United States, shall design and construct specified work at 100% federal 
expense. The Board will be allowed to defer payment of ils required non-federal contribution of 
funds of 35% and to pay said contribution of funds with interest over a period of not more than 30 
years from the date of completion oflhe project or separable element oflhe project, 'fhe interest 
rate lo be used in computing the interest shall be determined by the Secretary of the Treasury, 
taking into consideration average market yields on outstanding marketable obligations of the 
United States with remaining periods of maturity comparable to the payment period during the 
month preceding tlie Government fiscal year'in which the first federal construction contract for 
such separable clement is awarded to the SELA PPA, plus a premium of one-eighth of one 
percentage point for transaction costs. As of December 31, 2010, the Board has not incurred a 
liability under the agreement. 

(10) Deferred Compensation Plan 

The Board offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457. This plan, available lo all employees, perinits them to defer a portion 
of their salaiy until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until 
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation 
deferred under the plan, all property, and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income 
attributable to those amounts, properly or rights are held in trust for the employees, therefore the 
assets of the plan are not included in these financial statements. 

•50 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(11) Buduets 

Operating and capilal expenditure budgets are adopted by the Board on a basis consistent with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. While not legally required, this 
budgetaiy informalion is employed as a management control device during the year. Comparison 
between actual and budgeted expenses is not a required presentation for an Enterprise Fund. 

(12) Segment Information 

The Board issued revenue bonds to finance its water and sewerage departments which operate the 
Board's water and sewerage treatment plants and distribution and collection systems, 'fhese bonds 
arc accounted for in a single fund; however, investors in the revenue bonds rely solely on the 
revenue generated by the individual activities for repayment. 

Sunmiary financial information for these departments as of and for the years ended December 31 is 
as follows: 

Asset.s: 

Properly, plant and equipment 
Current unrestricted assets 
Restricted assets 
Other assets 
Total assets 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 
Restricted 
Total net assets 

Liabilities: 
Current 
Current liabilities payable from 
restricted assets 
Noncurrcnt liabilities 
Total liabilities 
Total liabilities and nel assets 

Condensed S 

S 

5 

5 

tatemenls of Net Assets 
Water 

2010 

319.019 S 

(5,820) 
27,246 

228 
340,673 S 

283,562 5 
(84,515) 
199,047 

2009 
(amounts 

299,330 
8,728 

20,867 

181 
329,106 

262,575 
(100.323) 

162,252 

in thoi 

$ 

s" 

5 

Sewer 

2010 
Lisands) 

718,365 
57,919 
41,2.53 

1,780 
819.317 

544,969 

(40,023) 
504,946 

$ 

$ " " 

$ 

2009 

667.273 
62,669 
49,649 

1.915 
781.506 

487,342 
(6,281) 

481,061 

49,414 41,615 59,284 37.957 

10,504 
81,708 

141,626 
340,673 5 

8,973 
116,266 
166,854 
329,106 5 

13,432 
241,6-55 
314,371 
819.317 S 

12,774 
249,714 
300.445 
781,506 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continncd) 

(12) Segment Informalion (continued) 

Condensed Staiemenis of Revenues. r:'xpeii<;es and Changes in Net Assets 
Water Sewer 

Service charges, pledged 
against lx>nds 

Deprecialion expen.se 
Other o;x:raling expenses 

Operating income (loss) 
Nonoperating revenues (exj>enses): 

Investment earnings 
Other 
Capilal eomribulions 
'fotal nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Change in net a.ssets 
Beginning nel asset.i 
Linding nel assets 

s 

s 

2010 

58.698 $ 
(I3,^M8) 
(56,234) 
(11,484) 

40 
24.603 
23,637 
48,280 
36,796 

162.251 
199,047 5 

2009 
(amounts in 

52,(>41 
(13,878) 
(52,737) 
(13.974) 

117 
14,999 
17.706 
32,822 
18,848 

143.403 
162.251 $ 

2010 
thousands) 

S 70,168 S 
(9.978) 

(46,294) 
13,896 

(A 
17,647 
(7,722) 
9.989 

23,885 
481.061 
504,946 $ 

2009 

66.734 
(.9,557) 

(50,146) 
7.031 

293 
2,978 

14.809 
18,080 
25,111 

455.950 
481,061 

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 

Net cash provided by (used in): 

0]x;rating activities 

Noncapital financing activities 

Capital and related financing 

activities 

Investing activities 
Net increase (decrease) 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

Beginning of year 

End of year 

-

S 

S_ 

Watci 

2010 

9,221 

(2,850) 

628 

(489) 
6,510 

16.690 

23,200 

$ 

$_ 

2009 

(amounts 

20,070 

(L332) 

(14,115) 

6,633 
11,256 

5,434 

16,690 

in the 

5 

S ^ 

Sewer 

2010 

)usands) 

40,509 

2,958 

(53,283) 

(1,654) 

(11,470) 

17.618 

6,148 

S 

S_^ 

2009 

(342) 

205 

(45,344) 

40.518 

(4,963) 

22,581 

17.618 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

NOTES 1 0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Continued) 

(13) Natural Disaster 

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Board has cumulatively received $190,382,350 and 
5169,320,233, respectively, of cash reimbursements from the Federal Ftncrgency Management 
Agency (FFiMA). Included in accounts receivable as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 are 
$31,013,507 and $34,670,897, respectively, of reimbursements due from FEMA. Eligible FEMA 
grants totaling in excess of $297 million are in various stages of the approval process and include 
amounts for system repairs, building repairs, vehicle and equipment repairs and replacements, 
temporary powder, supplies and other costs. 

On June 29, 2007, the Board entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with the State of 
Louisiana, City of New Orleans, Louisiana, and the Louisiana Public Facilities Authority (LPFA). 
The LPFA agreed to issue its bonds lo provide the cash capilal investment to pay for capital 
improvements of the City of New Orleans and the Board. The establishment of the construction 
fund permits the Board and City of New Orleans lo publicly bid contracts that are subject to a 
Project Worksheet that has been obligated by FEMA or for which an award letter has been 
received and encumber such amounts, 'fhe State of Louisiana, City of New Orleans, and Sewerage 
and Water Board agree that as FEMA pays any reimbursement amounts related to projects for 
which disbursements have been made, or the City or the Sewerage and Water Board receives 
monies related to the hazard mitigation grant program for which disbursements have been made 
from the construction fund, the full amount of such projects shall be deposited in the construction 
fund and used to fund additional projects until all City of New Orleans and Sewerage and Water 
Board improvements are completed. The total amount made available to the Board under the 
agreement was 5100,000,000. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Board had an outstanding 
obligation under the agreement of 559,819,408 and $25,990,028 included as a liability in due to 
other governments on the statements of net assets, which represent amounts not yet reimbursed by 
FE.MA and deposited back into the construction fund. 

In 2008, the Board received an excess payment of FEMA funds in the amounl of 521,097,027. 
The Board paid $2,998,835 and $18,098,192 to FFMA in 2010 and 2009, respectively. The 
balance was included as a liability in due to other governments on the statements of net asseis. At 
December 31, 2009 the outstanding balance was $2,998,835. There was no outstanding balance as 
ofDeeember31,2010. 

0^) Restatement 

The Board identified an understatement of customer receivables which impacted prior year 
finaneial statements due to an error in the estimate in the allowance for doubtful accounts. The 
restatement resulted in an increase in nel customer receivables and net assets of 513,470,687 al 
January 1, 2009. For the year ended December 31, 2009, the provision for doubtful accounts 
increased by 54,583,782. Net cu.slomcr receivables and net assets at December 31, 2009 increased 
by 58,886,905. 
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SKWKkACi: AM) WA fi:K IJOAkI) Ol- .MCW OIUJ-.ANS 
Uetpiired S)ipplenu>iitiirv Inforniiition lliider (^VSB Statement No. 25 

.scnr.Diji.i'; or ITJM)IN(; Pi«K;Ri::ss 
Tor the vcars ended December 31, 21)10 niul 2fl0*> 

ActuariLil 

ViiliJiuit)n 

Date 

Dei-einhcr.'*! 

2010 

2UiW 

2(){)K 

2007 

2000 

2005 

2004 

2003 

2002 

.'XulLiariiil 

Vtiluc t)!' 

Assets 

$ 2.^>0.298,X9X 

22S.999.660 

222.39X.04O 

223.5S.V3S9 

217,274.416 

209.X29,34O 

204.7()(..452 

196.697,432 

1S7,S92,7!6 

Aeli i i i r ial 

Aeerued 

Li i ib i l i ty 

(AA I . ) 

S> 277.27.V632 

269.506.02 S 

260.616.S22 

24.S.202.I,S9 

2.>3.664.Kt7 

225..S44.SS6 

2iS.L33..)9.3 

20.3.362.0X9 

197.323.094 

tOvenui iJet l ) 

lintundei.1 

A A I . 

S 46.974.734 

40.306.368 

.'^8,018.1X2 

21.6! 8.̂ 100 

tS..VS9.99l 

L\713.546 

13.448.94.^ 

8.664.637 

9.43t)..i7S 

l ' i imk\ l 

Ratio 

S3.06'yo 

84.97% 

S3 .4 I% 

91.18"'.. 

92.20% 

93.03*^0 

93.84% 

93.78% 

V^,22% 

ro \e i ' i j J 

I'ayrolt 

(mil l ions) 

.10 

30 

29 

27 

26 

30 

M) 

28 

29 

l.-niiiiided 

A A I . as a 

I'eicentiiLie 

o f payroll 

1.58.32% 

L' 'K3.26% 

129.02% 

81.44% 

70.92% 

32..10'1^, 

44.38% 

30.46'M» 

.^2.32% 

SCIIKDDLKOI- K.MPI.OYKRCOiNTRllJirnONS 

VcMf 

i-:!uiL.-ti 

2010 

2009 

2008 

2007 

2006 

20(13 

2O04 

200:) 

2002 

See aceonip 

.NniiLial 

KetjuiiLxi 

C'uniriluitioa 

% 8.:^S.3.788 

7..591.307 

7,146.647 

4..S98.387 

4.07;.3O2 

4.70:.:>34 

4.271.797 

.>.I9.VW> 

.V19U.707 

atning notes lo l i i i iniciul slati 

AeiLiai 

Conlr ihui ion 

S 

L-nieiil: 

3.146,081 

3.247.0,^l 

4.915.312 

.V883.124 

.V.^^43.7!.? 

3.716..181 

3.721.0.14 

.V:?91.337 

2.931.0^3 

• ; . 

Purceniaiit.-

fJoiUf rinilioii 

61.37% 

()9.12% 

68.78% 

84.49';o 

82.08% 

79.0.?% 

87 .11% 

106.21% 

91.80% 
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si:\VK.RA(;r. AND \VAI KR B O A R D OK MAY ORI.KA.NS 

Required Stipplcmeiitiity Information Inder C\SB Statement No. 45 
SC:MKDI]LK o r KI'NDINC; P R O G R I . S S 

l-'or the vcars ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 

.Actuarial 

Viihiaiion 

1 )ale 

IX-C'cinlicr .11 

2010 

2099 

2008 

2t)07 

.Aeiu.irial 

Value of 

Assets 

S 

-

-

. 

Aciii.'itiiil 

.Accrued 

l.iahilitv 

(AAI . ) 

.S 178.901.1.^1 

l84.i74.7.Vt 

I77.936..139 

147.995.8.36 

(OxcrfiUKled) 

Lliil'iMuled 

A A I . 

S 178.90).131 

184.174.734 

I77.936..vl9 

147.995.836 

!-ii!ulcd 

Ratio 

O.OOVo 

(t.00% 

0.00% 

0.00*!« 

Co\or, 

l>i.yro 

(mil l ioi 

S 

:d 

ii 
IS) 

33 

34 

29 

27 

IJnliinded 

A A I , as a 

I Percentage 

oT payrt^il 

3!4.92':i. 

.v|.V36"i. 

M)}.9yy.> 

348.1,V^ 

SCIUiDlil.K o r K.V!I'LOVLR COM'RIIUi I IONS 

Year 

I'jided 

2010 

2009 

2008 

2007 

Auiuial 

Keijuireit 

( 'o[i lribii i iot! 

S l4.'?39..no 

13.046.1 12 

14..104.620 

12,818..164 

Actual 

(lontrihaiioa 

S 3,728.063 

3.4B7.971 

3,671.616 

6.143.6,34 

Pcre; 

Conif 

.Mitajie 

ihuiioM 

18.81<*i. 

.V>.47% 

39.66% 

47.93% 

Sec Mceoiiipanyinj: notes to linaneiai .slateinenl.s. 
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Sclu'dutci 

SIAVKRAGi: AND WA TKR »OARi ) 0 \ ' M A Y ORi.KAN.S 

scnKDUi.K or PROPKR'iA'. IMANT, AND i:ouip\n;v! in DKPAUI \ i i ; . \ ! 
I'or \ c ; i r Kndcd December 31, 2(1 HI 

W'lji.er Sower DiLiriiane Toiiil 

l<ealcsl:i(eri<;h!s. nondepreciable S 2.8ySJ;8 $ 1.716.892 >i 4.S10.O.;8 .$ '),423.97S 

Power and JHlnlpinl:Slation^-huiklin•!,s 58.1.11.001 42.287,733 230.602,434 331.021,168 

l'ouer:uuipiunpini::;iaiions-machinery II3.S'^9.30: 29.64S.93(i W.:23.4]6 242.771.S48 

Di.sirilnilioii .ly.siems 123.323.381 - - i23.323.3St 

Seweriijie eDiieciion - 329.292.709 - 329,292.70^) 

Cnnais ;iiul subsurface dniinnjzc - - 318.t)60.376 318,060..i?6 

rrcninieni plants - 139.^81.699 - 139.081.699 

Omneeiiuns ;ind nieiers 34.300,910 12,125.346 - 16.426,2.36 

I'ower transmission 7.479.863 3.006.170 i 1.121.633 23.607.668 

<ieneral pkinl 9!.39.'i,400 60.933,290 49..^00.!01 20l.9t).S,791 

(icnenil burldiniis 2.,'i23.5-18 1.093,323 3.967.('w4 7.5S6.347 

Tiiiiil property, plant aEui 

eqiiipmcni in -iervico 433.953.743 621,806,044 717.346.384 I.773.l06,-121 

C.'onsauctitm ill pm;i;rc>> Ot8.(?89.987 279.35^^,227 187,476.709 613.524.923 

'loiiil properly, plant and ettuilMUcni 384.6•J3.7.^0 901.16-1.321 'J04.823.293 2.3yt).fi31.344 

Aeeunuilaled depicciatitm 263.624.748 i82.798.896 226.729.485 673.133.129 

Net propuity. plant and eqiupmeni S 319.018.982 S 718.363.423 .s 678.t)93.80S .S 1,713.478,213 

:oo9 
U'aier Sewei l.)tiiina'.:e 'i'ulal 

Kciil estate ri{ihis. nondepreciable S 2,89S.I3S % 963.472 S 4,8I0.9.1S S 8.672,358 

Power and pumping stations - buildiinis 57,7-10.918 37.,>03.366 229.709.211 324,733.695 

Pouer and puinpinL: stations - ni.iehiiiety 113.776.9.^4 29.873,339 98.76L33X 242.413.811 

l)i.^lribufin^^ys^enl'i 123.973.792 - - 123.973.792 

Seuentye eolleciion - 303..'^92.751 - 305,392.75 i 

t.'aiiiils ittid subsuiliice dniiniiiie - - 310.073.101 310,073.401 

treiiinieni jilnnts - 133.915.592 - 135.915.592 

Connecntiits ;tmi ineter.> 33.214.620 12.0X8.929 - 45.303.549 

I'ower Man';nnssion 7,479.863 5.t)()6,170 11.121,635 23,607.668 

llcnemi piiini 91.166.878 60,73'J.!34 49.531.490 201.432..M)2 

Cenerjil hniliiunis 2.525.548 1.093.323 3,^'67.674 7.38/).5'(7 

Tola! properly. pUmt and 

eipilpnieni inseivice 432.776,69! 588.573,27S 707.'J75.897 l,729.323.SfiA 

Consiruciion in progress 119.618.^^20 25.1.908.<vl3 145,382.331 518.9(19.89-1 

Total piopeny. pkini and equipmeni 552,3y3.611 842.481.92 I S53.358.228 2.248.235.760 

Aeeonuihiicddcpreeiaiion 233.065.301 173.2n8.5l3 215.569.60=1 64.3.843.418 

Net projKTiy. plant and oqiupmeni Ij 299.33t).3iO % 667,273.40S S 637.788.624 S 1,604.392,342 

.'̂ •̂e uidepcndeiii atidilors' report. 
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Si'licdtik 6 

.Si:\\ KUACi: AM) W A t KU IJOAKD Ol" .MAV OKLKAN.S 
(;iiAN(;i.s iN.sr.ij ' .i.Nsi K A N C I : L I A U I I . I T I K S Ji^ D K P A K I M K M 

lOU t i t i : YK.Mt K.M)KI)l)l.C,T;MIJi:U3t.20l() 

itc<:inniii<* 

of 

^ • ^ • : l ^ 

Ciiircilt ^I'ili-
(^hiiiiisniit) 

Kstiriiiilo ('liiiii;:^ Piivnu'iits 
Mini or 
Vrur 

Stiiirt-kTiii: 
U'(irko!.s'eompL-ns;i;kni ^ -t-i:,A7(> $• 60.1.658 % (>(i5.526 S 440.808 
He;i!ili msuriinee 675..WS 4.9(>=1.2?4 5.015.819 623,833 

(ienonii jii'hiuv 2.63S4^J6 221.^16 ')2.557 2.7r)7..S.55 

•|nl:iisiiori-U-[in .l.V.^6.5iO 5.7S').81M 5,713.902 j.^.UA'X-' 

Long-term: 
WorUvs'eotapensiiiioi! i.4-16.(>42 (11.^)19) - l.4.M.i2.' 
tienenii ji;!li:!tlv - - -

Toiiii Icuii-ttriii !,4'l&.0-i: (I 1.919) •___ i.4.V}.i:3 

Tiil:ii S 5.20.: rJ2 S 5.777.92') S 5.7I3.'X!: .S 5,:6f).6h> 

,SK\VI:!<A(.K 

Sliori-icrm. 

VVorKerV eoir.|vnsiuon .< 442.'<7r'> H 603.665 ii fSu5.536 i 4;U)..Si)5 

lieiiilh inMir:!iiee 69.5,S44 4.147.953 4.219.'JM 623.833 

(iaK-r;ilii:ilv:!i[v 2.41-1.766 (8,325) 79.fi56 2.326.7.^5 

ToUJl siion-urni 3.53^:.Sf.i 4.743.293 4.'i(i5.i.56 3.3'>l. 

Ltmy-lenir 

Workers' eom|Hiis-.i[ti>n l.44(),042 (11.919) - ] .434.! 2J 

Crencrnl !i;ilii!iK - - -

•luliil !i.tii:-tcrin l,'14;V(U: (!l.'^il9) ^ _ _ i,4.U.!23 

'ioiLil S 4.9(yO.;:s S 4.731.374 S ^1.905.156 S 4,S25..546 

I)KA1NA(;I-: 
Slmri-ienn' 

Workers'en;nper,.s;Hiim 

Heiilll) in>ii[:!iiei.-

<ierK'r:ii liuhiliiv 

Tcui l >hnn-;i.irn 

l.ony-UTin. 

Workers" conipi-ti>;ii toil 

' l iHii! lony-lenn 

"!"ul;!! 

s, 

S 
B 

442,670 

675..i7S 

7 , 8 3 7 , 7 ( J 6 

8.W55.K26 

1..1-16,64: 

t.446.i!4.2 

lO.-IOl.SoI 

s 

^ 

603.65S S rin5,.-S27 S 4.10.xn? 
.'.'175..; 13 \52^.958 623.f^33 
! . I 9 7 . 6 ' J 0 5^>6.053 S.439..J(i.? 

5,276.76! 4.72S.53S 9,50-1.043 

.919) 
( ! ! . 9 1 9 ) 

5.264.^^42 S 4.7:x..s:ts .S 

1.434. 
1.434. 

I0.93S. 

123 
123 

i;iiS 

lOIAl . 
Sliorl-ienii 

Workas'coiiiiK-ti.-;:lioti .S f.32.S.02S S LSIO.^'SI 5 l.SI6,5S\' S i.322.4:iJ 
!!i-:i!tl!iny.irLmcc 2,0-t6.600 12.5S7.640 12,Vr>:.74I I.S71.490 
i;e!x-r:!!li:ih'i!t[y !2.89!.028 !.4!I.2S1 1(>H,2N> _ [3.5.v{.n43 

"l<)l::lsliorS-k-rin !6.265.6.M> i5.Su9.9f.i2 1.5,.>47.5'Jf> I6.7:7.'>t,: 

Lonu-tenii. 

W,.irki,'is' coiii[H-i!s:inon •).3.J8.!26 (35.757t - 4.302.3<'''' 

(lc:ie;:!l liiifiiliiv - - -

Tol:il k.ni:-krm 4..i.i.S.i26 {35.757) - 4..'.{l2.3;w 

!\n:il > 20.6(j' 7.̂ 2 S 15.774.145 S !5.v|7..v>f) S 2l.O.>().33; 

See indepi.-ndeni :iui.iii'>!>' report. 
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The Sewerage and Wale? Board and the U, S, Army Corfjs of Encjineers gatl'iered at the A. B. Wood 
Melpomene Pumping Station No.1 to dedicate the cotnpletion of a $39.6 million project to repair 
drainage pumping stations throughout the City following Hurricane Katrina. In all, the Corps restored 
23 pump stations and the Carrollton Freqiiency Changer Building to their Pre-Katrina levels of opera­
tion. IVlayor IVlitcheli J. Landrieu, president of the S&Wfi, presided over the ceremonies witi i officials 
from the Corps, members of tfie S&WB Board of Directors and the Cily. 

The Elaine Street Drainage Pumping Station in f-'astern New Orleans, destroyed by Katrina's flood 
has been completely re îtored by the U.S. Army Corps of E-ngineets. The $3.2 million prciject inckided 
the installation of 2 new vertical pumps, tnoiors and ail new controls and supporting instrumenta­
tions. The station was tlie last to be completed as part of a $39.6 million program whereby ttie Corps 
repaired 23 hurricane-damaged drainage stations throughout the City. 

s 
T 
A 
T 

S 
T 
I 
C 
A 
SBBBS 
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SFAVF.kAC;!-: AND WA! KU IJOARD OK NTAV OULLANS 
ASSF.SSKD AND KSTIMATKI) ACTUAL VAIAJK OK TAXAHLK PROPKKTV 

La.st Ton Kiscal Years 
(Unaudited - amoiint.s in H)oii.<{and.s) 

l-'iscal 
Year 

2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 

Net Asse: 
Real I'Stoio 

1,214,098 
L23K764 
1.248.743 
1,423.261 
1.492.750 
1J 03,604 
K362.097 
2.004.624 
2,042.426 
2,022,978 

ined Vail lie 

Personal Properly 

6.S 1.744 
619.368 
6,-S0,59.S 
679.S26 
620.797 
565.2S7 
483,200 
539,492 
557,039 
558,159 

Total Net 
Assessed Valtie 

1.865.842 
1,851.132 
1.899,338 
2 J 03.087 
2.1I3..547 
L668,89i 
1.845.297 
2.544.116 
2.599.465 
2,581.137 

Total 1-siimaicd 
Acttial VaUteCI) 

14,751.485 
14,687,067 
15.040.781 
16,731,518 
16.774.183 
13.245,167 
14,645,214 
20,698,664 
21,974,841 
21.974.841 (2) 

RaiioofTouil 
Net A.ssessed 

to Toial 
Usti mated 

Actual Value 

12.6% 
12.6% 
12.6% 
12.6% 
12.6% 
12.6% 
12.6% 
12.3% 
11.8% 
11.7% 

Source: City of New Orleans 

(1) Amounts are noi oflhe hooiestead e.\einpiiun. 
(2) Latest date available for toal estimated actual value is 2009. 
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SK^WKUAGF, AND WATKR BOAUO OF .\FW ORLEANS 

PROFKRFY TAX RATKS - DIRFCI* AND OVFRLAPIMNG GOVKRNiVlENTS 

Last Ton Fiscal Yeai-s 

(Unaudited) 

Number ofMills 

(I'erS 1,000 of assessed value) 

l-i seal 

Yeai-

2001 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

City of 

New Orleans 

77,09 

77.09 

77.09 

78.54 

71.90 

85.39 

78.89 

58.44 

57.57 

64.31 

Orleans 

l.evec lioard 

12.76 

12.01 

12.01 

12.711 

12.76 

12.76 

12.76 

0*** 

0 * * * 

0 * * * 

Sewerage K̂  

Water Board 

of 

New Orleans 

22.59** 

22.59** 

22.59** 

22.59** 

22.59** 

22.59** 

22.59** 

16.43** 

16.43** 

16.43** 

Orleans 

Parish 

School Hoard 

53.05* 

52.98 

52.83 

52.80 

52.80 

58.55 

52.90 

38.47 

38.47 

44.12 

Atiduhon 

Paik & 

Zoo 

4.55 

4.55 

4.55 

4.55 

4.55 

4.55 

4.55 

3.31 

3.31 

3.31 

Total 

170.04 

169.22 

169,07 

171.29 

171.29 

186.84 

175.19 

119.55 

118.28 

128.17 

Source: City of New Orleans 

*The rioMiustead l-^xemption is not alluwcil fi>r the new 9-Mill Police and i'ire fus. 

**3 mills adopted in 1067 l.:.\pircs in 2017 

**6 mills aiiopicd in 1978 l-xpires in 2027 

**9 mills adopted in 1982 expires in 2032 

***SpeciaI niiilage beginning in 2008 and no longer City-wide. 
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SFVVKRAGK AND WA FFR BOARD OK NF.W ORLFANS 
TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS 

Occctnbcr 31, 2010 and Eight Years Ago 
(Diuuidited) 

NameofTaNpaycr 

I-nlcruv Service 

IkllSouih Telecommunications 

l/arrah's Ijitu'itainmcnr 

Capital One 

.1 P. Moruan Chase Bank 

VVhihiev Naliona! liank 

huernatioiKil River Center 

Marriott lloiel Properties 

C S &. M .Associaies 

Poydras Properties 

Type of 

Business 

Utility 

lelcphone Utility 

Casino 

Bank 

I.?ank 

Bank 

Shopping Mali: Moid 

Motel 

CoDimerical Real P ŝtaie 

Real (::staEc 

2010 

Assessed 

Value 

% 79,344.940 

54.413.570 

41.733,310 

26,719.144 

24.026,140 

22,663-130 

1 7.466,490 

14.190.884 

13-822,970 

\ 3,3)3200 

Percentage 

ofTotal 

Assessed 

Value 

2.97% 

2.04% 

1.56% 

1.00% 

0.90% 

0.85% 

0.65% 

0.53% 

0.52% 

0.50% 

107,(>93.778 11.52% 

Name of (axpayer 

Ijitergy Service 

BeliSouih 1 cleeonimiinications 

llibernia National Bank 

Bank (.)ne 
VVliitncv National Batik 

Harrah's Entertainment 

Tenet 

International River Center 

Marrioit llotc! Propern"es 

C S (t M As ;̂̂ )ciales 

Type of 

Business 

l.;tiliiy 

Telephone Utility 

Bank 

Bank 

Bank 

C-asino 

llealth & Hospital 

Shopping Mall; Hotel 

1 lotel 

C^ommerieal Real 1. :stale 

2002 (*) 

Assessed 

Value 

$ •^5.365.530 

60.994,780 

42.610.750 

32.623.813 

24.145-763 

23.945.540 

18.318,865 

14,241,180 

13.727,520 

11,462,858 

!> 317.436.599 

PereetiUige 

ofTotal 

A.ssessed 

Value 

4.16% 

3.37% 

2.35% 
1.80% 

1.33% 

1.32% 

1.01% 

0.79% 

0.76% 

0.63% 

17.52% 

('•') ihc latest dale available for the Ten Largest Ta.\paycrs m ihe City of Ncu Orlean.s 
is fov the year ended Deeeniber 31, 2002. 

Souice: Citv of New Orleans 
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SEWERACiE AND WATER BOARD OK NEW ORLEANS 
PROPERTY TAX 

LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS HY THE CI I'Y OF NEW ORLEANS 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Unaudited - Amounts in Thousands) 

Latest data available for Piopcjly Tax Levies and Collections by the Cily of New Orleans is for the year 
ended Decembers!, 2009. 

l-'iscal 

Year 

Real l-:state' 

2000 
2001 

2002 

2003 
2004 

2005 
2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

•fotal Levied 

faxes: 

199,666 

209.441 

214,088 

217,039 

247,328 

267.327 

219,991 

2,50.462 

269.746 

275.227 

Collected 

OecemlKM' 
Amount 

197.442 

207.052 

211,242 
214.320 

243,.594 

262.376 

213.778 

238-101 

259.343 
257,219 

Ihrough 

31.2009 

Percent 

98.89 

98.86 

98.67 

98.75 

98.49 

98.15 
97. i 8 

95,06 

96.14 

93.46 

Balance Outst 

Dccoml^er 31 

Amount 

2.224 

2.389 

2.846 

2.719 

3.734 

4,951 

6,213 

12,361 

10,403 
18,008 

anding 

, 2009 

Percent 

1.11 

1.14 

1.33 

1.25 

1,51 

1.85 

2.82 

4,94 

3.86 

6.54 

Collected 
during 2009 

Amounl 

192 

195 
187 

175 
444 

265 
1,784 

4.929 
16,139 

257,219 

Personal Property Taxe; 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 

105,951 
110,058 
105,378 
110,691 
115,676 
106.354 
99.477 
82.046 
67,548 
69,875 

99,637 
100,619 
96,728 

103-7.56 
109.234 
100.809 
91,023 
75.241 
62.119 
63.118 

94.04 
91.42 
91.79 

93.73 
94.43 
94.79 
91.50 
91.71 
91.96 
90.33 

6.314 
9,439 

8.650 
6.935 
6.442 
5,545 
8.454 
6.805 
5.429 
6,757 

5.96 
8.58 
8.21 
6.27 
5.57 
5.21 
8.50 
8.29 
8.04 
9.67 

-
-
-
-
-
-

1.336 
1.388 
2.474 

63.1 18 

* 2005 and prior personal property leceivables were considered pi'escribed and no 
longer legally enforcible during 2009. 

Source: City ofNew Orleans 
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SEWERAGE AND WA lER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
WA FER AND SEWER RATES 

Last Five Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Water Sewer 

Year 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

Monlhlv 

Bast 

S 
S 

$ 
S 

S 

' Rate 

3.50 

3.50 

3..50 

3.70 

3.90 

Finst 3,000 

Gallons 

$ 2.31 

S 1.94 

$ 2.35 

$ 2.47 

$ 2.59 

( 

$ 

$ 
S 

S 

S 

<aie per 

Next 

1 7.000 

.tallons 

2.31 

3.31 

4.01 

4.21 

4.42 

1.000 Gallons 

Next 

980,000 

( 

S 
S 

s 
s 
$ 

"iailons 

2.07 

2.60 

3.15 

3.31 

3.48 

AUG a 1 tons 

Over 

i.000,000 

S 
% 

$ 
^ 

% 

1,59 

2.19 

2.65 

2.78 

2.92 

Monthlv 

Base Rale 

S 11.60 

% 11.60 

$ 11.60 

% 11.60 

S 11,60 

Kate per 

LOOO 

Gallons 

% 4.04 

$ 4.04 

$ 4.04 

S 4.04 

$ 4.04 

Note: Rates are ba?cd on .5/8" meter, whidt is the .standard liotiseluild meter si; 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

COMPU I VFION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 

December 31, 2010 

(Unaudited) 

Net 

Outstanding 

Debt 

Percentage 

Overlapping 

Ovcrlappini 

Debt 

Direct deln: 

Sewerage and Watei* l.^oard, 

nel of debt sei'vice funds 

(tax bonds only) 

20,290.000 100% S 20.290.000 

Overlapping debt: 

City of New Orleans 

Audubon Park Commission 

Orleans Parish School Board (1) 

Orleans Levee District (1) 

648,609.000 

29,143,572 

131,560,000 

3,120.000 

100% S 648.609.000 

100% $ 29-143.572 

100% S 13L560.l)00 

100% :ii 3.120,000 

fotal overlapping debt 812.432.572 100% 812.432.572 

fotal dii'ccl and 

overlapping debt $ 832,722.572 100% $ 832.722.57: 

(1) The Hscal \ear oflhe Orleans Parish School Board and Orleans Levee District 

ends on June 30th: overlapping del")! is based on June 30, 2010 financial 

information. 
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r î 
CO 
r-

r ^ 
T i 
o 
o ' 
c^ 
-^ 

•^ 
o 
o 
r-." 
(--. 

T . 
i n 

— 
o " 

— 

T f 
r - l 
i n 

r-J ' 
!••". 
cr­

oc 
o 
o 
o " 
CO 
C-. 

_ 
r - l 

r-" 
— 
O. 

cc 
o 
r^ i 

^ 
p-^ 
r--

OC 

__ o 
• n 
OC 
VO 

o o 
o o 
o o 
o" o 
'n r-j 
o o 
— o l 

o -o o o 
o o 

o o 

•—• 

>n 
OC 

OC 

•d' 

o 
Cs 

Q6 

o 
d 

o 

SO 

c ' 

vd 
o 
r i 
so' 

' n 

<̂ i 

>n 
i n 
o 

' n 
i n 

OC 

o 

r i 

o 

'n 
'n 

CO 

r 1 
r i 
CO 

o 

r - i 

O i 

z i i 

c 
.—Il 

' / I 

X. 

f""! 
r i " 

r -

r i 
• n 

O 
cc 
>v-r 

1 - -

cc 
CO 

r-" 

0 0 
<-1 

Cs" 

•n 

OC 

' n 

' n 

O 
r j 

• ^ 

o 

OC 
• n 

cc 
o 

CO 

OC 

OC 

t r \ 

o\ 
OC 

• o 

t o . 

c/J 

'••] 
-n-

d 
f--
oe 
i n 
i n 

0 0 
t — 

OC 

o ' 
• n 
' n 
(--' 
' n 

r-
_ 
\q 
•n 
•n 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS 

Last Five Fiscal Vcars 
(Uiiiindired) 

Fiscal 

Year 

2006 

2007 

2008 
2009 

2010 

Popu lalion(l) 

208.548 

288J13 
336.644 

3-54,850 

3.54,850 (4) 

S 

S 
% 

% 

$ 

Personal 

lncome(2) 

(in thousands) 

12.739.309 

14,831.565 

1-5,802,5.34 

15.260.613 

15.260,613 (4) 

1 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

Per Capita 

Personal Income 

61.086 

5K478 
46,941 

35,507 

35.507 

Ul nemploymeni 

Rate (3) 

4.30% 

3.50% 

4.40% 

6.80% 

8..50% 

{1) \vw\v.census.gov/popesi/coinnies/iables/CO-l7;SI2007-01-22.xls 
(2) I'Stimates- Bureau of Ixonomic .Analysis 
(3) U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 
(4) Most recent available is 2009 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES BV DEPARTMENT 

EN I ERPRISE FUND 

Last Ten Fisciil Years 

(Unaudited) 

Year Water Sewer Diainaiic Tola 

2001 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

12,586,744 

11.540.814 

14.531,801 

15,772,218 

10,380.889 

36,481,683 

19,053,142 

19^)38,659 

22,465,931 

32,248.119 

51.226,639 

43,269.622 

49,419,442 

67.424.755 

46,550,580 

49.891,752 

56.093,058 

25.608.236 

56,010,946 

58,682,400 

52.859,310 

57,048.889 

64.155.080 

38,407,889 

23.709,553 

19,515.232 

16.250,996 

28.592,805 

47,185,424 

51.465,065 

' 116,672.693 

111,8-59.325 

128.106.323 

121,604,862 

80,641,022 

105.888,667 

91,397 J 96 

74,139,700 

125,662,301 

142.395,584 

Includes contributed as.sets 
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SK.\VI:R..\(;K .AND MAIKK KOARD OF M:\V ORLKANS 
scnF.Di'LM OF ruTiJur. I>I:BT PAV.MK.N TS 

Deccmbci 31,2010 
(l)iiiiii(Iited) 

Water Ucvoriiic Bniitls 

2011 

2012 

2013 

2U1 -I 

201:1 

2(.i i f> 

2017 

20 if* 

2(M*J 

2(i20 

?021 

2022 

'li.t;!/ I' 

iotifl il 

I'oiai 1-

'fir 

Ilk 

lui 

I'rincipiii 

Imcivsi 

PriiiJ.ip;il 

Ink'ivsl 

I'r!ni;ip;i! 

illlCPiJ.'st 

l*iini.-ip;ii 

llltCIV^! 

IVincipiil 

hilcivs; 

t*riiK'ii;;il 

MiiiK-ipiil 

InicicM 

Piiiicipiil 

ll!tL-!V.sl 

I'n !'.(.• ip;i I 

iijtcio.-;! 

i^riii'.-ipal 

ImL•a•.̂ ; 

l'iili!.-i]!;i! 

[ntci-o! 

I'liiicipni 

Int(--a-s'. 

[>iil 

. " O l 

lilllfi .• [>oht I'liviiK-nis .S 

.Scries 

\WH 

SS5.0;)U 

39S.4riX 

925.000 

35S.fi4.i 

%5.00() 

.̂  15.630 

1.015.000 

2o0.79.> 

1 .OftO.Ot.tU 

221,5SU 

J.IiD.OUO 

17(1.700 

I.lfi5.(>00 

Il(i,8(i5 

I..22(t.n0(j 

.59.7K(i 

N.j-)5.000 

l.^)i i .45y 

!U.2?6.45'J $ 

Ser i fs 

2002 

(.335.000 

l.2S7.L^o 

l.-10().(!t)U 

1.2.v^.75f) 

I.-47IJ.OOU 

1.177.750 

l.5-H).00o 

l.lo.i .25() 

!..^95.000 

1.027.751.1 

1.665.000 

'MS-OOO 

1.740.000 

86-4.7SO 

!,«20.OtJO 

777.75(i 

:i.i*)5.ooo 

(iS6.75() 

.V.M.5.()0l) 

527.000 

.^.5!0.00n 

.^5''.7-'>0 

.v.(i.S5.00(j 

1X^1.2.50 

2^2'X^.i)0(i 

I0.17S.^H}0 

.U) .4MK. 'JO0 S 

AtMtottd 

Issues 

2.220.000 

1.685.(118 

2..>25,0(m 

i,5'J2.3y3 

2.4.V^.OO0 

L40.V.^.St} 

2.5^15.000 

I.374.1M.) 

2.6:-5.0OO 

l.2-'('^33ft 

2.775.000 

l . i l S . 7 0 0 

2.'^05.O00 

'JSi.61.5 

.>.0-10.t)00 

S*3 7.5.^0 

.V1'J5.000 

(i«6.75U 

3.315.000 

.527.00t.'j 

. V 5 ! 0 . 0 ( J O 

.V̂  9.7-50 

).6K5.O00 

IS.i.25o 

3-1.63.5.000 

l2.{WO.J5tJ 

-I6.'?25..'>5y 
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si:\vKRA(;i: AND WAILU BOARD OF M:W ORII: ANS 
S n i K O l ' L K o r KliTlJRF DEBT PAV.MKiN IS 

nt 'CcmbcrJl ,20lO 
(IJniUtdited) 

Drninagc Special Tax Honds 

2011 I'riiKipa! 

hilcrc.-it 

2012 PrincipiU 

2013 PiiiK-ipiii 
lllt'JiVSt 

201-1 Principii! 
llll̂ .•:•c l̂ 

2015 I'liiKipiii 
iMtClVS! 

2016 PhriLipiil 
Intua'Sl 

2017 PriiKipul 
hlt^TCSt 

2(.MS I'riiicip;!! 
hllLTCSt 

20 h) i'riiKJpiil 
lllkTiJSl 

2i.*20 PniK'ipal 
liucrcst 

2021 I'n'tK-ipiil 
liitcrL-si 

2022 l'ri!K-i]i;i! 
InivTcsi 

'I'plal PiiiKipa! 
Total laiorcsl 
lut:il WiUiw l)L-hl l*av! s 

Scries 
1*J98 

>15.000 

24*J,5K: 

57{j,l")00 

224.7X6 

595.0U0 
10S.2H0 

625.000 
1 70.01 S 

655.000 
140.0 IS 

6S5.000 
108.250 

720.000 
74.000 

760.000 
3<S,000 

5.155.000 
1,202,9:^1 
6-.̂ 57.t).̂ .l :s 

.Series 
2002 

755.000 

6^17.310 

"'JO.OOO 

621,26."-

x:i().ooo 
,593.2 IS 

S65.Oi.io 
560.018 

900.0110 
525.4 IS 

'MO.OOO 

4Sy.4IK 

'>S5.00tt 
450..S7S 

1.0.%0.0Cl0 
.̂ ^;.ooo 

I.X70.00{) 
.U)5.21<S 

l.'J()0.tl(10 
2.s2.̂ ;.̂ :̂ 

2.05.>.Oo(.i 
l'M.7,"^S 

2.155.000 
100.20S 

!5.1.v5.i.nK) 
4.S6S.n20 

20.00.^1.620 $ 

All I^oiul 
Issues 

1.300.000 

Ŝ >6.X42 

1.."=,60.000 

846.04 >> 

1.42.5,0{.if) 
791.49S 

1.490.000 
7.^0.(J.i6 

1.555.000 
665.4.^6 

I.625.0til) 
597.668 

1.705-000 

524. S7S 

1.790,000 
76.000 

I.S70.000 
.V)5.21S 

1.960.(KK) 
2S2.93S 

2..'J.-=5.0OO 
194.7.^S 

2.155.tJOO 
100.208 

20.29{).iM10 
6.071.-554 

26.361..554 

1IM8 
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An aging, yet reli­
able, network of 
water, sewer and 
major drainage lines 
must be constantly 
inspected, repaired 
or replaced to ensure 
reliability for citizens. 
Members of the 
Networks Division are 
on duty constantly 
to repair water main 
breaks like this one 
in the French Quarter 
and others through­
out the system. Fire 
hydrant repair or re­
placement is another 
crucial responsibility 
of Networks. 

Turning a liability into an asset: In partnership with St. Bernard Parish, work is set to begin 
this year by the S&WB on the first phase of a long- term effort to divert treated efficient from 
the East Bank Sewage Treatment Plant into a formerly healthy cypress habitat. The habitat 
has largely reverted to open water south of Bayou Bienvenue and the Mississippi River 
Gulf Outlet in Orleans and St. Bernard (area inside the yellow lines). Use of the wetlands 
for assimilation of wastewater has several benefits, including reducing the effects of salt 
water intrusion in the project area and increasing the build up of sediment to improve habitat 
quaitly and plant productivity. Ultimately cypress replanting will aid in wetland stability, water 
filtration and storm protection for future generations. Lake Borgne is the body of water on 
the right in this satellite imagery 
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S F W F U A G E A N D W A T F U B O A R D O F N E W O R L E A N S 

2010 ACTUAL CAIMTAL FXPKNDmJRES 

WATF-K [ ) I - ; P A R T M I . - : N T 

c,M WATI.-:RWC)RKS 

1 10 Normal Fxtcnsion & Roplaccnicnt 

135 Improvcmcni orChcniical System 
156 Advance Water rreatnicnt 
160 Hurricane Katrina l^xpcnsc ibr Water 
175 Water l-lurricanc Recovery Bonds 

TOTAI.. WATKRWORKS 

1,757.15 

20,759.00 
861,452.50 
(95,280.70) 

24,247,99.3.98 

25,036,681.9.7 

214 

215 

2.19 

600 
800 

W.AT1:R DISTRIBUTION 

Normal Kxiension & Replacement 

Rehabilitation - Main.s, Hydrants & Services 

Mains OI'W Contracts 

TOTAL. WAT1 . :R DISTRIBUTION 

POWI-R PROJI.CCTS l-MFRGL-NCY AND Gl-INKRAL BUDGHT 

Water .Share of Power Projects 
Water Share ot"General Budget llonis 

TOTAL- P0W' I - ;R PK0J1- ;CTS, I':IV11-:RGLNCY A N D C;l.•Nl.^RAL BUDGl-T 

TOTAL WATI-R DI-:PARrMh;NT 

I..507,287.38 

115.00 

135,49S.65 

1.642,901.03 

$ 10.326.7! 
5,325,056.84 

5.335,383.55 

32.014,966.51 

N(.nU: These tlgiires do nt)( include proration ol" interest expense. 

lV-1 



SFWr.RAGE AND WA FER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

2010 ACTUAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

SI-Wr:RAGG DEPARTMENT 

C.PM Sl-WKRAGl-SYSTI-M 

513 Extensions & RcplacemcnLs-Scwcr Force Mains FiPA Consent Decree S 274,974.56 
317 Nomial f-Nlcnsions & Replacement of Gravity Mains 11,577.758.11 
318 Rehabilitation Gravity Sewer System 5,088,792.89 
326 Ij-xiensions & Replaeemem to Sewer Pumping Stations 699,805.72 
339 Main in Streets Depl. Contracts 46,726.25 
348 Norma! H.vtensions & Replacements 1,849,901.90 
368 Wetland.s a.ssimilalion Project 176.476.34 
375 Scvvcragc Hnrricane Recovery Bonds 27,377.451.25 
381 Modification & Extension of WBSTP to 20.'50 MOD 2.330.00 

TO'IAI. SEWERAGF SYSTEM $ 47,094.217.02 

SEWAGE TREATMENT 

POWF.R PROJECTS AND GRNERAL BUDGET 

600 Sewerage Share of Power Projects S 2.581.67 
800 Seweraiie Share of General Biidi;et Items 5.137.425.40 

TOTAL POWER PROJECTS AND GENERAL BUDGET S 5,140.007.07 

TOTAL SEWERAGE DEPARTMENT S 52,234,224.09 

NOTE; These Ogurcs do not include proration of interest expense. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

2010 ACTUAL CAFH AL EXPENDITURES 

DRAINAGE DEPARTMENT 

C.P.// 

418 
439 
471 
476 
478 
486 
496 
497 
498 
499 

511 
554 
575 

600 
800 

CANALS 

Normal Extension & Replacements 

Major Drainage Participation in DPW Projects 

SELA Program Management 

Hollygrove Canals (SL-LA-A) 

S. Claiborne-Lowerline to Monticello Street 

Napoleon .*\venue Canal Improvements (SELA-B) 

General DeGaulle Canal (SELA-C) 

Florida Ave. Canal - DPS^/19 to Peoples Ave. (SELA-B) 

Dwyer Intake Canal (Si. Charles to Dwyer (DPS)(SELA-A) 

Jefferson Avenue Canal 

TOTAL DRAINAGE CANALS 

PUMPING STATIONS 

Normal Extension & Rep./Stations 

Expansion of Dwyer DPS (SELA-A) 

Drainage Huiricane Recovery Bonds 

TO'I 'AL DRAINAGE PUMPING ST.ATIONS 

POWER PROJECI'S AND GliNIJRAI.. BUDGET 

Drainage Share of Power Projects 

Drainage Share of General Budget Items 

TOTAL POWER PROJECTS AND GRNERAL BUDGET 

TO TAL DRAINAGIr; DEPARTMEN'L 

855,085.60 
67,847.41 

1.240,235.05 
19,611.30 

296,953.27 

733,473.20 

9L444.23 

6.489,707.93 

370,934.43 

75.272.30 

UX240.564.7: 

S 2,302,559.44 

11,537.53 
646,425.42 

"S 2,960,522.39 

s 

s 

s 

147,074.86 
4,801,177.33 

4,948,252,19 

18.149.339.30 

NOTK: ThL'sc J'lyiirw ilu noi includi; ptoniiion (iriiiii:ri;.si wpcriM 
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POWra< PURCHASED AND PRODUCED 

NATURAL GAS AND FUJiX OIL CONSUMED - 2010 

ELI;CTR1C POWER PURCHASED 
ELECTRIC AND STEAM POWER 
GENERATED BY THE S&WB* 

TOTAL 

KW-HOURS 
78,255.231 

39,090,720 
117,345.951 

COST 
$12,343,091.11 

$10,681,712.25 
$23,024,803.36 

NOTE: *NATURAL GAS CONSUMED IN OPERATION WAS 1,; 
AT A COST 01- 59,352.456. PUEL OIL CONSUMED WAS 12,883 GALLONS 
AT A COST o r 549,600. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OE NEW ORLEANS 

WATER PUMPED AND CONSUMED - 2010 

Number of 
Meters Giillons Pereenl 

Tree metered proce.ss water to 
various Cily depaiiments and 
charitable in.siittitions: 

10 

36 
16 

14 

103 

246 
76 

177 

Display Fountains 
Fire Department 

Swimming Pools 
Libraries 

Mufticipal 

Parks and Playgrounds 
Police Department 

ScliDoKs 

3,560,900 
16,496,200 
14.775,700 
2,992,100 

116,971.900 
305,912,400 
162,737,300 
209.277.800 

678 832,724,300 1.54% 

Tree metered process water by 
218 Sewcraue and Water Board 911.705.500 1.68% 

Allowance for leaks on private property 336,801,400 0.62% 

Free unmeteied process water: 

Unmeteretl use, such as: extinguishment 
of fires, cleaning streets. Hushing sewers, 
drains, and gutters, cleaning matkets and 

other public buildings 37.119,0<SS,400 68.5.5% 

**Leaks in distribution system as measured 1,201.521,600 2.22% 

Water sold to cu.stomers 13,744.808,800 25.38% 

'fotal Water Pumped 54,146,650,000 100.00% 

**NO*f E: Leaks in distribution sy.stein as estimated are same as 2009. 
Leaks were not nicasmed in 2010. 
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S E W E R A G E AND W A T E R BOARD O F N E W O R L E A N S 

Gallons Meter - Pay Wate r Consuinptioii - 2010 

Month 

January 

Februaiy 

March 

April 

May 

June 

July 

August 

September 

October 

November 

Decetnber 

Monthly 

Consumption 

Gross Total 

1,158,006,400 

1.087,949,700 

1,038.868,000 

1,068,110,200 

I.I32,843..300 

1,175,790,900 

1,120,066,500 

1,188.552,900 

1.220,620.300 

1,289,064,700 

1,147,273,300 

1,117,662,600 

13.744,808,800 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

MONTHLY WATER CHARGES COLLECTED - 2010 

Months 

Januarv 
I-ebruary 
March 
April 
May 
June 
July 
,A.ugusi 
September 
October 
November 
December 

Water Service 
Charges & Fees 

S 4,280,421.10 
4.438.480.47 
5,215,092.93 
4,249.306.44 
4,560,280.11 
5,185,463.47 
4,531.386.87 
5,464.906.49 
4,946.387.07 
5,324,852.08 
5.278,350.86 
5,202,242.64 

$ 58,677,170.53 

Delinquent 
Fees 

S 87,636.,50 
90,487.39 

110,383.81 
86.593.02 
91,375.87 
94,504.65 
90,767.42 
89,583.53 
80,126.05 
88,446.73 
97,512.79 
82,159.68 

5 1,089,577.44 

Total 

4,368,057.60 
4,528,967.86 
5,325,476.74 
4,335.899.46 
4,651,655.98 
5.279,968.12 
4,622,154.29 
5,554,490.02 
5,026,513.12 
5.413,298.81 
5.375,863.65 
5.284.402.32 

59.766,747.97 

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

[MONTHLY SEWERAGE CHARGES COLLECTED - 2010 

Months 

Januarv 
February 
.March 
April 
May 
June 
July 
August 
September 
October 
November 
December 

Sewerage Service 

S 

S 

Charges 

5,366,413.19 
5.539,403.25 
6,353.526.64 
5.041,126.01 
5,214,842.35 
6,217,446.40 
5,321,256.44 
6,130,338.94 
5,544,770.84 
5,874,883.75 
5,898,396.37 
5,909,996.61 

68.412,400.79 

De 
F 

S 

s 

linquent 
ces 

58,538.78 
60,441.28 
73,726.13 
57,838.96 
61,022.99 
63,122.41 
60,630.97 
59.843.85 
53,533.83 
59,080.61 
65,127.86 
54,884.67 

727.792.34 

Total 

5,424,951.97 
5,599,844.53 
6,427.2.52.77 
5,098,964.97 
5,275,865.34 
6,280,568.81 
5,381,387.41 
6,190.182.79 
5,598,304.67 
5,933,964.36 
5.963,524.23 
5.964,881.28 

69.140,193.13 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOAR!) OF NEW ORLEANS 

TABLE I 
CARROLLTON rURIilDlflES 

iMiixiimim 

iVlininiuni 

.Aviitoyc 

INIVC!" 

(NTU) 

2006 

1S7 

1 
40 

iotn 
2̂ 18 

T 

60 

2t)0S 

165 

7 

67 

2009 

32t) 

5 

71 

2010 

274 

5 
71 

I-rflueiit Settling Reservoirs 

(N'TU) 

2006 

24 

0.8 

3.1 

2007 

13 

1.0 
4.1 

2tH>8 

15 

LO 

4.9 

2000 

19 

1.1 

3.1 

2010 

8.3 

1.1 

3.2 

Filters 

( N f U ) 

2006 

0.66 

0.U6 

0.12 

2007 

0.39 

0.09 

0.14 

20t>8 

0.90 

0.09 

0.13 

lOtW 

0.78 

0.09 

0.14 

2010 

0.26 

0.07 

O.Li 

TABLE II 
CARROLLTON ALKALINITIES 

PARTS PER MILLION 

Ma.viTnmii 

N'linitniiin 

Avoiaae 

River 

2006 

177 

S3 

116 

2007 

173 

86 

124 

2008 

1S3 

78 

117 

2009 

185 

S3 

121 

2010 

212 

93 

143 

l-iniucnl Settlinii Kescivoir.s 

2006 

146 

66 
106 

2007 

167 

66 

114 

2ons 
171 

63 
107 

2009 

175 

72 

114 

2010 

202 

76 

135 

Filters j 

2006 

158 

75 
114 

2007 

182 

78 

131 

2008 

202 

71 

124 

2009 

200 

80 

134 

2010 

225 

98 

\55 

TABLI- II A 
CARROLLTON HARDNESS 

PARTS PER MILLION 

Mnximuin 

Miniiiiiiin 
AVi:rnec 

NON-CARI iONA-fF I lARDNl-SS 
KiVI iK 

2006 

70 

11 

38 

2007 

86 

10 
47 

3008 

70 

4 
3X 

201)9 

91 

t) 

33 

2010 

84 

0 
36 

i ' l L IFRS 

2006 

79 

14 

46 

2007 

90 

12 
54 

2008 

7ti 

15 
50 

2009 

92 

0 

40 

.2010 

91 

(.1 
41 

TO'i-ALHAKl.)Nli.SS 1 
RlVl-R 

2006 

200 

108 

1.S4 

2007 

230 

113 
I7 i 

2008 

250 

114 

155 

2009 

211 

110 

153 

2010 

238 

116 
178 

FILIFRS j 

2006 

198 

120 

161 

2007 

2-10 

120 

186 

2008 

250 

114 

175 

2009 

227 

130 

173 

2010 

278 

140 

195 

'fAlM..I.'Ill 
CARROI.I..ION BACfliRlALCllARACTFKISTICS 

Totiil Colilbrni AntiKsis 

2010 

iM;i.\iiiuiin (Colonies/ 100 ml) 
Minimum (Colonics / 100 ml) 

Aveitiiic feolonies / 100 ml) 

Number of .Saiiiple-! 

Mumber of Siiinples Negative 

Number oJ'Saiiiples Positive 

River 

4.500 

•14 

940 
357 

0 

357 

Plant T;ip 

5 
0 

0 
364 

363 

1 

Distrihutidii 

Svsicin 

12 

0 

0 

2,503 

2.-193 

10 
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SEWEUAGt: AND WATKR BOAKD OF NEW ORLEANS 

TABLE VII 

IVK YKAR ANALYSKS COMPOSITE DATA (2006 - 2010) FOR NEW ORLEANS 
DRINKING WATER PURIMCfX HON SYSTEM 

PrMiAMi r i l -K 

i'oiiil Alknliniiuv (ppni ;is C'aCOO 

•ftunl Hardness fppsn ; i i CaCO-.) 

Nfnii:;)rliii!i;ilc ! Ijirdiicss (|>ptn as CaCOO 

Catcimn i laritncss (ppin as C a C d ) 

MniVK-'SEMiii Hardness (ppm .1.1 C'aCO-.) 

Ncpliciomciric Tuibiditv (i<"iV) 

nH 

Chli>[idL'(pi)[n) 

Riinritic fpprnl 

Toliil DihStilvcti Solids {ppiii) 

fo ia ! .Stistxmliiil .Sotids (i;pJiO 

i'rct; Chlorini: Residual (pjim :is C,"!i) 

lulal Ch.loriiii! iU-sidiml (ppin as Ct / l 

.Ammoiii:i(p|)masN'') 

.̂'il̂ •.̂ [c i N'ilrit;: tpi)m as N) * 

Co!idiiiili\il\*{LiS:''t[n) 

TcmpL-riiiittc (''!") 

AliimiiniMi (ppinl * 

Amiimmy (ppml * 

f\rst:iiic(ppm) • 

Uariim! (ppEiii * 

!Jcr\-niiim{ni)in) * 

Cndmiiim (ppin) * 

Cliroiniiim (ppn) * 

Copper (ppni)* 

[roii(pj)m) * 

[.cad(p[»nil* 

MnntinnML-tpDiiil* 

Lvicrci ifv(ppnit ' 

N;t;kc!([ipml ' 

Scicniiini fp;im) • 

Silver (ppm)" 

riitillit!in(ppm''( • 

/ . i n cd i i im ) ' 

I'oiassiiim (ppm)* 

Sodium (ppm) • 

M;duuL-cuc.-Uiiis(IIAA5i{'pplO 

iToial Orwnic C.ubon (Duml 

iTolid Trilt:!lonicllia»i:s (iipb) 

:1. 2-[;!chlori;ihani.-(ppb) 

Chloiofo!m{ppt>1 

C;iib<iii Tcifiiclilorid!; (ppb^ 

Hri}inudiiil'.Kii(inii;ib;inc i'i?iiM 
i[clrji;hliir<wili(.'ii','(;lpb} 

IvrX (ncnztiK-. 'iiiliicrw .'•: Xvlciics) (pub) 
ToI i i !Cnl i lb! :n; i (CRIi ' IOOni l) 

l-ec;il coliroims (CHJ.viO{> ml> 

MiS.SI.S.Sil'PIRIVl-:K 

(HcforL' i\»it"iciili()iil 

MAX 

212 

250 

'n 
17y 

104 

^20 

3.53 

80 

0.5S 

342 

215 

00^' 

yo 

— 

— 

— 

— 
— 
— 

5.0 

1.8 

0 2 

I.K 

0.1 

0.2 

0.1 

•1.8 
l.S8nn 

[ 4100 

M!N 

78 

lOS 

0 

75 

0 

2.0 

7.15 

10 

0.09 

8S 

7 

177 

?7 

y\ 
0.0 
0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 
0.0 

29 

0 

AV( i 

124 

162 

38 

11* 

48 

6.1 

7.85 

4.1 

0.25 

241 

92 

:u'i 
67 

4.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 
105O 

MO 

l-INISHKDW.YfKK 

(Alltj i I'uiitlcalioii) 

M A X 

227 

264 

9'i 

20.1 

164 

0.32 

1 9.39 
9S 

L i- .̂-^ 
i 351 

3.3 

.5.7 

o .9y 

2 

650 

yu 
0.0s 

0.000 

0.001 

0 

o.ono 

0.000 

0.00 

0.9 

0.02 

0.033 

0.00 

.0 .000 

;j.L 

0.()0 

0.00 

0.000 

0 

6.8 

27 .0 

2S0 

. ) . l 

104.4 

6.4 

03.4 

2.1 

:n.4 
0.1 

1.8 

139 
0 

MIN 

72 

126 

0 

75 

3 

0.06 

7.02 

14 

0 . 1 : 

114 

0.0 

0.0 

0 00 

1.1 

IS.S 

4! 

0.00 

0.000 

0 .000 

0 

0.000 

0.000 

0 ' lO 

r.).0 

O.CJO 

0.000 

0.00 

0.000 

0.0 

0.00 

0.00 

0.000 

0 

2.7 

17.0 

0.0 

2 2 

7.9 

0.0 

5.2 

0.0 
n.ft 

0.0 

0.0 

0 
0 

AVO 

131 

\19 

4S 

12' 

5! 

0 . 1 . ' 

S.6f 

44 

0.63 

212 

0.3 

2.9 

0.14 

1.7 

3S6 

74 

0.02 

0.000 

0.001 

0 

O.OOO 

0.000 

0.00 

0.1 

0.01 

0.005 

0.00 

ooyo 

0.0 
0.00 

0.00 

O.ono 

0 

4.5 

22.3 

16.9 

2.9 

27.S 

0.0 

1S.4 

0.0 

7.7 

0 0 

0.0 
0 

0 

Tliu results forconsliUK'nts indic.ntcci witha^lciifks :iri; from the Louisiiiita Pcpiiitiiierii oM Iealth and Hospii.its. 

Total Organic C;irbon and 1 ialonceiic Acid rcsiiils nre from a DI 11J ttirtilled conir,-:ct laboniuir^'. 

All other lesitiis are rmni le.sliiiLi by liie -S&WiJ \V;itcr Qii.nlity La',HM;ilory 

Concerning tbi." chemical rosiiits, the .SitWfJ l,nborator>' dots not meet the higher criteria required by Ol-ii-I to be 

cla5sifi(;d ;isa "DilH-OPIf Cc/iijh'i! Chemical !.aborntor\'/0!ink;r,p Water," llieiefore, any re.sull.'; reported by this 

hiboratory lor cheiii:e;il diinkmii iviiicr paEameler.-? which nie fetiuiroil tn be analyzed in a eedified bbor.ittjry ;ire 

officially deemed invalid. 

The SiK-Wli l.aboraiDiy iseeilifled by DHM for Total Colil'orm and Foca! Coliform le.<.ting. 

I.uitd and Coppei reMitls jre ffom 200S and 2010; lesiint; is only rci|iiiied irienniaiK. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

TABLE VUI 

CARROLL! ON OPERATION 

Clil.-M1CAL 

Lime 
Tcrric Coaguiant 
Chlorine 
Sodium Polyphosphnic 
Polyclcctrolyle 
riiioridc 
Ammonia 
Carbon 
TOTAL CHEMICALS 

CHEMICAL COST 

$511.M4.47 
$975,970.23 
5871,851.23 
5107,315.34 
S377.146.44 
5417,927.81 
5273,165.20 

SO.OO 

53,534.520.73 

CHEMICAL COST PER 

MILLION GALLONS 
$10.21 
$19.50 
$17.42 
52.14 
57.54 
58.35 
55.46 
SO.OO 

570.63 

Purification Plant Operating Cost: 
Total Water Treated in 2010: 
Total Water Treated in 2009: 

50,040,840,000 Galloas 
50.515,380.000 Gallons 

TOTALCOST 

PER iMILLION GALLONS 

YEAR 

2010 
2009 
2008 

1 2007 
2006 

TOTAL 
WATER 
50,040.84 
50.515.38 
48.867.31 
48.931.79 
51.000.17 

OPERATING COST 

57,868,284.00 
57,672.872.00 
58,283,745.00 
56,499,521.00 
55,591,146.00 

TOTAL COST PKK 
MILLION GALLONS 

5157.24 
5151.89 
5169.52 
5132.83 
5109.63 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

TABLE IX 

ALGIERS OPERATION 

CHEMICAL 

Lime 
Ferric Coaî ulant 
Sodium Hypochlorite 
Sodium Polyphospiiatc 
Polyeiectrolytc 
Kluoride(100%) 
Ammonia 
Sodium Bisulfite* 
Hydrochloric Acid* 
Carbon 
TOTAL CHEMICALS 

CHEMICAL COST 

5197,604.98 
5125.387.55 
588.201.47 
531.303.48 
S3L7I3.79 
$25,637.54 
$22,676.75 
54.794.00 
$3,776.00 

$0.00 
5531,095.55 

CHEMICAL COST PER 
MILLION GALLONS 

548.13 
530.54 
S21.48 
57.62 
57.72 
$6.24 
55.52 
51.22 
50.96 
SO.OO 

5129.44 

*used in on-.sitc generation of chlorineMiypochloritc 

Purification Plant Operating; Cost: 
Total Water Treated in 2010: 4,105,810.000 Gallons 

IOTAL COST 

PER MILLION GALLONS 

YEAR 

2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 

TOTAL 
WATER 

4.105.81 
3,935.84 
3,788.95 
4.427.16 
4.261.05 
3,723.03 

OPERATING COST 

51,995,926.00 
$1,894,092.00 
52,029.729.00 
51,700,033.00 
$1,435,527.00 
$1,678,615.00 

TOTAL COST PER 
MILLION GALLONS 

5486.12 
$481.24 
S535.70 
$384.00 
$336.90 
$450.87 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

TABLE X 

SLUDGE KEMOVEI) FROM THE "G" BASINS PRIMARY TREATiMENT UNITS 
DOOR MONORAKE CONVENTIONAL SYSTEM 

2010 

I •• • V!!;!" "" • r 1-: 1 

Total Million Gallons Water Treated 

TotJtl Tons Dr\' Sludge Deposited in Basins Including suspended and Dissolved Solids 

Removed and Rcaeting Chemicals 

Total iVlitlion Gallons Wci Sluduc Withdrawn from IJasius 
.Averaue Percent solids in Wet Sludiie 
Total Million Gallons Water Used in withdrawinji Slud.cc 
Percent ofTotal Water Treated Used in Withdrawiru; Wet Sludiie 

30,255.50 

4.912 
878.48 

0.13 
877.99 

2.90 

TABLE X-A 

SLUDGE REMOVED FROM THE "L" BASINS PRIMARY TREATMENT UNITS 
DOOR .MONORAKE CONVENTIONAL SYSTEM 

2010 

Total .Million Gallons Water Treated 

Total Tons Dry Sludge Deposited in Rasins Including suspended and Dissolved Solids 
Removed and Reacting Cheniieais 

Total Million Gallons Wet Sludjic Withdrawn from Basins 
AvcraiiC Percent solids in Wet Sludue 
Total Million Gallons Water Used in wiihdrawinE; Sluduc 
Percent ofTotal Water Treated Used in Wilhdrawiim Wet Sludue 

19,731.961 

5.691 
263.97 

0.51 
263.40 

1.34 
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SKWI:;U.A(;K AND WA i KÎ  IIOARI) OI' M:W OKIJ;ANS 
TAHLKXI 

2010 ANAl.^.SIS DAI A l-OK SVM' OKMiANS 

DRINKINC." WATIOU IHHtinCAUO.N S\>;i LM 

ThercMiils for coii-SliUienls indicated with asterisks arc l"roiTi tJie l.oai.'iiana Dcpartincni olHealtli aiul Hospilal,-;. 

Toiid Orgnnic Carbon and Maioaceiic Acid re.sidtsare- from n DIIH eeiiilied conii-aci laboratoiy. 

All Oilier rcsulis are lioni icstiiii; by the St.V:WH Water Qnnlily I.abora'.nry. 

(.:oiiccrniii» tlic chemical rcsiiU.';. the .S^tWH I,abur;ito:y doe.s no: meet the biyber criteria reijurred by IJllll lo Ix-

clas,siricd ns a''t3MM-01'll Catificc/ Chemical l.abr>iatoiy/I)rinkii]y U'ater;" liierefoie, nny results rcjHirtcd by ihis 

laboratory for I'heinicnl drinkinî i, Wiiter parameleis which arc required to be analy^i^d in a ccrtififd laboraioiy are 

iitTicially deemed inv;iliti 

Tlic y&WM Laboratory i.s ccrtil'tcd by [)\ III !or Total ColiTorm and Iccal Coiiforin tcstiny. 

*• Note: The k'ad and copper tcstinfi was [XTEbrmed in 2008 by 1,A Dill I, 

PAKAMI-VIKR 

Ui\.\\ Alkalinity (pp\n as CaCO>) 

Totfil Hiudncss (ppm a?; CaCO-.) 

Noncarbonaic I lnrdncs.<; (pp ' " ''« CaCOi) 

Cilciurn Hurdiics.'; (ppivi a.s CaCO,) 

MajiMtfsium Hfirdncss (ppm as CaCO,) 

Nephelometric'Ciirbidiiv ( N I U ) 

oU 

Cbloride(ni:)ni) 

l''li!oride (ppm't 
Total Dissolved Solids (ppm) 

Total .Suspended .Solids (iipm) 

l-rce Chlorine Residua! (ppm as Cl , ) 

Total Chlorine Residual (ppm as Ci.) 

Ammonia fppm iis N) 

Nitrate ^ Nitrite (ppm as N) " 

•Sulfate (ppm) * 
Coriductiviiv{M-S/em) 

Tompor:ilii!-t; H ' ) 

AKimini i i iKppm)* 

Aiiti i i ionv (ppm) * 

Arsenic (ppm)'* 

n: i r ium(pinn)* 

!ncr\-iliunfi(pprn'l * 

CadmiLim (ppm) * 

Chit imii i i i i (p;-ni i * 

Copper ( p p m ) ' 

Iron (ppin) * 

Lead fppir.) * 

M;;nr.ancse(|)piii)* 

Mercury fppiJi) * 

Nickel (ppm)-* 

Seleii i i i in(p!ini) ' ' 

Silver (ppm) * 

Thallitim (ppm) * 

l/.inc (ppm) • 

|l^)tiissium (p»!Ti) * 

Sodium (ppm) * 

Cv;!iitde (ppbl * 
Mid(iaeeiieAdds(HAA.^)(pph) 

Total Ortimtc Carbon (ppii i) 

Total Tiihalomcthanw (ppl>) 
[ l.2-Diehloicih:inc([;pb) 

iChSoroforir. {npb> 
Carbon 'Tctraehloiide (ppb) 

tiromodichloromethnne (ppb) 

•Tetraehiotoetheiieippb) 

l iTX (Heiixene, Toluene i t Xvlenes>(])pb) 
Toi.ll ColiTorms (CFUs/KtO mi) 
a-cal Colifonr,-^ (CTUs/lOO ml j 

MISSiSSli ' l ' IKlVI-.K 

(before PiiiitiijiUidii) 

MAX 

212 

238 

M 

177 

104 

274 

821 

••li 

0.49 

K)2 

]52 

6U9 

:S9 

4.7 

0.0 

uo 
0 0 

0.0 

0.0 
0.0 

0.6 

4500 
ftfiU 

M IN 

'•y:s 

lU-

0 

79 

5 

4.6 

7.4f^ 

10 

0.09 

179 

>\ 

179 

37 

.1.1 

0.0 
o t i 

0.0 

' • > . ( ) 

0.0 

O.o 

0.0 

44 
tJ 

A V G 

• 4 . \ 

i 78 

36 

12.1 

54 

71 

7M) 

29 

0 27 

224 

122 

.179 

6.'; 

— 

."5.9 

0.0 
U(J 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

0.0 

O.ti 

940 
70 

HNISni -DW.ATKK 

(After Piiriticalion) 

M A X 

227 

264 

X4 

204 

164 

0.24 

9.30 

55 

L i y 

351 

O.-l 

5.5 

0.73 
T 

57 

650 

8S 

O.OS 

0.000 
' 1.001 

0 

0.000 

0.000 

n.oo 
0.3 

0.02 

0.033 

0.00 

0.000 

0.0 

0.00 

0.00 

0 000 

0 

6.S 

27.0 

0.0 

28 

4.1 

43.6 
0.0 

31.9 

0.0 

12.0 

0.0 

0.0 

12 

0 

M IN 

98 

140 

2 

75 

16 

O.Wi 

7 74 

14 

().5.t 

130 

0.0 

0.2 

0.00 
T 

57 

IS5 

41 

0.08 

0.000 

0.001 

(t 

0.000 

0.000 

0.00 

0.0 

0.02 

0.000 

O.tJi) 

0.000 

0.0 

0.00 

0.00 

0.000 

0 

6.8 

27.0 

0.0 

15 

2.2 

too 
O.l) 

5.6 

0.0 

1.6 

0.0 
0.0 

0 
0 

AV(.; 

155 

196 

42 

142 

54 

0.13 

iS.83 

32 

0.90 

251 

0.3 

3.2 

0.15 
2 

57 

425 

72 

O.O.S 

0 ,000 

0.001 

0 

0.000 

0 0 0 0 

O.Of 

0 1 

0.02 

0 .005 

0 .00 

0 .000 

0.0 

0.(J0 

0 .00 

0 .000 

0 

6.8 

27.0 

0.0 

ty.6 

3.( 

25.4 
0.0 

16.7 

0.0 
7 0 

0.0 

0.0 

0 

0 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

TABLE XII 

EXTRACTS FROM TABLES IV-E AND V 
20 Year Pciiod, 1991 to 2010 Inclusive 

Mjiximuin, Minimuin, and Average Amount of 
Water Treated Per Day 

(M.G. per 24 Hours) 

YI-AK 

\')9\ 
1992 
1993 
I9<)4 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 

21)05 
2006 
2007 
200S 
2U()9 

2010 

, • . . - . . • ••••••rjs -; 

CAKKOLl.TON 
MAX. 

133.29 
139.00 
140.3S 

I2S.88 
142.83 
198.42 
I56..53 
152.96 

168.25 
152.50 
153.93 
128.67 

144.26 
145.83 
144.00 
165.63 
144.75 
143.50 
147.92 
156.50 

MIN. 
98.92 
97.00 

103.25 
103.88 
104.67 
91.59 

112.70 
98.48 

122.55 
126.71 
107.75 
87.00 
90.75 

102.92 
0.00 

115.33 
124.00 
114.08 
129.83 
125.33 

AVG. 
114.79 
115.22 
117.41 
113.71 
121.40 
128.97 
128.73 
126.86 

140.26 
128.10 
126.70 
106.63 
115.35 
122.57 
115.47 
139.73 
134.06 
133.88 
138.40 
137.10 

ALGUZRS 
MAX. 

12.50 
13.88 
15.42 
17.00 
18.14 
18.27 
18.83 
22.96 
22.00 
18.83 
15.76 
14.00 
13.16 

13.16 
22.67 
18.34 
16.00 
13.58 
14.00 
15.()7 

MIN. 
s.oo 
8.00 
7.62 
8.00 
9.00 
9.00 
9.58 

12.00 
8.90 
7.58 
6.00 
6.66 
8.00 
8.00 
7.00 
8.00 

10.00 
6.92 
8.00 
8.00 

AVG. 
9.60 

9.88 
10.18 
11.47 
11.55 
11.47 
12.06 
12..36 
15.19 
12.13 
10.90 
9.80 

10.06 

10.15 
10.20 
11.67 
12.13 
10.38 
10.78 
11.25 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

TABLE XIM 

Monthly Tcmpcrnftirc (Degrees Fsdirciihcit) of the 
Miysissippl River Wiitcr at the Cnrrollton Plant 

Jiniuary 

I'ebruary 

Miiich 

April 

Mav 

June 

liiiv 

Aiij^usl 

Stpicmhui 

C.>ctobcr 

November 

December 

Maxiimiin 

Miniimitn 

Avcrai;c 

2001 

39 

44 

49 

57 

69 

75 

82 

84 

83 

73 

63 

56 

87 

36 

65 

2002 

45 

46 

49 

56 

67 

74 

82 

84 

82 

73 

62 

53 

85 

42 

64 

2003 

48 

48 

51 

60 

70 

73 

79 

81 

80 

73 

65 

53 

83 

46 

64 

2004 

49 

47 

54 

62 

71 

79 

8? 

84 

81 

74 

65 

53 

87 

45 

67 

Ten Yer 

iV1a.\inuini 

Mini imii i i : 

Avcrai;;c: 

2005 

44 

48 

51 

62 

71 

81 

85 

88 

* 
76 

66 

51 

90 

42 

6r> 

f Period 

90 

36 

66 

2006 

50 

51 

55 

(\3 

74 

83 

86 

88 

86 

78 

63 
54 

90 

46 

69 

2007 

52 

47 

56 

63 

71 

79 

82 

85 

82 

75 

63 

58 

89 

40 

68 

20(»8 

50 

53 

55 

63 

68 

77 

80 

82 

78 

7! 

f>3 

55 

85 

42 

66 

2009 

50 

46 

51 

58 

69 

79 

85 

84 

81 

70 

59 
49 

86 

42 

65 

* Data Mil ttvailahio f( 

Scplcriiber 200.S due 

to hurricane Kalrina. 

2010 

41 

41 

48 

62 

7! 

81 

85 

86 

83 

72 

61 

5(1 

89 

37II 
65 

r 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER HOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 

TARLE XIV 

Monthly Temperature (Degrees Pahrciihcit) of the 

Tap Water at the Carrollton Plant 

Januarv 

Pobriiary 

March 

April 
Mav 

June 

July 

August 

September 

October 

November 
December 

iVIaxiimim 

Minimum 
Average 

2006 

66 

64 

71 

77 

79 

84 

84 

86 

84 

81 

72 
67 

90 

54 
76 

2007 

65 

64 

70 

72 

76 

76 

79 

78 

77 

77 

74 
71 

85 

58 
73 

Five Yei 

Maximum: 

Minimuin: 

Average: 

2008 

67 

69 

71 

72 

76 

8! 

83 

80 

80 

78 

72 
68 

86 

59 
75 

ir Period 

90 

41 

74 

2009 

66 

65 

68 

70 

74 

78 

80 

78 

77 

74 

69 
65 

88 

51 
72 

2010 

61 

61 

66 

70 

76 

SO 

82 

84 

80 

75 

66 
60 

88 
41 
72 

lV-27 
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î i < 7. 

f5g 

f l V-. 

3 3 
~ go 

t- l 06 

?l s 
t n • ' . 
•o o 
~ Ci 

— p.. 

~ r i 

s 

il- < :^ 

P. 5 

s -

L^f:! 

SE^ 

— f l 

v! -L 

Iv. 

^ f l 

i?. 

IT: " ' 

r i i~ 
f l •/. 
r i f l 

1 

1-

i p 

i l l 

i-'i ? i 

f - a 
— (S 

L S 

;; .̂  

^ ? . 

r-. i-j 

s?-

Sf l 

Z ?: 

i 
1 i 

i l l 

s s 
^"r; 

'5 y 
r--' t -

3,5 

•ft - t 

r i — 

— f l 
i-T « i 

•3 _ 

s; I? 

tA c . 

efl I'l 
«-._ r-. 

9 " 
—. (•> 
~ f-l 

i f f̂ ' 

.c 

i.i 
^ aft .f-. 

ill 

-•f n 

T; t'J: 
f-. t 

£ 2' 

2 : t 

f l p. 

S S 
_' -f 
— r l 

•-. f . 

— f-. 

1 —. 

1- 1^. 

— o 

f l if. 

•A 

r- i ; 

y . •>. 

5 <<^ 

•ft .rt 
G O 

3S 

If. V. 

S o 

1^ 

ss 

ss 

3S 

m 
ii: < 7 

v '/ 

^ T2 

- S 

f- 2 

•» ?. 

.. s 

.; f i 

- f . 

'•' r. 

'- Ti 

"El 

i 

5 _ 

lO f-

'•P.P. 

• i s 

r-. «-. 

-c -0 

O 10 
-r —; 

:5 2; 

ifia 

o — 
(fl — 
•C 1 -

•f 

ill 
LiJ --. -f. 

. f 

f 1 

•s 

1 

i 

i 

1 ^ . 

-? 

^ 

^ 

t 

it 

2 < H 

M 

(-1 

• f . 

O 
t l 

-

• i 

f 

• 

f . 
f-! 

3 i 

1 
•g 
•̂  

• = 

I 
Ji 

1 
£• 
u 

'6 

1 ;; 
_>• 

3 

i' 

IV-2" 



SEVVKRAGF AND WATi:U HOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
ANNUAL REPORT 2010 - FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 3K 2010 

SEWER TABULATION NUMBER I 
SEWER LINES AND MANHOLES IN THE SYSTEM AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 

SEWER LINES DISCARDED AND INSTALLED IN 2010 

OUIGINAL 
CONSTKUC.-nON 

1 (I-HHT) 
8.007,668.3 

i ) i : s rROYi: i )Oi i 
.MJANDO.NKl) 

IN 2010 
{FHI-'O 
74,273.S 

i iu i i / r 
IN 2010 
(I-'lil'T) 
80,430.7 

K I : M A I M . \ ( ; IN 

rn icsYS ' iKM 
AS o r 12/31/2010 

{m:;v} 
8,013,825.2 

KKM.MNI.NC; IN 
rnKSYSTK.M 

A.SOK12/3I/2tnO 
(MILHSJ 

1,517,770 

.Si:\Vr,K MANHOI.KS KKMOVKI) AM) INS'IALLKI) IN 2010 

OUKMNAL 
CONSTKUCTION 

1 22,998 

UKMOVKI) 
IN 2010 

134 

IN 2010 

183 

KKMAININ(; IN IMI-: SVS IKM 
AS OF 12/31/2010 

23.047 

DKTAILS o r .SK\VI;:R I J N K . S A N D S K W K K M A N H O L I I S iNSTAl,IJ:i) (CON.STiUiCniD) IN 2010 

riKMS 
6" I'.V.C. 
8"UUCI[LHIR()N 
r H.V.C. 
10-' \>.\.C. 
r2"P.v.c. 
15"P.V.C. 
I6"1».V.C. 
18"P.V.C. 
2r ' i>.v.c. 
2'r'DUCT!LI-IKON 
24" r .v .c . 
27" I'.V.C. 
30" I'.V.C. 

TOIAI.SKWKU LINKS 
CONS'lRDCn:!) IN 2010 

ItOAUl) FUNDKI) 
6.781.9 

135.0 
17,649.8 
1.182.0 
588.0 
297.8 
500.0 

1.872.0 
126.0 
0.0 
0.0 
0.0 

109.0 

29,241.5 

IJY O T H E R S 

9,658.3 

0.0 
28,542.9 

4.443.0 

8,115.0 

0.0 
0.0 
0.0 
12.0 

58.0 

12.0 

.V18.0 

0.0 

51,189.2 

i ' o i A L n a : ! 
16.440.2 

135.0 
46J92.7 
5.625.0 
8,703.0 
297-8 
500.0 

1.872.0 
138.0 
58.0 
12.0 

348.0 
109.0 

SO.430.7 

lOTAlt MILKS 
3.114 
0.026 
8.749 
1.065 
1.648 
0.056 
0.095 
0.355 
0.026 
0.011 
0.002 
0.066 
0.021 

15.233 

S I ; W I : R . \ I A N I I O I , I : S 

c;ONsriu;(: 'H':i)iN20io 
IJOARO I'tNDi:!) 

71') 

BYOri lKRS 
107 

TOTAL MANIIOLKS lUiiL'l IN 2010 
183 
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SIAVI;«A(;K AND \VA IKR no.ARi) OF NKW OKLKANS 
ANNUAL KKl'ORT 2010 - I'OU TIIK CAI.KNDAU Y I : A K K N U I N C ; I)i:f:KMHKU 3L 2010 

WATKK T A H I J L A T I O N M!MUKk 1 
\TKK LINKS, MAN1IOLK.S, VALVKS, AND KIRI-: IIVDUANTS IN TIIK SYSTKM AS OK DKCK.MBKK 31.2( 

WfVTKR LINKS DlSCARDKl) AND INSTALLKD IN 2010 

ORIGINAL 

CONSTRl iCnON 
iviii-y) 

8,'340,9If..2 

DKSTUO^'KDOK 
AH.ANDONKD 

IN 2010 

{l-l'irD 
y3,323.3 

BUILT 

IN 2010 
(iT.HI) 

149.944.1 

KKMA1N1NC;IN 

r i n ; SYSTKM 
AS OK 12/31/2010 

(i-l-l-T) 
8,397,537.0 

KKMAININf; IN 
TIIK SYSTKM 

AS OF 12/31/2010 
tMIlJ-.S> 
1.590.443 

WAI KU MANHOI.KS KK.MOVKD AND INSIALLKD IN 2010 

OUKVINAI, 
CONSTRUCnON 

29.741 

RKMOVKD 
IN 2010 

177 

lUilLT 
IN 2010 

393 

RKMAININC; IN TIIK SYSTKM 
AS OF 12/31/2010 

29,957 

U Al KR VAIAKS RK.MOVKD AND IN.STAKLKD IN 2010 

ORIGINAL 
1 C'ONSTRUCnON 
1 29.277 

RKMOVKD 
IN 2010 

211 

INSTALLKI) 
IN 2010 

300 

RKMAININ(; IN TIIK SYSl KM 1 
AS OK 12/31/2010 j 

29,36f» 1 

FIRK IIYDRA.MS RKMOVKI) AND IN.STALLKD IN 2010 

1 OUIOI.NAL 
1 ClONSTRliCnON 
1 22..S94 

RKMOVKO 
IN 2010 

205 

INSIALLKD 
IN 2010 

300 

RKMAININO IN I Hi: SYSTKM 
.\S OF 12/31/2010 

22,9«9 

IL.S OF WATKK LINKS, MANHOl.K.S, VALVK.S, AND FIKK HYDRANTS INSTAI.LKD (CONSTRIJCTKD) J 

11 K.MS 
2"P.V.C. 

4" Ducrnij-: IKON 
|4"i'.v.(.:. 

tVDUCnUZIKON 
6- I'.V.C 
t ; "nucn i . i i !KON 
X" f».V,C. 
i2-'i:>UCnLl:lK0N 

! i : " I ' .vc. 

jiivnucrii.iiiKON 
T O I A i . W A I K R LINKS 
CON.S'IKt;CTKDIN20tO 

HOARDFLNDKD 
6.439.0 
L045.0 
l,04.i.(J 
209.0 

l,9L\5 
3.! 09.0 

57M-i.O 
301.0 

li.I27..-i 
16.0 

83.101,0 

BYOTHKRS 

3.292.0 
102.0 

i..';20.:i 
1.915.3 
2.633.5 
1.879.0 

50.417.0 

243.0 
'4.,S'11.0 

0.0 

66,843.1 

T O I A L FKKT 

9.731.0 
1.147.0 

2,565.3 
2,124.3 
4,.*;49.0 
5.04,̂ .(.( 

I0it,25!.0 

544.0 
1S,96S.5 

16.0 

149,944.1 

l O l A L MILKS 

I.S43 
0.217 
0.4.S6 1 
0.^02 
0..S62 
|).W56 
20.502 
0.t03 
3.02*1 
0.00? 

28.399 

WAI KR MANHOI.KS 
<.ON.STRIJ(:TI:DIN2OIO 

BOARD ITiNDKD 
31« 

BYOTHHKS 
75 

TOTAL MANHOLKS IJUILT IN 2010 I; 
393 f 

1 
W.ATKRVALVKS 

INSTALLKI) IN 2010 
BOARD F1=NI)KD 

225 

nVOI I IKRS 

75 

AL WA IKK VALVKS INSTALLKI) IN \ 
300 

FIRKIIYDRANIS 
IN.STALLKD IN 2010 

l iOAKl) FLNDKD 
217 

HYOIHKKS 

S3 
AL FIRK HYDRANTS IN.S I'ALLKD IN | 

300 

IV-32 



SK\VKHA(;K .\M> \V,\I KK IK)AUI> OF M:\V OKLKANS 

ANNUAL UKPORr2«H>-K0in lie, (:Al.K.Nr>,\R^KAH KNOlNf; nWKMBKKJI.IOlO 
WATKK'J'.MU.'1.A'II0.V.\UM[)KR 2 

i.K.\(; (H (IK WA'rr.ii I,INK.S o r KACI I SI/.E A M ) MA IMHAI , , MS.MHKK OK ̂ •Al,v^;s of-" EACH SI/,K, H O I I I c v r t AND CHVCK, 

OIU(:iNAl,l.VINSTAI,I.Kn.lllV.0l'AVnTIKSI>I.S(A!U)KnOH Bl'n,T.A,MrrilK(JI!A.MHULSNO\VKKMAIM.M; JMHKDLSIKmtllONSV.SIKM 

WATKlt ),).»>; 1 
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.if.-
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y.r 
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0¥\vi\nr>m 
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SX..1JW.K 

i : .7 i ' . t .3 

. i f i . s iS 1 

- : , y ! ( : ' . 
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3 V « 

lV.7i)S 6 

72,72.1.2 

. l l - . / ' iS. l i ! 
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I.-I.S.1 1 

J0,4M>.2 

• i . r i t i i . s 

111,270 5 

•.)l, 'K)').l 

i X 2 i : . i 

!.>l.7?.^8 

2 1 ^ 5 
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i i 7 . - i ' ; K . i 

J . z 7 : i 
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1 272'.) 

. if,. i.25.\ 7 

\ ( A i \ n [ . ' i 

io. jsr.7 

(.10.0 

i : . ; / . ! ! -

.V?.14 11 

I.IK. K 5 7 ' ) 

22,21! J..^ 

7 i i . f . ' ! f . y 

.VJ!,.!IW h 

.UKi i . l ' ' , .'l 

; . 7S l .< i?2 . ' 

i - ' . j ' i ' * . : 

i . i w i . 7 w : ^ 

J i i i . i i t ^ i z 

I 2 l . . : s 5 5 

M I . K : ' I 

712 2 

V K - i i ^ 3 

H.Tf i ; .1 

J.2J7 

J . JC l 7 

3I>.S'12 1 

•i.( i20 (1 

Ci2.:tM!('» 

J . l - : ( i (. 

«JJ» . *M( . .2 

1.S79.7I9 

iu:sTnovi-:ii<i« 
A l t A . M J O N C n r.v 

2010 
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<.i.-:i 

H i 
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oo 

0 !1 

t " . 

• ) . ! 
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n-t) 

W..123..I 

17,6 7.< 

n i n i . r i . v 21)11) 

II.O 

O i l 
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11 f l 

111! 

O i l 

f l l 

n o 
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(111 

0.11 
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OC 
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O.fi 

O i l 

0 (1 

0 0 

i ( ' .0 
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li.C 

0 ( ! 

11 0 

no 
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; M I 

0 1 . 

I^%!(5 
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0.1 

0 « 

0 1 

0.! 

S.1M!1.< 

O.t 
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l i t 
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2.1.V<.1 
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0 0 
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Of 

O.l 

01 

0 0 

v-n.i 
o.f: 

I4W.9J4.I 

IS.J^CJ 

N O W R K M A I M . N f 
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-S.SOK12M1'201I ) 

7.S35.t 

KS.- IM H 
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SEVVKRAGE AND WATER BOAR!) OF NEW ORLEANS 
COS r OF OPERATIONS IDENTH iCATlON PROGRAM 

BENCHMARKING 2010 

-ADMlNiSTR-Al IVIL SERVrCKS DEPARTMENT 
liijitirnncc Cost per Employee: 

Workers' Compen.sation 
Auto Liiibility 
General Liabrliiv 

s 
s 
s 

1,900.94 

371.44 

72.76 

KNGINI'EKING DEPAK I MENT 
Foiai Capital Program Design and 

Coiislruction Contracls Cost Growtii 6.1% 

ENVIRONMENTAL DEPARIMEIST 
Cost (iCTypical Industry'Sampling Kvcnt 623.^0 

lAClLI TV MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 
Cost to .*;ol 5.'8" water meter 94..5 9 

MNA.NCK AD.MiNIS IRATION: 
Cost to Process a Miscellaneous Invoice 
Cost to Proces.s a Vendor invoice 
C'o.st to l^rocess a Paycheck 

INKOKMATION SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION: 
Cost to Imayo a Document 
C-o.st to Retrieve a Docufncnt 

IMCKSONNKLAD.MINISTRAIION: 
Co,st to Hire an Rmploycc 
Cobt to complete a Voluntaiy 

Employee Termination 
l;inploy'ce Turnover Kate 
Cost to Train an l.'jnployee 

s 
s 
s 

s 
s 

s 

s 

.-̂ 0.6.*= 

14.25 

6.27 

0.31 

1.65 

154.^^6 

! 6.68 

7.54% 

h/A 

PliKCHASING ADMINISTRATION: 
Cost to Process a Sundry Purchase Order 43.78 

U E V I ; N U E ADMINISTRATION: 

Cost to Read a .Meter 
Cost to Render a Bill 

(l.ess Meter Reading) 
Cost to Manage a Customer by Phone 
Cost to Manage a Customer by Mail 
Cost to .Manage a Walk-in Customer 
Cost (0 Process a iVIail-in Paynicni 
Cost to Process a Waik-in Payment 

1.1,̂  

s 
.s 
s 
s 
-S 

s 

0.70 

2.80 

5.96 
4.12 

0.50 

1.06 

SUPPORT SlilRVICES DEPARTMEN K 
Average Annual Maintenance Cost 
Per Pieee of f̂ ^quipment 

1.200.00 
15';'. 
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i iail i?l| Postlethwaite 
^ î9^m ^̂  Netterville 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCLAL REPOR1 TNG 
AND ON COMPLLVNCE AND OTKER MATTERS BASED ON A.N AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOlliRNMENT AUDITING ST.iNDARDS 

To the Members of tlie Board 
Sewerage and Waier Board of New Orleans: 

Wc have audited the financial stalements of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans (the Board), 
as oi and for the year December 31, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated .May 20, 2011. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standai'ds generally accepted in the l.Tnited States of 
America and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards., 
issued by the Comptroller General oflhe United States. 

internal Control Over Financial Repoitint; 

In plarming and performang our audit, we considered the Board's internal control over financial reporting 
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of cxprcssiiig otir opinion on the fmancial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing ajti opinion on the effectiveness of the Board's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, W'C do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Board's internal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of interna! control over fmancial reporting was for the limited puqwse described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over fmancial 
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no 
assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. 
However, as described in the accompanying schedule of fmdings and questioned costs, we identiiled 
certain deficiencies in' internal control over finaneial rcportiing that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 

A deficiency in interna! control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the nonna! course of perfonning their a.ssigned fimctions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely l">asis. A malerial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements v,'i\{ not be prevented, or detected owd corrected o\\ a timely basis. We 
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanymg schedule of fmdings and questioned costs, 
indexed as 2010-1 and 2010-2, to be material weaknesses. 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As pait of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether tlie Board's fmancial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with w^hich could have a direct and material effect on the 
deterniination of fmancial statement amounts, liowever. providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
repotted under Government Auditing Standards. 

The Board's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accohapanying schedule 
of fmdings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Board's responses and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the responses. 

This report is intended solely for the itiformation and use of the Board, the Board's management and 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, such as the State of T^ouisiana and Legislative 
Auditor's Office and is noi intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than tliese specified 
parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Stamte 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative 
Auditor as a public document. 

• & ^ , 
^ / 

New Orleans, Louisiana 
May 20, 2011 

P&N 



t U l A I Postlethvvaite 
"^^^^ & Netterville 

W - . v v / . p f i c p C C.O!V. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WTITIREQLTIRKMENTS THAT 
COLXD BL\VE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH M.\JOR PROGIL\M AND 

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLLAJVCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB 
CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

To the Members of the Board 
Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans: 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans (the Board), with the 
t\'pes of compliance requirements described in the Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could 
have direct and materia! effect on each of the Board's major federal programs for the year ended 
December 31, 2010. The Board's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's 
resuhs section of the accompanying schedule of fmdings and questioned costs. Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is 
the responsibility of the Board's management Our responsibilits' is to express an opinion on the Board's 
compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standfirds generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued l)y the Comptroller General of tlie United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
Slates, Local Governments, and .Non~Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that wc plan and pcrfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about w'hether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a dkect and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
Board's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as w-e considered 
necessar)' in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determinafion of the Board's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the Board complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 
31, 2010. However, die results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance with 
those requirements, which is required to be reported in accord^mce with OMB Circular A-133 and which 
is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2010-3. 

internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulafions, contracts, and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Board's internal control over 

- 3 -
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compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board's internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when die design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing tlieir assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or corabmation of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such tliat there is a 
reasonable possibility diat material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to idenfify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, 
as detmed above. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

We have audited the financial statements of the Board as of and for the year ended December 31. 2010, 
and have issued our report thereon dated May 20, 2011. Our audit was performed for the purpose of 
forming our opinion on the Board's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented tbr purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB 
Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such informafion has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our 
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

The Board's responses to the findings identified in our audit arc described in tlie accompanying schedule 
of fmdings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Board's responses and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on tlie responses. 

This report is intended solely for the iafomiation of the Board, die Board's management and federal 
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, such as the Louisiana and Legislative Auditor's Office, and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public 
document. 

New Orieans, Louisiana 
May 20, 2011 

P&N 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLE.\NS 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the year ended December 31,2010 

Federal Grantor/Program Title 
CFDA 

Number Expenditures 

Department of Flousing and Urban Development -
Community Development Block Grants 

Passed through State of Louisiana Office of 
Community Development 

Environmental Protection Agency-
Surveys, Studies, Investigation and Special 
Puipose Grants: Sewer System Evaluahon and 
Rehabiliatation Procram 

14.228 $ 9,943-2! 

66.606 225,788 

L^nvironmental Protection Agency-
Research & Technology Foundation: 'fhe Lake 
Pontchartrain Basin Program: 

Passed throui^h Univcrsitv of New Orleans 66.202 94.358 

Environmental Protection Agency-
Capitalizafion Grants for Drinking Water State 
Revolving Funds: 

Passed through Louisiana Department of 
liealth and Hospitals 

Non-ARRA lomi 
ARRA loan 
ARRA grant 

66.468 
66.468 
66.468 

597,967 
34,875 

148,757 

United States Department of Homeland Security -
I^iblic Assistance Grants: 

Passed through the State of Louisiana Office of 
Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness 

United States Department of Homeland Security -
Special Community' Disaster Loans (note 4) 

97.036 

97.030 

17,297.942 

$ 28,342,975 

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 



SEWER.\GE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

December 31, 2010 

(1) General 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of the federal 
awards of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans (the Board). The Board's reporting 
entity is defined in note 1 to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010. All 
federal awards received from federal agencies are included on the schedule. 

(2) Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual 
basis of accounting, which is described in note 1 to the Board's financial statements for the year 
ended December 31, 2010. 

(3) Relation.ship to Basic Financial Statements 

Federal awards are included in statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets as 
follows; 

Operating and maintenance grants $ 9,367,940 
Capital contributions 18,342,193 
Bonds payable 632,842 

$ 28,342,975 

(4) Loans Payable to Federal Agency 

The Board received a Special Community Disaster Loan (die "Loan") from Ihe federal government 
in January 2006. The Board was granted a partial forgiveness on the loan in the amount of 
$36,790,000. The Bo îrd was also granted a five year extension in the loan temis. The loan balance 
as of December 31, 2010 totaled $25,166,747. The terms oflhe Loan call for interest to accrue at 
various annual rates to be repaid with the principal when the Loan becomes due during 2016. 

The Board entered uito an agreement with the Louisiana Depailment of Health and Hospitals (the 
Department) whereby the Department has committed to loan the Board up to 53,400,000 to fund 
the installation of a new sodium h\pchlorite storage and feed facility as well as the installation of a 
new sludge line iuto the Mississippi River (project). The loan is to be advanced in incremental 
amounts as project costs are incurred. The debt will be paid in 20 principal installments. The 
ultimate amount of borrowings is not yet known as of December 31, 2010 since the project is under 
construction. Principal pa\inents are to begin Febrttary 1, 2011 but may be deferred for one year if 
the project is not completed by that date. The bonds have an interest rate of 2.95%. .A portion of 
the LADHH bonds payable is to be funded with amounts provided under the American Recovery 
and Reinvestment Act'(ARRA), Up to $1,000,000 of the ARRA Loan can be forgiven. The Board 
received advances of $667,717 through December 31, 2010. Of this amount, $34,875 has been 
forgiven, and S632,842 is recorded as bonds payable at December 3 I, 2010. 



SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended December 3 1, 2010 

(1) Summary of Auditors' Results 

(a) The t>'pe of report issued on the basic financial statements: unqualified opinion 

(b) Significant deficiencies in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the basic financial 
statements: no; Material weaknesses: yes 

(c) Noncompliance which is material to the basic financial statements: no 

(d) Significant deficiencies in internal control over major program: no; 
Material weaknesses: no 

(e) The t>pe of report issued on compliance for major program: unqualified opinion 

(f) Any audit findings which are required to be reported under Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-
133̂ : yes 

(g) Major program: 

Environmental Protection Agency -
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds - Passed through Louisiana 
Department of Health and Hospitals (CFDA number 66.468) 

United States Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency -
Public Assistance Grants - passed through the State of l^ouisiana (CFDA number 97.036) 

(h) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $850,289 

(i) Auditec qualified as a low-risk auditee under Section 530 of OMB Circular A-133: no 

(2) Findings Relating to the Basic Financial Statements Reported in Accordatice with Government Auditing 
Standards: 

2010-1 - Internal Control over Financial Reportins 

{̂ 9/]d}.{}.".lK T'le Board should have systems of internal'control which ensures the basic financial 
statements are presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles on a 
timely basis. 



SEWERAGE .\ND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Quesfioned Costs (continued) 

Year ended December 3 L 2010 

(2) Findings Relating to the Basic Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Govemmertt 
Auditing Standards (continued): 

2010-1 - Internal Control over Financial Reporting (continued) 

Criteria: The definition of internal controls over financial reporting is that policies and 
procedures exist that pertain to an entity's abilit>' to iniiiate, record, process, and report financial 
data consistent with the assertions embodied in the annual financial statements, which for the 
Board is that financial statements arc prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
prmciples (CaA-AP). 

Cause: While wc noted significant improvement in the timeliness of certain account 
reconciliations, management did not perform the reconciliations of some general ledger accounts 
iî  a timely ra;.inncr resulting in audit adjustments. 

Ktfect: During the cour.̂ e of our audit procedures we identified significant adjusting entries to 
general ledger accotnits due to the significance of the financial stiUement adjustments. 

Auditor's recommendation: All general ledger accounts should be reconciled in a timely manner 
and reviewed by management Tliis review should be documented, 

Mano^zement response: .Management agrees with this finding. This represents a continuation of 
findings since 2005 of internal control weaknesses over financial reporting. Significant progress 
was made during 2010 through monthly accrual of non-cash expenses, timely reconciliation of 
cash accounts, monthly production of comprehensive financial statements, and implementation of 
ciiecklists for all accounting staff. However, there were two specific issues that remained 
unresolved in 2010. 

Staff encounl.cred difficnlties when balancing the accounts payable subsidiarv' ledger to the 
general ledger due tn extensi\'e manual processuig required for handling FliMA reimbursement of 
capital and operations and maintenance expenditures. Monthly balancing procedures have been 
cstablislicd and improved upon to confirm that all balance sheet account'^ are reconciled on a 
timely basis. The proccd\]rcs will reflect necessary journal entries posted by staff lo avoid 
adjustments by auditors. 

Staff will post journal entries for GASB 25 Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension 
plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, GASB 27 Accounting for Pensions 
by State and .Local Governmental Employers, and GASB 45 Accomiting and Financial Reporting 
by .Llniployers for Post-Employment Benefiis Other Than Pensions beginning \n 201 ]. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued) 

Year ended December 31.2010 

(2) Findings Relating to the Basic Financial Statements Reported in Accordance wjtli Government 
Auditing Standards (continued): 

2010-2-Inventory 

Condition: The Board did not have adequate policies, procedures, and internal controls in place 
to ensure that mventory was fairly stated in its financial statements on a timely basis. 

Criteria: The Board does not have systems of internal control, which provide for proper 
accounting and financial reporting of inventory on a timely basis. 

Cause: The Board had not perfonned sufficient procedures to ensure that inventory was properly 
and timely recorded in the fmancial statements. 

Effect: Material adjustments were posted by the Board to the inventorv' balance. 

Recommendaiion: The Board should improve policies and procedures, and related internal 
controls to ensure proper accounting iind fmancial reporting. The Board should also strengthen 
its reconciliation of its inventory listing and implement a formal review procedure of the 
inventor)' procedures. 

Management's response: Management agrees with this finding. During the course of the annual 
inventory count .staff experienced difficulties in reconciling the amount of certain inventoo' 
items at the warehouse with the amount carried on the general ledger. Of particular issue were 
sand, lumber, fire hydrants and fire hydrant parts. An accountant will be assigned to the inventory 
staff to reconcile inventory values to General ixdger amounts on a continuous basis. The Board 
will strengthen the procedures in balancing the inventory li.sting with the fonnal review and 
count. Cycle counts of key items will be done on a regular basis by the Board's Staff 
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SEWER.VGE AND WATER BO.ARD OF NTW ORLEANS 

New Orleans, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2010 

(3) Findings and Questioned Costs relating to Federal Awards 

2010-3 - Supporting; Documentation for Expenditures 
Public Assistance Grants (CFDA number 97.036) 

Criteria: Only actual costs incurred can be charged to a program (OTVIB Circular A-87 and OMB 
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement). 

Condition: The Board enters information from approved manual work papers into an electronic 
work order system. The electronic work orders are submitted to the state government agency in 
order to be reimbursed for labor, materials, and equipment usage. We noted a net eiTor of $2,849, 
during the testing of $208,700 of work orders. 

Cause: The Board docs not have a system to review manual work orders after they are entered 
into the electronic work order system to ensure accuracy. 

Effect: Some of the electronic work orders did not agree to the approved manual work orders. 

Recommendaiion: The Board should put procedures and controls in place to ensure that 
information from work orders entered into the electronic work order .system is accurate. 

Managemenl response: Management agrees with this finding. During review of a random sample 
of work orders for point rej?airs performed during 2010, the auditors found differences between 
the quantities of work performed or equipment and m.aterials used as listed on the manual work 
orders when compared to the quantities recorded on the electronic work order system. These 
differences, although relatively small, rellected insufficient control when the records are being 
entered into the system. The .Board will establish procedures and controls to ensure information 
from manual work orders is accurate. The Board will put procedures and controls in place to 
ensure that information entered into the electronic work order system is performed correctly. The 
procedures will include calculations to confinn the accuracy and reconciliation of the manual 
work orders to the electronic work order .system. 
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NTW ORLEANS 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year ended December 31, 2010 

2009-1 - Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Condition: General ledger account reconciliations for some significant accounts or transaction 
classes were not performed by management in a timely inamier. 

Effect: As part of the audit process; we have historically assisted management in drafting the 
fmancial statetnents and related notes for the year-end audit procedures. During the course of our 
audit procedures we identified significant adjusting entries to general ledger accounts. Because 
our involvement is so important to tiie financial reporting process and due to the significance of 
tite fmancial statement adjustments, this is an indication that the internal control over financial 
reporting of the Board meets the definition of a significant deficiency and reaches the level of a 
material weakness. 

Current Status: Not resolved. Sec repeat tlnding at 2010-1. 

2009-2 - Debt Compliance 

Condition: The bond debt ser\'ice coverage for the Sewerage Fund was 97% for the year ended 
December 31, 2009. 

Effect: The Sewerage Fund is in violation of the bond debt service coverage requirement. 

Current Status: Resolved. 

2009-3 - Supporting Documentation for Expenditures 
Public Assistance Grants (CFDA number 97.036) 

Condition: The .Board enters infonnation from approved manual ^vork papers into an electronic 
work order system. The electronic work orders are submitted to the state govennnent agency in 
order to be reunbursed for labor, materials, and equipment usage. Of the 200 manual work orders 
selected for testing, 5 could not be located by the Board. W'e noted a net error of S2,194 during 
the testing of $262,355 of work orders. 

Current Status: Partially resolved. See repeat finding at 2010-3. 
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